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Strategic report

Group Business Model and Strategy

The business of Wittington Investments Limited and ifs
subsidiaries (the 'Group') is the management of
Investrments in a wide range of cssets.

The Group's investments are managed in five businesses,
being Luxury Retail, Real Estate, Holels, Private Markets &
Other Investments and Associated British Foods plc {*ABF'}.
The latter refers to the Group's 56.2% shareholding in ABF
{2022: 54.5%), which is guoted on The London Stock
Exchange.

The Group ickes a leng-term approach to investment and
is commitied to Increasing shareholder value through
sound business decisions which will deliver sustainabkle
growth in earnings and dividends.

Given the materiality of the ABF business and for ease of
cross-reference to the published financial statements of
ABF, the directors have elected to provide additionat
information in the notes which follow setting out the
conlibution of the ABF business 1o the consolidated
financial staterments of the Group. For clarity, all
references to the ABF husiness are shown in italics in the
noles to these statements and are consistent with the
published financial statements of ABF,

The Garfield Weston Foundalion {'The Foundalion’) is an
English charitable trust, established in 1958 by the lole W
Gafield Weston. As at 16 September 2023, the Foundation
holds 683,073 shares (2022 - 83,073} in Witlington
Investments Limited representing 72.2% (2022 - 72.2%} of
the Croup's issucd share capital and is, tharaforo, the
Group's ultimate controling party.

The Trustees of the Foundation made total grants of £21.1
milion [year to 5 April 2023) in support of 2,147 appeals
[2022: £89.9 miiliion in support of 1,988 appedals). The
Foundation accepts appedals from UK registered charities.
No applications frorm individuals are considered and the
Trustess do not typically fund projects outside the UK.

Business Strategies

Luxury Retail

Luxury Retail comprises Fortnum & masen plc and Heal &
Sons Lid, two long-cstablished retailers. The aim for each
of these businesses is to build a sustainable and profitable
business over the long term by providing an culstanding
customer experience through all channels and by
developing the product offer. They also cim o develop
thelr respective digital businesses and, where appropriate,
international activities.

Real Estale

The Group invests in high-quality investment properties in
the retail, office and distribution sectors across the UK. It
also takes strategic positions in selected development
opportunities. alongside local partners or sector spacialists,
where it can use its patient capital to unlock the potential
in those siles.

Hotels

As an extension of its Real Estate strategy. the Group
invests in hotels with high-quality real estate backing and
with a broad mix of customers from corporate, event and
leisure markets,

Private Markets & Other Investments
The Group invests both directly and via externaliy
mannged funds In private equity and prvate debt

markets. Thisis a long-term asset class and exposures are
managed to provide a diverse portfolic by sector,
geography and age of company. It also invests selechively
in special situations.

Other investments are principally composed of liguid
investments in short-clated investment grade bonds as well
a5 listed equilies, which provides porficlic diversification
and enables liguidity and portfolic needs o be met.

Associated British Foods plc

ABF is a diversified international food, ingredients and
retaill Group with revenue of £12.8bn, 133.000 employees
and operations in 55 countries across Europe, southarn
Africa, the Amencas, Asic and Australic. Further details
can be found in ABF's Annual Report 2023 which can be
found af www.abf.co.uk.

Business Review

Luxury Retail
Fortnum & Mason

Fortnum & Mason's financial year saw a continued
recovery in sales with UK store revenue returning to pre-
Covid levels at the start of 2023 and growing 34% on FY22,
driven by a resilient domestic market and increased
international customer footfall. Online sales saw an 1%
reduction on FY22, not dissimilar to the wider market s
consumers rebalanced their behaviour post-Covid.
Fortnum & Mason faced challenging operating conditions
as inflation grew rapidly. particularly in food and labour.
Total Revenue grew 12% to £208.6m [2022: £184.5m); Profit
before taxation grow to £7.5m (2022: £5.8m) and EBITDA
grew 1o £16,.0m {2022: £14.2m). Capital investment in the
year amounted to £8.2m {£2022: £4.9m} centred on the
refurbishment of the 3rd floor of the Piccadilly flagship
store. Closing cash was £21m (2022 £17m}, with no debt.

Heaf's

Heoi's has experienced a difficult penod for profifatuility as
inflationary pressure squeezed margin and increased the
cost base {with the exception of its new Tottenham Court
Road lease). Revenue remaned materially flat at £37.4m
{2022: £37.0m), however the dual challenges of supply
chain and wage inflation drove a 50% reduction in
operating profit to £0.8m (2022: £1.6m). Perhaps the
biggest challenge was in dealing with old {refurned and
cancelled) stock, which led fo g very significant write
down which supressed profil. Heals continues to generate
a positive operating profit and EBITDA and the underlying
perfarmance remains scund. Excluding the wrile-down of
stock. profit would have increased from the prior period.
The strategic focus of Ihe company going forward is to
capitalise onits new store layout on Tottenham Court
Road and to grow its onling presence, which now
accounts for half of sales revenue.

Real Estate

Three properties were acquired during the year with an
agaregate consideration of £33m; one property was sold
for £3m. Income grew to £12.3m (2022: £11.5m} while the
operating loss in the year of £8.3m {2022 profit of £16.3m)
included an aggregate impairment charge of £13.6m
[2022: £5.6m) in raspect of the canying value of some of
the office and retail properties and a residential
development. Over the year, 99.9% of renls demanded
were collected (2022: 99%! camparing very favourably
with the sector as a whole.
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Hotels
Grand Hotel, Brighten

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fattal Group in
May 2023 for £61m.

Richmond Hill Hotel

Richmond Hill Hotel continued to benefit from sirong
demand in the leisure market. Revenue for the period was
the highest in the hatel's history at £10.1m [2022: £9.2m),
whilst current and future bookings remain sfrong. Changes
to the market value of the property resulted in an
operating loss of £2.7m ({2022: profit of £13.4m, including a
ane-off impairment reversal}.

Private Markets & Other Investments

Over the year the Group invested £200m in investment
grade credif and ¢.$130m info a global public equities
index fund. A further €40m was committed to private
equity, The public and private equity funds held broadly
flat in GBP terms over the vear, whilst the leveraged loan
portfolio, in which the underlying investments are floating
rate. benefitted from rising interest rates glokally. The
remaining direct portfolio companies posted modest
gains. There was an unrealised FX impact in the year
which supressed profitability. Profit after tax for the vear for
Private Markets & Other Investments was £36.0m (2022
£28.3m).

Associated British Foods plc

ABF performed extremely well despite facing very
significant economic challenges caused in part by major
geo-political events at the start of the financial year. Itis
now well positioned for the financial year ahead.

Trading at Primark was excellent under the circumstances.
Al the beginning of the year selective price increases
were implemented parially to protect profitability, on the
grounds that the significant input cost inflation was
temporary. That careful pricing delivered as intended,
with customers confinuing to shop enthusiashically.
Profitahility in ABF's food businesses moved ahead as a
result of the appeal of their products and the strength of
its brands, both of which supperted the recovery of high
levels of input cost intlation withaut disrupting customer
relationships.

Although corsumer demand remains uncertain, Primark is
as well plaoced as it has ever been and that its offeris very
attractive not just to existing customers but also fo new
customers engaged by its digital platform, new store
openings, and ward of mouth which remains as powerful
Qs ever, With Primark margin now moving back fo ifs
historic levels, the future for this business is viewed with
confidence. ABF's food businesses are alsoe in very good
shape, and its Sugar business especially should see much
better profitability in the year ahead.

ABF posted statutory operating profit for the year of
£1.383m [2022: £1,178m} after exceptional charges of
£109m {2022: £206m). Given the strength of ABF's balance
sheet and its confidence in the future. ABF announced a
special dividend of 12.7 pence per share and a second
share buyback programme of up to £500m on November
71h 2023.
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Directors' duties

The directors are required to actin a way which they
consider, in good faith, is most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members as
a whole and, in daing 50, have regard to the matiers set
out in seclion 172(1] (a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2004,

Stakeholder engagement

The Company engages regularly with stakeholders at
Group and/or business unit level, depending on the
particular issue, Regardless of the legal duties, the
directors consider regular engagement with stakehclders
to be part and parcel of our value of progressing through
collaboration and to be fundamental to the success of
the Group.

The Board has identified the following stakeholder graups
with whom engagement s fundamental 1o the Group's
oNgoINg suCCcess:

1. The Garfield Weston Foundation: The largest single
shareholder of the Group is the Gartield Weston
Foundation, o chanfable grant-making tody which
supports a wide range of causes across the UK. The
Group engages regularly with the Foundation to
understand its grant pipeline and 1o ensure thatitisin
a position to pay dividends to a level commensurafe
with the Foundalion’s chjectives. An addificnal key
concern for the Foundation is that the Group operate
with high ethical stondards so as not to undermine the
Foundation's charitable aims and objectives.

2. Governments: The Group s impacted by changesin
laws and public policy. The key issues of concerm in
relation to the government are regulatory changes
{including tax legisiation). climate and environmenta:
related matters and support of businasses and workers,
The directors of the Group engage with this
stakehoider group in various ways inciuding meetings,
responding to reqguests for inputs {e.g. on sustainakility
reporting guidelines) and applications to participate in
government schemes.

3. Communilies and the envirenment; As the Group's
caontrolling shareholder, the Foundation is heavily
engaged in national effarts 1o mitigate climate
change., This is primarily achieved through the award
of grants to relevant bodies. Through the ABF business
segment, the Group is also engaged in comimunity
relations at a national and international level and with
the design and implementation of strategies to
promote climate change mitigation and a circular
economy. ABF engages with these stakeholder groups
in vanous ways including coaching and training
programmes and community programmes and
schemas.,

4. Customers / consumers: The Group depends heavily
on its reputation with customers, in the UK and globally,
across its grocery, retail and holel operations. The key
issues of concern to customers are health and safety,
preducts and services, value for money, availability of
products and services, impact on the environment,
store and hotel environments and customer relations.
The business engages with this stakeholder graupin
various ways including customer surveys, labelling,
social medio and customer/consumer information
hnes.
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5. Employees: Cur people are central to our success. The
Group employs 134,881 people of which 133.000 are
employed by ABF, Given this, responsibility for
engagement with employees lies principally with the
ABF business segmenl. ABF engages with its employees
in varicus ways including email, haalth and safely
programmes, intranet, newsletters, surveys, town halls,
fraining, virtual meetings and notice boards. The key
issues of concemn to employees are health and safety,
engagement & development and diversity & inclusion.

The Group is commilted fo an active equat
opportunities policy from recruitment and selection,
through training and development. performance
reviews and promaetions to retirement. it is cur policy fo
promote an environment free from discrimination,
harassment and viclimisation, where everyone
receives equal treatment regardless of gender, colour,
ethnic or national origin, disability, age, marital status.
sexual ofientation or religion. Al decisions relating fo
employment practices are objective, free from bias
and based solely upon work criteria and individual
merit, It is our policy that people with disabilities who
fulfil the minimum criteria should have full and farr
consideration for all vacancies. We endeavour to
retain employees in the workforce if they become
disabled during employment. It is the Group's palicy to
provicde continuing employment wherever procticable
in the same or an alternative position and fo provide
appropriate training fo achieve this am.

4 Suppliers: Through the ABF business segment, the
Group is indirectly dependent on many complex
supply chains operafing al an intfernohanal level. The
key issues of concern with regards to supply chains are
payment practices, responsible sourcing and supply
chain sustainability & responsibility. The Group engages
with this stakeholder group in various ways including
conversations (face-to-face or virtuall, training,
communications fora, cormespondence, press releases
and audifs.

Principal decisions

An example of a principal decision taken during the yeaor
that took stakeholder views into account is the decision 1o
oay a firstinterim dividend in January 2073 and a second
interim dividend in July 2023, with the primary beneficiary
of the decision being the Garfield Weston Foundation and
~indirectly - the recipients of the granis awarded by the
Foundation.

The Directors agreed a first interim dividend of £78.50 per
share, paid in January 2023 which, together with the
secand interim dividend paid in july 2023 of £69.50 per
share, made a tolal of £148.00 per share for the year,
representing 42% of distributable profit.

The decision to pay both dividends factored in the net
cash position before lease labilities for the Group of £2.8
bn at the 2027 yeor end,

Non-Financial and Sustainability Information
Statement

The Group Board recognises that climate change
represents a material risk throughout its supply chains and
poses challenges to some of its businesses worldwide. The
Board wholly support policies that are dligned with the
godals of the 2015 Paris Cimate Agreement to limit the rise
in global temperatures to well below 2°C above pre-
industrial levels, and to pursue efforts 1o limit the
temperature increase even further to 1.5°C.

This yaar the Wittington Group has included climaie-
related financial disclosures in accordance with the
Companies [Strategic Repaort) (Climate-related Financial
Disclosure] Regulations 2022 {SI 2022/31).

Governance

Tne Board is responsible for oveneeaing climate-related
issues across the Group. The Board reviews each business
segment in depth every year, which will include areview
of material ESG issues.

Risk management

The Board is accountable for effective risk management,
for agreeing the principal, including emerging, risks facing
the Group and ensuring they are successfully managed.

The process for identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks is thae same as for other nsks within the
Group and sits with the business where the risk resicles.

These risks, including climate risks, are collated and
revicwed at both a businoss and divisional level, and then
reported to the Chief Financial Cfficer who reviews the
kevy risks with the Board.

Strategy and aclion, meftrics and targets

wittington operates a decentralised business model
because the Group Board beligves in giving the leaders of
its businesses the scope and accountability to create and
run the best businesses they can. They are therefore
responsible for ideniifying and implementing strategies
that both create value and ensure value is protected by
taking action to mitigate or adapt to the impacts of
climate change. Enabling decision-making by the people
closest to these issues, with the closest relationships with
the stakehaolders affected, provides resiience, agility and
flexibility in planning. allowing for quick action on impacis
and opportunifies.

Climate risks and opportunities
The ABF division accounts for the most material climate
risks and opportunities in the Wittington Group.

ABF comprises businesses that provide safe, nutriticus and
affordabie food, and clothing that is greal value for
money, There will be many value creation opportunities
which ABF's businesses will be well positioned to take
advantage of as the world transitions to a low carbon
ecanomy. There wil also be physical and fransitional
climate risks which they may be suscepfible fo. Many of
ABF's businesses rely on agricultural crops with complex
supply chains which are spread across the world. Long-
term climate change willimpact agricultural crops and
workers while extreme weather events have the potential
to cause disruption across value chains.

Cross-functional teams within the ABF business worked
with third-party experts 1o understand climate-relaied,
physical and transition risks and opportunities, These were
inciuded in the Group's scenario analysis.
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Non-Fingncial and Sustainability Information
Statement continued

The scenario analysis included the following scenarios:

Warming Transiional scenarios! Physical
icjeclory by 2100 sCenarnos”
<2°C CNet Zero Emissions by 2050 RCP2.6
Scenario ('NIE') [1.5°C)
Sustainatie Development
Scenano ('SD3)
23 C Stated Policies Scenario {'STEPS'] RCP4.5
~4"C RCF8.51

1. The Internatianal Energy Agency's scenarios have been used to assess transiton
Impacts with each scenario built on a set of assumptions on how the energy
system might evolve, Each scenang has a different temperature outcome. ASBF
used scenarios covering 1.57 C, <2 € and
<3'C

2. ABF used the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's Representative
Canceniratran Pathways (RCP) to assess physical elimate risk. RCPs are cammonly
used by climate scientists to assess physical climate risk, with each pathway
representing a different greenhouse gas concentration trajectary which can then
be translated inte global warming imparts ASF used climate data from the World
Climate Research Programmes Coupled Model Intercomparison Project - Phase 5
{CMIP 5 adjusted for spatial resolution and bias corrected) to do this translation
RCPs ferd into climate, crop and flood models. There are four RCP pathways with
RCP8.S representing the worst case scenario.

The impact of compounding means thal even small
changes in assumptions can iead to a significant range of
outcomes from climate models ond scenarios. ABF
therefore placed more emphasis on projections to 2030,
using them for action planning, and used projections fo
2050, whers there is more uncertainty, 1o check oursense
of direction and consider the resilience of cur businesses
should certain hypothetical scenarios toke place.

Risks and opportunities have been considered cover the
following time horizons:

Years Ratlionale
Short-term 2025 Mid-decade
Medium- 2030 Qurmost financialy matericl businasses,
term ABF Sugar, Pimark and Twinings have set

2030 ermission targets, which are supported
by ermission reduction plans

2050 is consistent with mary national and
industry fargets. Pnmark s cligned with the
UMFCCC Fashion Industry Charter goal of
net zero emissions across alil three Scopes

Dy 2050

Long-term 2050

ABF's risk assessment process identified the following
climate risks and opportunities that may have a significant
impact on ABF; these are denoted in italics below.
Additional risks and opportunities affecting Fortnum &
Mason (as the only other business materially affected by
climate change in the Withington Group) are included
below,

Determining the potfential impact of cimate nsks and the
size of climate opportunities is challenging. Climate
models include several fixed assumplions and there is
significant uncertainty around the impacts of climate
change and how governments will respond to its threats,

4 Wittington Investments  Financial Staterrenls 2023

Impact
assessment

Description

Projected impacts from scenario analysis are
positve or not significant

Impacts not judged to be significant once
mitigating actions are considered

Impacts judged to be sgnificant even after
miligaling actions have been considered

mote: USigaificance” sefers here to “he considered impact of climate
fisks and opportunities on the Group's inanaial pe~ormrance and
position

I. Climate impact on coftan yields (Primark)

2023 assessment
: Medium |

Short term:

ong-term
pMetrics for miligating achions & targets:

Proportion of cotton clothing sales {units) that
confains cefton that s crganic, recycled or sourced
from Primark's Sustainakle Cotton Programre (%)
100% oy 2027.

Number of farmers trainad in Primark’s Sustainable
Cotten Programme: 275,000 by end of 2023,

2. Climate impact on llovo’s sugar yields {(Eswatini,
Malawi, Mozambique, South Africa, Tanzania, Zambia}

2023 assessment
Short term:

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Sugar production (tonnes).

Volume of water abstracted.

AB Sugar has a target to reduce its end-to-end
supply chain water usage by 30% vs 201772018

3. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms {(AB Sugar and
Primark)
2023 assessment
Medium term

Metrics tor mitigating actions & targets:

- Primark: GHG emissions: Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions
vs targel of 50% absolute reduction in emissions by
2030 vs 2018719 baseline.

- AB Sugar: GHG emissions: Scope 1 and 2 emissions vs
target of 30% absolute reduchon in Scope 1 and 2
emissions by 2030 vs 2017/18 Laseline

4. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms on Forfnum &
Mason

2023 assessment

VERTIRREY ] Medium |

tMetrics for mitigating actions & targets:

GHG emissions: Scope 1, 2 emissions vs targef of 25%
absolute reduction in emissions by 2025 vs 2018/19
baseline

wWe consider that the scenario analysis performed in
conjunction with the mitigating actions undertaken by our
pusinesses demonstrate that our business models and
strategy are resilient to climale change in each of the
transition and physical scenarios cutined above.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's board reviews annually the material risks
facing the business together with the internal caontrol
procedures and respurces devoted to them,

The principal fsks currently identitied are:

External Risks: the conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East
theirimpact on the UK and Global economy; events
impacting consumer confidence leading to reduced
consumer spending; movemeant in exchange rates; wage
and materials inflation; fluctuations in commodity and
energy prices: operating in globhal markets: health and
nutrition concerns.

Operational Risks: supply chain interruptions and fabour
shortages, workplace health and safety: product safety
and quality; use of natural resources and managing
environmental impact; ethical business practices; and
breaches of IT and information security.

Energy and Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Group is committed to making year-cn-year
improvements in cperational energy efficiency.

The Group calculates and discloses GHG emissions based
on the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard Revised Fdifion, except for
alignment with the GHG Protocol's approach for
determining organisational boundary and limitations for
Scope 3 disclosures. The Group use carlbbon conversion
factors published by the UK's Department for Business,
Ciernygy and Inclustrial Strategy (BEIS) in June 2022, other
Intemationally recognised sources, and bespoke factors
based on laboratory calculations at selected locations.
Scope 2 market-based emissions have been calculated in
accordance with the GHG Protocol Scope 2 Guidance
on procured renewable enargy.

ABF's emissions {Scopes 1 and 2) reduced by 6% to 2.91
milion tonnas COZe {2022: 3.11 milion tonnes CO2e).
ABF's energy consumption increased by 1% to 21,183
Gwh (2022: 21,0446 GWh}. The principal energy efficiency
measures 1o reduce ABF's carbon emissions include the
introduction of energy monioring sysiems: conversions fo
LEC iighting; and upgrades fo production machinery such
as compressors and boilers to improve cfficiencies.
Fortnum & mMason's emissions {Scopes 1 and 2} were 1,859
tonnes CO2e [2022: 1,617 tonnes CO2e) and ifs energy
consumption was 8,489 GwH (2022: 7,922 MWh)

Fortnum & Mascon is also committed fo decreasing iis
reliance on the planet's resources and is working hard to
ensure that all packaging ts either reusable, home
compostable or fully recyclable by 2024,

Corporate Responsibility

The Group's corporate responsibility activities centre on
those of ABF. As a diversified intermnational food,
ingredients and retail Group with 133,000 employees and
operations in 55 countries across Europe, southern Africa,
the Americas, Asia and Australica, ABF takes its
responsibilites 1o wider society seriously. ABF publishes o
full corporate resparnsibility report every three years, most
recently in 2022, Corporate responsibility is a central part
of how the business is run and is incorporated into the day
to day decision making processes. In the Corporate
Responsibilty Report, ABF shares information an ifs anti-
bribery and corruption policy, whistlehlowing policy,
approach 1o human rights, social matters, environment
paolicy, employees and diversity. Further information and a
copy of the 2022 ABF Comporate Responsibllity Report are
available at www.abf.co uk/responsibilily/cr downloods.

ABF is committed to gender diversity and, across the
business overall, the gender split is close 1o equal with 54%
of the workfarce last year being female. The Equality Act
2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017
were infroduced in Aprit 2017, and ABF has collected the
required data for all of its relevant employees. Further
details for each of the UK legal entities that are required to
report data is published online and submitted to the
Government's Gender Pay Reporfing website in
accordance with the legistation. Further information can
be found in in the ABF 2023 Annual Report at
www.abf.co.uk/investarrelations/reports.

Being aresponsible company means respecting the
human rights ot all the people who interact with the
business, whether they are direct employees, temporary
waorkers ar those In the supply chain. ABF's approach fo
human rights and the steps it takes to try to ensure that
modern slavery, in any of its forms, is not present within its
operalions ar supply chaing is sef out in the 2023 Modern
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement. Many of the
businesses have compiled their own statements, and all
published statements can be found at

http:/ fweww, abf .co.uk/responsibility/responsitility_policies.

ABF is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
ethics and compliance with all relevant laws wherever it
does business. Compliance with anfi-bricery and anfi-
corruption laws is an essential part of this and ABF
maintaing a robust compliance system which is designed
to respect both the spirit and letter of the relevant laws, A
copy of the Group's Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy is
available at

nHp:/ fwwew abf.co.uk/responsibility fresponsibility_policies.

Wiltington Investments Financial Stotoments 2023 5
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Effective and honest communication is essential if
malpractice and wirongdoing are to be dealt with
effectively. ABF's Whistleblowing Policy provides guidelines
for people who feel they nead to raise certain issues in
confidence. A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy is
avoilable at

hitp:/ fwww . abf.co uk/responsibility fresponsibility policies.

Fortnum & Mason, as a busingss that has been around for
over 300 years, sees its primary responsibility as coenducting
business today in o way that truly considers the next 300
years. Fortnum & mason's strategy is called Future Matters
within which are four sustainability and socicl respaonsibility
pillars: People, Product, Packaging ond Planet. These
drive a commitment to doing more things more often o
create long-lasting change, with the help of suppliers.
employees and custormers. More information is ovailable
in the Fortnum & Mason PLC Annual Directors Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements which can be found at
the Companies House website (https://Aind-and-
update.company-informaltion service.gov.uk/}.

Geopolitical uncertainty and Russia's wear in Ukraine

The global inflationary pressures triggered initially by
COVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertdinty caused by Russia's war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or invesiments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost all the
markets in which the Group operates and has adversely
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
waoge cosfs. Our management teams in all business
segments continue to monitor cost inflation closely. Whilst
there are early signs of cost inflation decreasing in many
parts of the global economy, the emergence of conflict in
the Middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolifical and econemic environment. Ifs impacits on
the Group's rading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
mMiddle East, on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses o inflafion.

Sir Guy Weslon 15 December 2023
Chairman

witlington Invesiments Limited
Registered office;

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WIK 4QY

Company Number 00366054
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and audited
financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 16
September 2023, in accordance with section 415 of the
Companies Act 2006, The Board considers that the
Group’s Report and Accounts 2023, taken as a whole, 15
fair, balanced and understandable and provides
information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the
Group's perfarmance, business model and strategy.

Given the maleriality of the ABF {Associated British Foods
plc) business segment and for ease of cross-reference o
the pubklished financial statemeants of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide additional information in the
notes which follow setting out the contribution of the ABF
business segment to the consolidated financial statemenits
of the Group. Far clarity, all references to the ABF business
segment are shown inifalics in the notes to these
staternents and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF.

Results and Dividends

The consolidated income statement is on page 13. Profit
for the period amounted 1o £1,099m (2022: £783m).
Dividends paid amounted to £128m (2022: £104m]).
Dividends are detailed in note 8. Profit for the financial
period atiributable to equity shareholders amounted fo
£618m {2022: £445m).

Future business developments

Future business developments are outlined In the Strategic
Report In the sections concerned with Business Strategies
and Business Review.

Controlling Shareholder Relationship Agreement
Any person who exercises or contrals, on therr own or
together with any person with whom they are acting in
concert, 30% or more of the votes able to be cast at
general meelings of a company are known as a
‘contralling sharehclder' under the Listing Rutes. The Listing
Rules require companies with caniroling shareholders to
enter into an agreement which is intended 1o ensure that
the controlling shareholders comply with certain
independence provisions in the Listing Rules. The Group
and, through their control of the Group. the trustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation are controling shareholders
of ABF. On 14 November 2014 the Group entered info a
relationship agreement with ABF and the trustees of the
Gartield Weston Foundation containing the required
undertakings. The Relationship Agreement was amended
and restated on 25 june 2020.

Branches

Directors

The Diractors who held coffice throughout the year were as
follows:

Sir Guy Westen [Chairmany)
Emma Adamao

Sir Harmy Cyanogly

Marfin Hatirell

Annc Catring Hobhouse
Charles Mason

Lindlsay Pearson

Alannah Wesion [resigned 12 December 2023)
Garth Weston

George Weston

Grahom Weston

The Company Secretary was Jennifer Docley.

Confrolling Interest

Details of a cantralling interast in the shares of the Group
are given in note 32. Other than as noted, so far asis
known, no other person holds or s beneficially interested
in a disclosable holding in the Group.

The Group, through various subsidiaries, has established
branches in a number of different countries in which the
Group operates,

Engagement with suppliers, employees,
customers and others in a business relationship
with the company

The way the Group engages with stakeholders is outlined

n the Strategic Report in the seclion concemed with
directars’ dufies.

Directors’ Indemnities
The Group has in place appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilily insurance coverin respect of legal action
against its execulive and non-executive directors
amangst others. The directors of @ subsidiary company
that acts as trustee of a pension scheme benefited from a
qualifying pension scheme indemnity provision during the
financial year and al the date of the ABF 2023 Annual
Report. Other than these, there were no qualifying third-
party indemnity provisions provided by the Group or its
subsidiares during the financial year and as al the date of
the ABF 2023 Report.

Political donations

During the year, the Group did not make any political
donations or incur any political expenditure {within the
ordinary meaning of those wards) in the UK. However,
under the wider definition of those terms in Part 14 of the
Companies Act 2006, ABF paid costs totalling
approximately £3,150 during the year for aftendance of
employaes al the Conservative and Labour Party
Conferences which could potentially fall within that wider
definition. The Group did not make any contributions 1o
non-UX political parties during the year.
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Directors’ report

Research and development

Innovative use of existing and emerging technologies will
continue to be crucial to the successful development of
rnew products and processes for the Group.

ABF has a technical centre in the UK atf the alied
Technical Centre. R&D facilities alse exist across ABI,
including at: ACH Food Campanias in the USA; AB Mauriin
Australic and the Netherlands {including the Global
Technology Ceantre]: AB Enzymes in Germany. and the
Roal joint venture pitot plant in Rajamaki, Finland. These
centres support the technical resources of the ABF
operating divisions in the search for new technology and
in monitoring and maintaining high standards of quality
and food safety. ABF also acquired National Milk Records
plc (see further detdils on page 48) which invests in an
innovative range of milk qualily, herd health and genomic
testing services, generating data and building robust
insights that empower farmers to make informed decisions
on cow productivity

Financial risk management

Details of the Group's use of financial insfruments,
together with information on our risk objectives and
policies and our exposure fo price. credit, liquidity, cash
flow and interest rate risks, can be found in note 28,

Discliosure of information to auditors

The Directnrs who held office at the date of approval of
this Directors' Report confirm that, so far as they are egch
aware, there is ne relevant qudit information of which the
auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all the
reasonable steps that he/she ought 1o have taken as a
director to make himself/herself aware ot any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditoris
aware of that inforrmation, For these purposes, relevant
audit information means information needed by the
auditar in connection with the preparation of ils report on
pages 10-12.

Auditors

In accordance with section 485(4) of the Companiss Act
2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP as auditors of the Group will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance

mMainiaining effective corporate governance is
fundamental te the Board's ability to discharge its duties
to sharehaolders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the system
of intemal control to faciiiate the idenfification,
assessment and management of risk Effective controls
ensure that the Group's exposure to avoidable risk 1s
minimised, that proper accounting records are
maintained, that the financial information used within the
business is reliable and that the consolidated accounts
preparation and financial reporling processes comply
with all relevant regulatory reporting requirements. The
directors confirm that there is a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the risks foced by the Groun
and the operational effectiveness of the related cantrols.
They alsa confirm that they have regularly reviewed the
system of internal contrals.
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The global inflationary pressures triggered initially by
COVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or investments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost all of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Qur management teams in all business
segments continue to monitor cost inflation closely. Whilst
there are early signs of cost inflation descreasing in many
parts of the global econcmy, the emergence of conflictin
the Middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic enviranment. Its impacts on
the Group's trading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the cunent crises in Ukraine and the
riddle East.on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation.

However, the directors believe the Group's resiience has
been evidenced by the yearon-year growth in operating
cash fiows in excess of £1bn set out in these statemeants
and believe that the Group is well placed to frade
through the uncertoin times with adequate resources to
continue to meet its commitments when cailled. As such
these financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis (see note 1),

R

NS

Sir Guy Weston 15 December 2023

Chairman

Wittington Investments Limited
Registered office:

Weston Cenire

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WIK 4QY

Company Number 00346054



Statement of directors' responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Repaort, the Directors” Report and the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable UK faw and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial
vear, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is
applicable low and UK Adopted international Accounfing Standards (*UK Adopted IFRS'). The directors have elected to
prepare the parant company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framewaork' ['FRS 1017}.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are salisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, ihe directors are required 1o:

- selectsuitable qocounting policies n accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estmaotes
and Errors and then apply them consistently:

make judgements and estimales that are reasonatle and prudent;

present information, including accounting policies, in a manner thal provides relevant, relioble, comparable and
understandable information;

provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in UK Adopled IFRS. and inrespect of
the parent company financial statements, FRS 101, is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of
particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group and company financial position and financial
performance;

for the Group financial statemeants, state whethar UK Adopted IFRS have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards including FRS 101
have been followead, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
statements; ond

- prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis uniess IF s Inappropriate o presume that the Group and
the parent company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accourding records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company's and Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the parent company and the Groug and enable them to ensure that the parent company and the Group financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2004, They have general responsibifity for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the parent company and the Group and fo prevent and detect
fraud and other imegulanties.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and Directors’
Report which comply with that law and those regulations. The direclors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial infarmation included on the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the directers in respect of the annual report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:
the financiat staternents, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, iiabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whale: and
the Strategic reportincludes o fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position ot

the Company and the undertakings included in 1he consolidation taken as whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainfies that they face.

On behalf of the Board

A wittingion Investmenrnts
con Limited
"ﬂ'r’\'u\»—"k,,; Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grasvenaor Street
$ir Guy Weston tondon
Chairman WIK 4QY

15 December 2023 Company Number 00366054
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of Wittington Investments Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wittington Investments Limited ('the parent company’] and its subsidiaries
{the: 'group’) for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 32,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewoerk that has been applied in the
preparction of the group financial staternents is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial staterments
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™
{United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

the financial statements give a frue and fair view of the group's and of the parent company’s atfairs as at 16
September 2023 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

the parent company financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance wath United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice: and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1845 (UK} and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsikilities for the audit of the
financial staternents section of our report. We are independeant of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to cur qudit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard.
and we have fulfilled our other ethical respaonsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements. we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Cur evaluation of the directors” assassment of
the group and parent company's ability o cantinue 1o adopt the gaing concern basis of accounting included:

Understanding ihe process taken by management to evaluate the operational and economic impacts of
macroeconomic factars on the Group and o reflect these in the group's forecasts:

- Chailenging the assumptions underpinning the Grouo's forecasts and going concern period until June 2025;
Confirming the opening cash and cash equivalents to the financial statements:
Testing the clerical accuracy of the model used to prepare the Group's going concern assessment;
Parluiming < reverss stress test to estaklish the reduction in cash flows that could lead 1o aloss of iquidity: and
Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's disclosure concerning the going concern basis of preparation,

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company's ability to
confinue as a going concern until June 2025,

Our responsikilities and the respensibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not o
guaraniee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Witlington Investments Limifed

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are respaonsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except ta the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Qur responsibilily is 1o read the other information and, in doing so, consider whelher the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtaoined in the course of the audit or otherwise appears o

be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required

to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the

waork we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information. we are required

fo report that fact.

We have nothing fo report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

In cur opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the inforrnation given in the strategic report and the direciors' report for the financial year for which the finoncial
staterents are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the strategic report and directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environmeant obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the strateqgic report or directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2004 reguires us to
report 1o you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have nol been kept by the parenf company, orreturns adequate for our audit have
not been received ltom brunichies nul visiled by us; or

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement wilth the accounting records and retums; or
certain disclosures of directors’ rernuneration specified by law are not made; or

wea have not received all the information and explanations we require Tor cur audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 9. the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparng the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either infend fo liquidate the group or the parent company or fo cease
operatians, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objactives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the tinanciai stalements as a whole are free from
rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs [UK) will always detect a matericl misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arse from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonately be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

fo the Members of Witlington Invastmeants Limited

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fravd

megularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design proceduresin line
with our responsibilities, outined above, to detect iregularities, including fraud. The risk of not delecting a material
misstaternent due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
defiberate concedlment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent fo
which our procedures are capable of detecting iregularities, including fraud is detailed below, However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detecton of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and
management.

Qur approach was s follows:

We obtained an understanding of the lega! and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and
determined that the most significant framewaorks which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial
statements are those that relate to the reporting framework (FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”, United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Companies Act 2004) and the relevant tax laws and
regulaftions in the jursdictions in which the Group operates. In addition, we concluded that there are cerfain
significant laws and regulations which may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements being those iaws and regulations relating to health and safety, employee matters, food
standards and food safety.

We understood how Wittington Investments Limited is complying with thase frameworks by making enguiries of
management and observing the oversight of those charged with governance, the culture of honesty and ethical
behaviour and whether a strong emphasis is placed on fraud prevention, which may reduce opportunities for fraud
fo take place. and fraud deterrence. which could persuade individuals not to commit fraud because of the
likelihood of detection and punishment.

- We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud
might occur by meeting with management from various parts of the business to understand where it considered
there was susceplibility 1o fraud. We also considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made by
management to manage earnings. We considered the programmes and controls that the Group has established to
actdress risks identified. or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud: and how management monifors those
programmes and controls, Where the risk was considered to be higher, we pertormed audit procedures to address
each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing manual journals and were designed o provide
recsonable assurance that the financial statements were free from material fraud or error.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identity non-complionce with such laws and
regulations. Our procedures invoived a focus on Journdl entry testing and journals inchicating large or unusual
transactions or meeting our defined risk criteria based on our understanding of the business and enquiries of
management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at https:/ fwvww fre org.uk/cuditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members thase
matters we are required fo state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyane ather than the company and the company's members as
a body, for cur audit wark, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed.

sl

Simon C’Neill (Senior stalutery auditor}
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

15 December 2023
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Consolidated income statement

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

Tzoz3 0%
Con'nuing coeraligns Mol £m £
Revenue 3 20,028 17,258
Operating costs before excephonal items 4 (18,698} {15.959)
Exceptional iterns - ) 4 (109) (206]
1.221 1.083
Share of profit after 1ax from joint venfures ond associales 13 124 09
Profifs less losses on disposal of non-current assets o 27 15
Operating profit 1372 1,208
‘ru/”kwdjuﬂed operating profil o B 3 1,503 77177,456
i Profils less losses on dispesal of non-current assets 27 14
‘ Amortisation of non-operating intangibles ? (41) {47}
L Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 4 (3} {5
'Transaction costs 4 (5} {8)
! Exceptonal iferns o 4 (10%) 1206)
Profits Iess losses on sale and closure of businesses 25 1 123)
Profit before interest 1373 1,185
Fincnce income & 116 44
Finance expense 6 (131) [116)
Other financial income B 4 26 A0
Profit before taxation 1,384 1,153
Adiusied profit before foxatfion 1,514 1,424
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assefs 27 14
Amortisation of non-operating intangioles ? {41} 147}
Acguired inventory fair value adjustrments 4 (3} {3)
Transaclion cosls 4 (5} {5)
Exceptional items 4 (10%) [206)
Profifs less losses on sale and closure of businesses 25 1 [23)
Toxation — UK {excluding tax on exceptional items} (56) 164)
UK [on exceplional items) 3 3
- Overseqs (excluding tox on exceplional fems) [166)
- Overseqs [on excepfional items) (48)
e 7. 88
Profitforthe period , 1099
Atibutable to
Equity shareholders 618 445
Norrcontoling inferests | . a8t 338
Profitfor the period 1,099 783
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

2023 77

hote £m £
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement 1099 783
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit schermes 14 (8) 825
D(_e_ferrg_(_:_i tax assceiated with dg_f_ined_pene__ﬂj_SChg__mes N 15 4 {19%]
Herms that will not be reclassified 1o profit or oss (2) 626
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {473) 445
Nel gain/(loss] on hedge of nef invesiment in foreign subsidianes 1 (1
Net gain on other investments held at fair value through other comprehensive income - 4
Deferad tox associated with maovements in foreign exchonge (5) -
Current 1ax associated with movements in foreign exchange 4 -
mMovement in cash flow hedging position 8¢ (260) 419
Deferred tax associated with rmavement in cash flow hedaing posilion 7. 28¢ 40 (28
Defered tax associated with movernan! in other investments - )
Share of other comprehersive (loss)/income of joint ventures and asseciates (18) 28
Elfect of hyperinflationary economies . N L a 46
Items that are or may be subsequently reclassified 1o profit or loss {66%) ?12
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the peried (671) 153
iéi_éj}:gﬁ’lprehensive income for the period 428 2,321
Attributable to
Equity sharehalders 251 1.281
Non-controling inferasts L B B T 1040
Total comprehensive income for the period 428 2321
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Consolidated balance sheet

at 14 September 2023

26237 Tz

Note £m ]
Non-cument assets
Intangible assets ? 1.880 1.879
Property, plant and equipmen 10 5834 5.727
Right-of-use assets 11 2377 2,477
Fwestmen! property 12 274 244
Investments in foint ventures 13 305 303
nvestments in associates 13 3 89
Employee beneflils assets 14 1.444 1,393
Investments 28 149 142
Incornme tox 7 23 23
Deferred tax assets 15 195 140
Other receivables 14 63 58
Tq{qlﬁqg@cuneni assets o i 12,439 12,497
Current assets
Assels classified as held for sale 7 - 45
Inverntorss 18 3.246 3296
Biologicol aesets 19 9 105
Trade and other receivables 16 1.807 1,789
DCerivative assels 28 74 475
Investmenis 28 1,329 1.243
Income fox 103 74
Cash and coshequivalents 20 1,596 27224
Total current assets B = ; . 8,274 7,255
Total ossets . . _ _ - - 205 21.752
Current ligbilities
Liabifities classified s held for sale 7 - 114
Lease liabilities 11 (338) 1320}
Loans and overdrafts 21 L1aY¥) [157]
Trade and other payables 22 (3.000) 13.165)
Derivative liakilities 28 {69) 1205)
Income tax (117) (170)
Provisions o ) 23 (55) 187}
Total curren! liabilities - o (3.748) (4178)
Non-cument liabifities
Lease liabilities N (2,852) {2,955}
Loans 21 (394) 481
Pravisions 23 {48) 128)
Defered tax liabilities 15 (642) [664)
Employee bemefirsﬂljob%mies i4 {75) {84}
Total non-cument liabiliies - {4,011) (421%]
Tofalliabilities o (7.759) (8,330}
Nefcssets o 13,156 13.422
Equity
Issued capital 24 - -
Share premium 382 382
Other raserves 24 101 97
Translalion ieserve 24 22) 235
Hedging reserve 24 1 84
Retained earnings 7,733 7.308
Tolat equily alfribulable to equity shareholders o 8195 8106
Non-contraling interests - ) 491 5316
Total equity T e 12,156 13,422

The financial statements on pages 13 to 77 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 December 2023 and were

signed on its behalf by:

A\l
{

A

Sir Guy Weston
Chairman
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

T T
£m £
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 1,384 1153
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets {27} 116}
Profits less losses an sale and closure of businesses m 23
Transaclion costs 4 5 é
Fronce income & (114) {44}
Finance expense [ 131 114
Other financial income & (25) 1403
Share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates 13 {124) [109)
Amortisation B4 71
Depreciofion (including depreciation of ight-of-use assets) 815 814
Impairment/ [Reversal of impairment] of property, plant & equipment and right-of-use assets 5 113}
Impaoirment of invesiment properties 14 &
Exceptional items 4 109 206
Acquired inventory fair value adjustments 3 5
Effect of hyperinflationary economias 14 16
Net change in the fair value of curent biclogical cssets (11} 18)
Share-bosed payment expense 26 18 19
Pensicn costs less contributions (8) 7
Increqse in inventories (?9) {744]
Increase In receivables (104} [288)
IDecrease)/increase in payables (18) 514
Purchases less sales of current biclogical assets (?) 14)
[Decreqse|fincrease In provisions o o - - (27) 7
Cash generated from operations 2014 1,479
Income fexespaid B4 GBIy
Net cash generated from operating activities 3 - B - o o 1,665 1164
Cash low from investing activities
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 13 109 6
Purchase of property. plant and equipment (1,004) [683)
Purchase of intangibles (79) 92}
Sate ol property. plant and eguipment 48 30
Purchase of investment properties (45} {43}
Sale of iInvestment properties 3 34
Purchase of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 25 (34} [154)
Sale of subsiciaries, joint venfures and ossociates .1 2
Purchase of non-current investments {26) [55)
Redemgpiion of non-cument invesiments 19 24
Purchase of curent investrments 27 (1,68%) {1,201}
Redemphon of/decrease in current investments 27 1.640 1.07¢
Interest and dividends received - 54 26
Net cash used in investing activifies T (798) (957}
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid to non-controling interests (163) 1180}
Dividends paid o equity shareholders 8 (128) 104)
Interest paid (119} 1114)
Lecse incentives received 52 46
Repayment of lease liabilities 27 (312} [325)
Decrease in shod-term loans 27 (13) {58)
Increase n long-ferm loans 27 - 179
Purchase of shares in subsidiary undertaking from non-controling interests 32 (448)
mMovemen! rom changes in own shares held . (44) 150)
Nel cash used in financing acfivities . (1,167} (608}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 27 (500) 1397}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2,100 7,423
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o o {73) 74
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 27 1,527 2,100
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

far the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

T T ANy holders ‘on-
lssuedd Shore Other =elaned 3 Talal
copnla pramium roseres 20 wls Teatzl B [SIN Y
kot £m im i £m £im - £
, 382 ?5. 6.617 7099 4598 11,697
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement - - - - - 445 443 338 783
Remeasurements of defined benelit schemes 14 - - 451 45] 374 825
Defared tax asseciated with delined benelit schemes - - 1109 {i0%) 90 (199
ltems that will not be reclassified o profit or loss - - - T T A a4z 284 626
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - - 240 - 240 208 445
Net loss on hedge of net investment in foreign subsidianes - - - {1} - [ i)
Net gain on other investments held ot fairvalue through
olher comprehensive income - - 3 - - 3 1 4
Movernent in cash flow hedging position 228 - 228 191 419
Defarred tax associated wilh movements in cash flow B - 15} - 115) [13) 128)
hedging position
Deferred tax associated with movements in other [ - - - {1) - (N
investments
Share of other comprehensive ncome of jont ventures - - - 15 - - 15 13 25
ond associates
Effect of hypennflationary economies -- 25 25 21 46
tterms that are or maty be subsequently reclassified to T - - 2 254 213 25 494 418 912
profit or loss o
Other comprehensive income -2 2sa 23 367 836 702 1,538
Totdl comprehensive income - - 2 25 213 8i2 1,281 1040 237
Inventory cash flow hedge movements
Losses fransferred to cost of inventory - - {153] - [153) (127} (280}
Total inventory cash fiow hedge movement - - - - {153 - 153 (127} (280]
Transacfions with owners
Dividends paid to equily shareholders 8 - - - - - 1104} (104} - [104)
MNet movemeant in own shares held - - - - - 118} (16) 115) 1314
Dafered tax associated with share-based payments - - - m 4] - mn
Civicends pcid to non-confroling interests . - - - - = liegy (e
Total fransachions with owners - == 121} (121} (195)  (314)
Batance s ot 17 September 2022 - 382 ?7 235 84  7.308 8,106 5316 13.422
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the pericd recognised in the income siatemant - - - - - 418 418 431 1,099
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes 14 - - - - - (3 (3) {3) (6)
Defered tax associaled with defined benefit schemes - - - - - 2 2 2 4
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - - - - m (1) (1) (2)
Effect of movements in forgign exchange - - - {255) - - (255) [218) (473)
Net loss on hedge of nel investment in fareign subsicianes - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Deferred tax associated with movements in foreign - - - (3} - - (3) (2) {5
exchange
Cumrent tax associoted with movemeants in foreign - - - 3 - - 3 3 [3
exchange
Movement In cash flow hedging position - - - - (148) - {148) (114) (260)
Defered tax associated with moverments in cash flow - - - - 2 - 22 18 40
hedging position
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures - - - {10} - - 0 (8) (18}
and associates
Effect of hypernfiationary economies - - - - - 22 22 18 40
Iterns that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss - - - (264) (124) 22 (388) (303) (66%)
in@r comprehensive income - - - (264) (124) 21 (347} (304} (671)
Tolal comprehensive income - - - (264} (124) 437 251 177 428
Inventory cash flow hedge movements
Losses fransferred o cost of inventory - - - - 38 - 38 30 48
Totdl inveniory cash flow hedge moverments - - - - 38 - 38 30 48
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid fo equity sharehalders 8 - - - - - (128) (128) - [128)
Net movement in own shares held - - - - - (16) (16} (12) (28}
Acquisition of nen-coniroling interests - - 4 7 3 71y (5N (387) (444)
Defered tax assccialed with share-based payments - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividends paid fo non-contralling inferests - - - - - - (1e3) (143}
Total fransachions with owners - - 4 7 3 (214} (200) (562) {762)
Balance as al 16 September 2023 - 382 101 (22) 1 7,733 8,195 4,961 13,156
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies
wittington Investments Limited is a private company

imited by shares incorporated and registered in England,
United Kingdaom.

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the
52 weeks ended 16 September 2023 comprise those of the
Company and its subsidiaries {the 'Group') and its interests
in joint ventures and associates.

The directors quthonsed the consolidated financial
statements forissue on 15 December 2023,

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared and approved by the directors in accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards {'UK
Adopted IFRS').

Given the materiality of the ABF (Associated British Foods
plc) busingss segment and for ease of cross-reference to
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide additional infarmation in the
notes which follow setting out the conftribution of the ABF
business segment to the consclidated financial statements
of the Group. For clarity, all references fo the ABF business
segment are shown in ifalics in the notes to these
statements and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF.

The directors have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Conarally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial
Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'.
These are presenied on pages 74 10 79.

Basis of preparation

The Company presents its consolidated financial
stiatements in sterling, rounded to the nearest million
lexcept where otherwise indicated), prepared on the
historical cost basis except that current biological assats
held by ABF {Associcted British Foods plc) and certain
financial instruments are stated at fair value. Assets
classified as held for sale are stated af the lower of
carying amount and fair value tess costs fo sell.

The preparation of financial statements under UK-
Adopted IFRS requires management to make judgements.
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts
of assets and licbilities, income and expenses and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The eslimales
and associated assumptions are based on experience.
Actuai resulls may differ from these estimates.

ludgements made by management in the application of
UK-Adopted IFRS that have asignificant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment next year, are discussed in
Accounling estimates and judgements detailed in note 2.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on aregular basis, Revisions to accounhing estimates are
recognised from the period in which the estimates are
revised.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
to all periods presented, except where stated otherwise,

Details of new accounting standards which came into
force in the year are set out at the end of this note.

The Group's consalidated financial statements are
prepared to the Saturday nearest to 15 September,
Accordingly, thaese financial statements have been
prepared for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023
{2022 - 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022).

To aveid delay in the preparafion of the consolidated
financial statements. the results of certain subsidiaries, jaint
ventures and associates are included up to 31 August
aach yvear and Fortnum and Mason plc is included up to ¢
July 2023, Adjustments are made as appropriate for
significant transactions or evenls occurmng between 146
September and these other balance sheet dales.

The Group's business activities, togetner with factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out in the Strategic report on pages 1 to 6.
The Principal risks and uncertaintias on page 5 and note
28 on pages 51 10 62 provide details of the Group's palicy
on managing its financial and cammaodity risks. The Group
has considerable financial resources, good access to
debt markets, a diverse range of businesses and a wide
geographic spread. It s therefore well placed to manage
business risks successiully.

Climate change

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management has considered the impact of climate
change. particularly in the context of the Non-Financial
and Sustainability Information Statement set out on pages
3 to 4 and our sustainability targels. These consideraficns
did not have a material impact on the financial reporting
judgements and estimates, consistent with the dssassment
that ciimate change is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's going concern assessment 1o June
2025 nor the viability of the Group over the next three
years.

Management has considered the impact of climate
change on a number of key estimates within the financial
statements, including the estimates of future cash fiows
used inimpairment assessments of the carrying value of
goodwill and other non-current assets. The assessment
with respect to the impact of climate change will be ket
undler review by management, as the future impacts
depend on factors outside of the Group's contral, which
arc not all currently known.

Going concern

The globalinflationary pressures tiggered inifially by
COVID-192 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations orinvestments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in ecanomic uncertainty in almost all of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has acdversely
impacted commodity casts and supply chains as well as
wage costs, Our management teams in all business
segments continue to monitar costinflation closely. Whilst
there are earlysigns of costinflation descreasing in many
parts of the global economy, the emergence ot conflictin
the Middle East has added further risk to an alreody fragile
geopolifical and economic environment, lis impacts on
the Group's trading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the cument crises in Ukraine and the
middle East.on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses fa inflafion.

However, the directors believe the Group's reslience has
been evidenced by the year-on-year growth in operating
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1, Significant Accounting policies continued
cash flows in excess of £1bn set out in these slatements.
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foresesable
future. For this recsan they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Having reviewead the Board's best estimate of future cash
flow to June 2025, and having applied reverse stress tests,
the possibility that the financial headrcom could be
exhausted is considered to be extremely remote. The
directors understand the risks, sensitivities and judgements
included in the cash flow forecast and have o high
degree of confidence in these cash flows. There |s
substantial financicl headroom between this cash flow
forecast and the cash on hand and funding available to
the Group over the period. Thisis evidenced by the net
cash position before lease abilities for the Group of
£2.34bn at 16 September 2023 (2022: £2.83 bn).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stalements include the results
of the Company and its subsidiarias from the date that
control commences to the date that control ceases.

They dlso include the Group’s share of the after-fax results,
other comprehensive income and nel assets of its joint
ventures and associates on an equity-accounted basis
from the paint at which joint contrel or significant
influence respectively commences, to the date that it
ceqses.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power, directly
or indirectly, to direct the relevant activities of an entity so
as to affect significantly the returns of that entity.

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in ¢ subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of controd are accounted for
within equity.

All the Group’'s [cint arrangements are jcint venfures,
which are entities over whose activities the Group has joint
control, typically estaklished by contractudt agreement
and requiring the venturers’ unanimous consent for
strategic financial and operating decisions.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, being the power to participate in the
financial and operaling policy decisions of the entity, but
which does not amount to confrol or joint control.

wWhere the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in a
joint venlure or associate, the carrying amount is reduced
fo zere and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
an investee,

Control, joint control and significant influence are
generally assessed by reference to equity shareholdings
and voting rights.

Business acquisitions

On acquisition of a business, the Group atftributes fair
voilyes to the idenhiiable assets, laklifes and confingent
iakilities acquired. reflecting condilions al the date of
acauisition. These include aligning accounting palicies
with those of the Group.

The Group finalises provisional foir values within 12 months
of the clate of acquisition and. where significant. reflects
them by restatement ot the comparative period in which
the acquisition occured. The Group measures non-
controlling interests at the proportionate share of the net
identifiable assets acquired.

The Group remeasures existing equity interasts in the
acquiree to fair value at the date of acquisition, with any
resulting gain or loss taken to the income statement.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is the excess
of the remeasured camrying amount of any existing equity
nterest plus the fair value of consideration poyable for the
additional siake over the fair value of the share of net
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired (including
separately identified Intfangible assets), net of non-
controlling interests, Total consideration does not include
fransaction costs, which the Group expenses as incured.

The Group measures contingent consideration at fair
value at the date of acquisition, classified as a liability or
equity (usually as a liability).

Other than for the finalisation of provisional tair values, the
Group accounis for changes in contingent consideration
classified as a liability in the income statement.

Exceptional iterns

Exceptional items are those items that, in the judgement
of the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue
of thelr nature, size or incidence. ltems that may be
considered exceptional in nature include disposals of
businessas or significant assets, business restructunngs,
significant onerous contract charges/releases, debt
repurchase costs, certain pension past service
credits/costs, asset impairments/write-backs and the tax
effects of these items.

The Group distinguishes between exceptional and non-
exceptional impairments/write-backs on the basis of the
underlying driver of the impdirment. as well as the
magnitude of the impairment. Drivers that are deemed 1o
be outside of the control of the Group give rise to
exceptionalimpairments, Additionally, impairment
charges that are of g one-off nature and significant
enaugh value to distort the underlying results of the
business are considerad to be exceptional.

Revenue

Revenue represents the value of sales made to customers
after deduction of discounts, sales taxes and a provision
far returns. Discounts include sales rebates, price
discounts, customer incentives, certain promotional
activities and similar items. Revenue does not include sales
between Group companies.

The Group recognises revenue when performance
obligations are satisfied, goods are deliverad o customers
and confrol of goods is fransferred 1o the buyer.

In the Food businesses of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods on dispatch or
delivery to custormers, dependent on shipping terms, and
provides for discounts and returns as @ reduction to
revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management's best estimate of the amount required to
meet claims by customers, taking info account
confractual and legal abligatians, historical trends and
past experience.

In the Retail business of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods when a
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

tor the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continved

customer purchases goods. and provides for returns as o

reduction to revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management's best estimate of the amount required to

meet claims by customers, taking intc account historical

frends gnd past experence,

Borrowing costs

The Group accounts for borrowing costs using the
effective interast method. The Group capitalises
borowing costs directly attibutable to the acguisition,
construction or production of qualifying items of praperty,
plant and equipment as part of their cost,

Foreign currencies

Individual Group companies record transactions in foreign
currencies af the exchange rate at the date of the
fransaction, and transiate monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign curencies at the exchange rate al the balance
sheet date, with any resulling differences taken fo the
income statement, unless designated in a hedging
relationship. in which case hedge accounting applies.

On consolidafion. the Group translates the assets and
liakilities of operations denominated in fareign currencies
into sterling at the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The Group translates the income sfatements of
those aperations into sterling at average exchange rates.

The Group records differences ansing frem the
retransiation of opening net assets of Group campanies,
together with differences arising from the restatement of
the net results of Group comparnies from average
exchange rates to those at the balance sheet date, in the
fransiation reserve in equity.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Group's pension and other post-employment benefit
arangements comprise defined beneafit plans, defined
contribution plans and other unfunded posi-employment
plans.,

For defined benefit plans, the income statement charge
comprises the cost of benefits earned by members and
benefit improvements granted to members during the
year, as well as net interest ncome/(expense) calculated
by applying the liability discount rate to the apening net
pension asset or liability.

The Group records the difference between the market
value of scheme assets and the present value ot scheme
liakilities on a scheme-by-scheme basis as net pension
assels [to the extent recoverable) or iabllities,

The Group recognises remeasurements and movements in
recoverable surpluses in other comprehensive income,

The Group charges canfributions payable in respect of
defined contnbution plans o operating profit as incurred.

The Group accounts for other unfunded post-employment
plans in the same way as defined benefit pians.

Income tax

Income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current ond deferred fax. The Group recognises income
tax in the income statement except 1o the extent that it
relates to items taken directly to equity.

Current tax is the tox expected to be payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted for the period, together with any
adjustment to tax payable inrespect of prior periods.
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The Group provides for deferred fax using the balance
sheet liakility method, providing for temporary differences
between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reparting purposes and the amounts used for tax
oUrposes.

The Group does not provide for the following temporary
differences: initial recognition of goodwill; initial
recognifion of assets ar fabilifies affecting neither
accounting nor taxable profit other than those acquired
in a business combination; and dfferences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group bases the amount of deferred tax provided on
the expected manner of recalisation or settlement of the
carying amount of assets and liobilities, using tax rates
enacied or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

The Group recognises deferred tax assets only to the
extent that itis probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised.

The Group offsets defermred fax assefs and iabilifies if, and
only if. it has a legally enforceable ight to set off current tax
assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable enfity or different laxable entities
which intend either to seltle curent tax liabiliies and assels
on a net basis, or to redlise the assets and settle the liabilties
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred 1ax liabilities or assets are expected to
he settled or recovered,

As required by IAS 12, we have applied the exception to
recagnising and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

The Group recognises income tax arising from dividend
distributions at the same time s the liability o pay the
related dividend.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises financial assets and liabilities when it
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
relevant financial instrument,

Trade and other receivables

The Group records frade and other receivables initially at
fair value and subbsequently at amortised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected cradit loss provision, which Ts recognised based
on management's expectation of losses without regard fo
whether or not o specific impairment trigger has occurred.

Other non-current receivables

Other non-current receivables comprise finance lease
receivables due from ajoint venture and minority
shareholdings in private companies. The Group accounts
for finance lease receivables in the same way as for trade
and other recervables.

The Group records minarity sharehaoldings in designated
privaie companies inftially at fair value, including directy
attricutable fransaction costs, and subsequently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI).

Cn disposal of a minority sharehaolding, the cumulative
gain or foss previausly recognised in other comprehensive
income s included directly in retained earnings, without
recycling it to the income staterment.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continved

Bank and other borrowings

The Group records bank and other barrowings initially at
fair value, which equals the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs, and subsequently at amortised cost. The
Group accounts for finance charges, including premioms
payable on seftflement or redemption and direct ssue
caosts, using the effective interest rate method,

Trade payables

The Group records trade payables initially at fair value
and subsequently al amortised cost. This generally results
in recognition at nominal value.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as valued at amortised cost or fair value through profit
and loss {FVTPL). The classification of financial assets
depends on the financial asset's cash flow characteristics
and the business model for managing them. Financial
assets at amortised costs are subject to impairments with
gains and losses being recognised In the profit and loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired. Financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss are typically
held for frading and are caried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit and loss. Equity investments
where the Company does not have significant influence.,
control or joint control are measured at FVTPL.

Cuash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balances, call deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or jess.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the Group
includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Non-gperating infangible assets are intangible assets that
arise on business combinations and typically include
technology, brands, customer relationships and grower
agreements. The Group acguires cperating intangible
assets in the ordinary course of business, typically including
computer software, land use rights and emissions trading
licences.

The Group records intangible assets other than goodwill at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges.

Amortisation is charged to the income staterment on a
straight-ine basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assels from the date they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives are generdlly deemed to be no
longer than:

up to 15 years
up o 10 years
u to 10 years
-up to 10 years

Technology and brands
Customer relalionships
Grower agreemernts
Opemting intangibles

Goodwill

Goodwillis defined under '‘Busingss acquisitions’ on page
19, Certain commercial assets associated with the
acquisition of a business are not capable of being
recognised in the acquisition balance sheet. Insuch
circumstances, goodwillis recognised, which may include,

but is not necessarily limited fo, workforce assels and the
benefits of expected future synergies.

Goodwil is subject to an annual impairment review.

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
assets and property. plant and equipment at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. if any such indication exists, the
Group estimates the indicated asset's recoverable
amount, For goodwill and intangibles without a finite Ife,
the Group does this at least annually,

The Group recognises an impairment charge in the
income statement whenever the carrying amount of an
assel or ifs CGU exceeds ils recoverable amount.

The Group allocates impairment charges recognised in
respect of CGUs first ta reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill relating to that CGU and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
ratd pasis.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assels is the greater of their
fair value lass costs to sell and thelr value in use. In
assessing value in use, the Group discounts estimated
future cash flows ta present value using a pre-tax discount
rate reflective of current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows, the Group determines recoverable amount
for the CGU o which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

The Group does not subsequently reverse Impairments of
goodwil. For other assets. the Group does reverse an
impairment charge if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, but
only 1o the extent thal the new carrying amount does not
excead the carying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amorhsation, if no
impairment charge had previously been recognised.

Property, plant & equipment
The Group records property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumnulated depreciation and impairment charges.

The Group charges depreciation to the income statement
on g straight-line basis over the estimated useful
aconormic lives of each item sufficient to recduce i toifs
estimated rasidual value. Land is not depreciated.
Estimated useful economic lives are generally deemed to
be no longer than;

Freehold buildings up o &b years
Plant and equipment, fixtures and fitiings

- sugar factores, yeast plonts, mills and up to 20 yeors

bakeries
- olther operations up lo 12 years
Vehicles up 1o 10 years

Sugar cane roots up to 10 years

Leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor convays o
the lessee, inrefurn for a payment or a series of payments,
the right to use a specific assel for an agreed period.

Where the Group is a lessee, the following accounting
policy is applied.
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for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continved

Right-of-use assets

The Group records righl-of-use assets al cost ot the
commencement date of the tease. which is the date the
underlying assetis availakle for use, less any accumutated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
subsequent remeasurement of lease liabilifies.

Cost includes the amount of lease labilities recognised,
initicl direct costs incurred., and lecse payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received.

The Group charges depreciation fo the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

The Group records lease liabilities at the commencemeant
date of the lease at the prasent value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term, discounted using the
incremental borowing rate at the commencement date
of the lecse if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
recadily determinable.

Lease payments include fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, and varnable lease payments
that depend on anindex or a rate, less any lease
incentives receivable.

variable lease payments that do not depend on ain index
or ¢ rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the cvent or condition that triggers the payment
OCCLrs.

The Group subsequently measures lease liakilities at
amortised cost using the effective inferest rate method.
The Group recorcs the accretion and seftlement of
interest through accruals and reduces the carrying
amount of lease liabilities for the copitol element of lease
poyments made.

The camying amount of lease liabilities is also remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments due to o
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance
fixed lecse payments or a change in the assessment of
whether to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase oplion. It also applies the low-value asset
recognition exemption to groups of underlying leases
considered uniformly low-value.

The Group expenses lease payments on sharf-term leases
and leases of low-value assets in the income siatement as
incurred.

Lessor accounting

When subleasing assets. the Group assesses the sublecse

classification with reference to the head lease right-of-use
asset, which considers, among other factars, whether the
sublease represents a majority of the remaining life of the

head leasa.

The ratio of rental income to head lease rental payments
is used to determine how much of the right-of-use asset
shiould be derecognised. faking into account whether the
sublease/head lease are above or below market rate,
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The Group records amounts due from lessees under
finance leases as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investiment in the lease, calculated using the
incremental borrowing rate al the date of recognition.
The Group recognises any difference between the
derecognised nght-of-use asset and the newly recognised
amounts due from lessees under inance leases In the
nceme statement.

The Group recognises finance income over the lease
term, reflecting o constant periodic rate of return on the
netinvesiment in the leose.

The Group recognises operaling lease incomea as earned
on a straight-ine basis over the lease term.

Inventories

The Croup records inventaries at the lower of cost and net
redlisable value. Costincludes raw maierials, direct labour
and expenses and an appropriate proportion of
production and other overheads, calculated on a first-in
first-out basis.

The Group recordds retail inventories at the lower of cost
and netrealisable value using the retail method,

calculated on the basis of selling price less apprapriate
trading margin. Ali retail inventories are finished goods.

On acquisition of a business, the Group records invenlories
at fair value. Subseguently, the Group charges the book
value of the inventories fo adjusted operating profit as
they are sold or used. Any fair value uplift, if significant, is
charged below adjusted operating profit as the
inventaries are sold or used.

Investment property

Investment properties are held at cost tess provision for
impairment. Impairment is determined by reference ta the
fair value of property estimated either by independent
valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is provided where
the directars consider ihal the residual value of majar
components of the property is less than current book
voilue.

The following accounting policies relate exclusively fo the
income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the
Associafed Brifish Faods plc ("ABF"} segment within the
consolidated Group financial statemenfs of Wiflington
investments Limifed.

Share-based payments

The Group recogrises the far value of share awards af
gront date as an employee expense with g coresponding
increase in equity. spread over the period during which
the employees become unconditionally entifted to the
shares.

The Group adjusts the amount recognised fo reffect
expected and actuallevels of vesting except where the
failure to vestis os a result of nof mecting a market
condifion.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group primarily uses derivatives fo manage economic
exposure to financial and commeaodity nsks. The prncipal
instruments used are foreign cxchange and commaodity
contracts, futures, swaps or opftons. The Group does not
use derivatives for speculative purposes.

The Group recognises derivatives af fair value based on
market prices or rates, or calculated using discountfed
cash flow or option pricing models.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

tor the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

The Group recognises changes in the fair value of
derivatives in the income stalemoent unless the derivative is
designated in a hedging relationship, when recognifion of
the change in fair value depends on the nature of the
tern being hedged.

The purpase of hedge accounting is to mitigate the
impact on the Group of changces in foreign exchange or
interest rates and carnmodity prices.

At the inception of each hedging refaticnship, the Group
documents the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the
rsk manogement objectives and strategy for underfaking
the hedge and assesses hedge effectiveness.

During the life of each hedging relationship, the Group
performs fesfing fo demaonsfrafe that the hedge remams
cffective.

For derivatives used as hedges of future cash flows, the
Group recogniscs the change in foir value through other
comprehensive income in either the cesf of hedging
reserve (for the element of the change in fair value
relating to the currency spread) or in the hedging reserve
{for the remaining change in fair value}. Any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income
staterment.

When the future cash flow results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or igbility, then at the time that assef
or liability is recognised, the Group includcs the
associotod gains and losses provicusly recognited in the
hedging rescrve in the initial measurement of thaf asset or
licibitity.

wWhen the future cash How does not resultin fhe
recognition of a non-financiatl assct or habifity, the Group
includes the associated gains and losses previously
recognised in fthe hedging reserve in the income
statement in the same period in which the hedged item
affects profif or loss.

Hedges of the Group's net investrent in foreign
operafions principally comprise borrowings in the curency
of the investment's net assets.

For derivalive or nun-desivaltive financial instruments used
as hedges of the Group's net investmeant in foreign
cperations, the Group recogniscs the change in far volue
through other comprehensive income in the net
investment hedging roscrve, Any ineffective portion is
recognised immedialely in the income statement.

The Group discontinuves hodge accounting when o
hedging instrument expires or is soid, terminafed,
exercised, of no fonger quulifies for hedge accounting.

At that ime, the Group retains the cumulative associoted
gain or loss recognised in the hedging reserve untd the
forecast ransaction occurs. Gaing or [osses on hedging
instruments relating to an underlving exposure that no
longer exists are taken to the income statement.

The Group economically hedges foreign currency
exposure on recognised moneiary assels and abdifics but
docs net normally scok hedge accounting. The Group
records any denvafhives held to hedge this exposure af fair
value through profif and foss.

Research and development
The Group cxpenscs research and development
expeonditure as incurred, unfess development expenditure

relates to products or processes which are fechnically and
commoeorcially feasibic, in which case it is capitalised. The
Group records capitalised development expenditure at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges.

Current Biological Assets
The Group records current biologicol assets at fair value
less costs to sell.

The basis of valuation for growing canc is estimated
sucrose content valued ot estimated sucrose price for fthe
following season, less the esfimated costs for harvesting
and transport.

When harvested, growing cane (s tronsfored fo inventory
at fair value less costs fo sefl.

Grants

The Group recognises granits only when thaere s
regsonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions atfached and that the grants will be received.
Grants receivable as compensation for expenses already
incurred are recognised in profif ar foss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Hyperinflation

Tho Argeniinfan economy was designatced
hyperinflationary from 1 fuly 2018. The Turkish economy
was designated hyperinflationary from 1 July 2022

The Group has applied {AS 29 Finoncial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies o the Group's Argentinian
operations from the beginning of the 2019 financial year
and torits turkish operafions from the beginning of the
2022 finoncial year. 1IAS 29 requires that hyperinflationary
adjustments are reflected from the start of the reporting
period in which it is applied. For the Group's Argentinian
operations this was | September 2018, and for the Group's
Turkish opcrations this was 1 Soptomber 2021

The adjustments required by IAS 29 are set out below:

adjustiment of historical cost non-monetary assets and
liapilities from their date of inihal recognifion fo the
balance sheet date 1o reflect the changes in
purchasing power of the currency cawsed by inflation,
according to the official indices for Argentina
pubklished by the Mederacion Argentina de Consejos
Profesicnales de Ciencias Economicas (FACPCE) and
for Turkey published by Turkish Statistical Insfitufe
{"TUIK");

adjustment of the companents of the income
stafement and cash flow staterment for the nflahon
index since fheir generation, with a balancing entry in
the income statement and o reconciling item in the
cash flow statement, respectively;

adjustment of the income statement to reflect the
impact of inflation on holding maonetary assefs and
Nabilities in focal curency:

the financial statements of the Group's Argentinian
and Turkish operations have been translated into
sterling at the closing exchange rate at 16 September
2023 {ARS 433.88:£1, TRL 33.45:£1): and

the cumulative impact corresponding fo provious
veaors has been reflected in other comprehensive
income in the veaor.

in Argenfing, the FACPCE index was 9111316 at 31 August
2022 and 2044 2632 at 31 August 2023, The inflation index
for the yeaor s therefore 2.244,
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for the 52 weeks ended 146 Seplember 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

In Turkey, the TUIK index was 80.21 ot 31 August 2022 and
58.94 gt 31 August 2023. The inflation index for the yeor is
therofore 0,735,

The Venerueslan cconomy has been designated
hyperinflationary for a number of years, but fhe impact on
the Group's resulfs rermains irmmicaterial

New accounfing policies

The following accounting standards and amendments
were adopted durlng the year and had no significant
impact on the Group:

Reference fo the Conceplual Framewark
{Amendments to IFRS 3)

Property, Plant and Equicment: Proceeds betorg
Intended Use {Amendments 1o 1AS 14)

Oneious Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
{Amendments to |1AS 37)

Annual Improvements fo IFRS 2018-2020

The Group is assessing the impact of the following
standards, interpretations and amendments thal are not
vet effective. Where already endorsed by the UKEB, these
changes will be adopted on the effective dates noted.
where not vet endorsed by the UKEB, the adoption date is
less certain:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, Amendments to IFRS 17,
Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparatfive
Information, effective 2024 financial year

Disclosure of Accounting policies [Amendments to [AS
1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2}, effective 2024
financia! year

Definition of Accounting Estimates [Amendments fo
IAS 8). effective 2024 financial year

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liakilifies arising
from a Single Transaction (Amendments fo IAS 12},
effective 2024 financial year

- Lease Ligkility in a Sale and Leaseback ([Amendments
to IFRS 14}, effective 2025 financial year

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules
[Amendments to [AS 12), effective 2024 financial year

'Clossification of Liakilities as Current or Non-current
and Non-current Liabilifies with Covenants
[Amendments to |AS 1), effective 2025 financial year

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments 1o 1AS 7
and IFRS 7). effective 2025 financial year

Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changesin
Foreign Exchange Rales: Lack of Exchangeability,
etfective 2024 financial year {not yet endorsed by the
UKEB)

2. Accounfing estimates and judgements

In applying the accounting policies detailed on pages 18
fc 24, the directors have made estimatesin a number of
areas. The actual cutcome may differ from those
estimates. Key sources of estimalion uncerfainty at the
balance sheet date, with the potential for material
adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are set out below.

24 wittingtan Investments  Fiagncial Stalerrents 2023

Forecasts and discount rales

The carrying values of o numker of items on the balance
sheet are dependent on estimates of future cash flows
arising from the Group's operations and investments
which, in some circumstances, are discounted to amve at
a net present value.

Assassment for impairmeant involves comparing the book
value of an gsset with its recoverable amount (being the
higher of value in use and {air value less costs 1o sell).
Value in use is determined with reference to projected
future cash flows discounted at an appropriate rate. Both
the cash flows and the discount rate involve o significant
degree of estimation uncerlamnty.

Further details are included in note ¢ for intangible assets.
note 10 for property, plant and equipment and note 12 for
investment property.

The recovery of defered tax assets is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profis. The Group
recognises deferred tax assels to the extent that it is
considerad probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be
available in the future. This involves a significant degree of
estimation uncertainty.

When considering sources of fulure taxable profit. the
Group firstly considers existing deferred tox liabilities.
However, the majority of deferred fax assets are
recognised based on future profit forecasts, including the
deferred tax assets in ABF's most material jurisdictions of
the United Kingdom. the United States, Australia, Germany
and Spain.

When relying on profit forecasts, ihe assessment of
whether to recognise deferred tax assets is based on the
following year's budget and expectations of the future
nerformance of individual businesses {or groups of
businesses in the case of national tax groups). Where
possible, this is consistent with forecasts used for
impairment assessments. Farecaosts for impairment
assessments are discaunted, but this is not permitted for
recagnition of deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets are reduced when itis no longer
considered probable that the related tax benefit will be
redlised,

The widespread nature of the ABF's activities acrass
multiple junisdictions means that it is not practical to
provide detailed sensitivities in respect of individual
deferred tax assets,

Further details of deferred tax assels are included in note
15.

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar
arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with
IAS 19 Employee Benefits. The accounting valuations,
assessed using assumptions determined with independent
actuarici advice, resulted in a significant net surplus as at
16 September 2023, principally relating to the UK defined
benefit scheme, which is separately disclosed.

The net surplus is highly sensitive ta the market value of
scheme assets, to discount rates used in assessing
liabifities, to actuarial assumpticns {including price
inflation, rates of pension and salary increases, mortality
and other demographic assumptions) and 1o the level of
contributions.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
far the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

2. Accounting estimates and judgements
continued

Further details are included in note 14, including
associated sensitivities,

The following other areas of accounting estimates and
judgemenfs relate exclusively fo the income, expenditure,
assets and liabilities of the Associated British Foods pic
{“ABF") segment within the consolidated Group financial
statements of Witlington Investments Limited,

Biclogical assets

In valuing growing coane, estimating sucrose content
requires the Group to assess expected cane and sucrase
viclds for the following season considering weather
conditions and harvesting programmes. Estimating
sucrose price requires the Group to assess info which
markets the forthcoming crop witt be sold and assess
domestic and export prices as well as related foreign
currency exchange rates. The carying value of growing
cane ond associated sensitiviies is disciosed in note 19,

Income tax

The Group is exposed to a range of uncertain tax
positions. It provides for open fax matters, where it
believes it is probable that payrnents will be required.
including those for routine fax audits, which are by nature
complex and may take a number of years fa resolve.
Uncertainty is driven Dy fhe resolution of the issue and
estimation process in arriving at the amount. The Group
has recognised potential curent corporate fax fiabilities
for g number of uncertain tax posifions, none of which are
incividuaily matenal, the provision tor these uncorfam fax
positions was 2023 - £55m (2022 - £102m). The reduction in
the provision is due to the conclusion of UK fax audits
covering several businesses and vears. The majority of the
remaining provisions relate to transfer pricing risks across a
number of jurisdictions in which the Group has operafions.
Transfer pricing is a complex arca with resolufion of
matters taking many years, Given the underfyving nature of
these risks. the timing of when they will resolve is uncertain.

The Group applics IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax
Treatments to measure uncerfain tax positions. The Group
cafculates cach provision using managerneant’s best
estimate of the liabifity based on inferpretafion of tax law
in each jurisdiction and ocngoing monitoring of tax cases
and rulings. The Group believes it has adecquate provision
for these matters. Final conclusion of each mafter may
resutt in an oufcome different to any amaounts provided,
but the Group has concluded thaf this fs unlikefy fo have o
material impact.

wittingten Investments Financicl Srafements 2023
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

3. Our businesses

ABF has five opcrating divisions, as described below, pfus Central ABF. These are ABF's operating divisions, based on the
management and internal reporting structure, which combine businesses with common choracteristics, primanty in
respect of the type of products offered by cach business, but also the producfion processes involved and the manner of
the distribufion and sale of goods.

inter-division pricing is determined on an arm’'s length basis. Division result is adjusted operating profit, as shown on the
face of the consolidated income stafement. Division results include flemns directly attibutable to a division as woll os
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. ABF s comprised of the following operating divisions:

Grocery

The manufacture of grocery products, including hot beverages, sugar and swoctencrs, vegeltable oils, balsamic
vinegars, bread ond baked goods. cereals, ethnic foods. and meaf products, which are sold to retal, whalosale and
foodservice businesses.

Sugar
The growing and processing of sugar bect and sugar cane for sale fo industrial users and to Sitver Spoon, which is
included in the Grocery operating division.

Agriculture
The manufacture of animal feeds and the provision of other products and services for the agriculture sector.

Ingredients
The manufacture of bakers” yeost, bakery ingredionts, cnzymes., fipids, veast extracts and cereafl specialities.

Retail
RBuying and merchandising value clothing and accessaries through the Primark and Penneys retail chains,

In addition to ABF, the Group presents the revenue and adjusted operating profit of ‘Luxury retail” and *Other'. The latfer
includes the Group's 'Real Estale', ‘*Hotels” and "Private Markets & Other Investments” businesses, none of which are
individually material for separate disclosure. For more information see pages 1-2.

Adjusted operating profit

Adusted operating profif s a key alternative perfermance measure used in the ABF performance framework as outlined
in the Remuneration Report in the annual report and accounts of ABF on pages 100 to 115, Adjusted operating profit 1s
stated before amortisation of non-operafing intangibles, transaction costs, amortisation of far value adustments made
to acquired inventary, profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets and exceptional iterns.

ltems defined above which arise in the Group's jeint ventures and associates are also freated as adjusting items for the
purposes of adjusted operating profit.

A reconciliation of this measure is provided on the tace of the consolidated income statement.

Revergs __ Adsied ooerating profir
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £ £m Fii
Grocery 4,198 3.735 448 399
ingredients 2,157 1.827 214 159
Agricutliure 1.840 1,722 4] 47
Sugar 2,547 2016 149 162
Reterl 9,008 7697 735 756
Cenfral ABF - - {94} (88]
ABF Tofal 19.750 16,997 1.513 1.435
Luury reicil 246 224 g 7
Other ) ) o ~ 32 ) v {1%) ) 14
Group Total 20,028 17.258 1,503 1,456

Geographical information

United Kingdom 7.537 6,628
Eurepe, Middle East & Africa 7,553 6292
The Americas 2,421 2,029
Asict Pacific S o 2,517 2,309
Group Tolal o 20,028 17.258
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Septemizer 2023

4. Operating costs

ST AR T o Bnegrdaed Graup
2023 077 2023 2022

Mot £m Im £m 1
Operating costs
Costs of sales (including amertisation of intangibies) 15,587 13219 15,725 13,349
Distribution costs 1,603 14565 1,623 1481
Administration expenses 1,220 1,045 1,350 1,139
Exceptional tems 109 o206 0y 206
oo 18,519 15,935 18,807 16,175
Operaling costs are stated affer charging/{crediting):
Ermployee bernefits expense 5 3.158 2,812 3,222 2874
Armortisalion of non-operafing infangibles 9 38 44 38 44
Arnartisation of operating intangibles 9 44 24 48 27
Acguired inventory fair volue adjustments 3 5 3 5
Depreciation of owned property. plant & equipment 10 531 521 538 530
Depreciation of ight-of-use assets and non-cash lease
adjustments 11 273 281 277 286
Impairment of property, plant & equipment and right-of-use
cissels - - 5 13
Impaiment of investment property 12 - : 14 &
Transaction costs 5 ¢l 5 &
Effect of hypennflationary econamies 14 6 14 16
Other operating income (35) 25} (36) 31}
Research and development expenditure 42 37 a2 37
Fair value gains on financial assets and liabiities held for frading (1%} 23) (19) {23
Fair value losses on financial assets and liabilities held for 22 17 23 17
frading
Torcign cxchange gaing on operating activitie: (48) 136} {48) (37)
Foreign exchange losses on operating activities 62 37 42 37

Amortisation of non-operafing intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m) shown as an adjusting item in
includes £3m (2022 - £3m} incurred by joint ventures, in addition to the amounis shown above,

ihe income staterment,

Auditor's remuneration ABF Conss dured o
2023 2022 2023 202
£m Em £m £m

Fees payable 1o the Company's auditor and its associates in respeci of the
audit
Group audit of these financial statements - 0.2 0.2
Audit of Company's subsidiaries pursuan! 16 legisiation 10.2 G2 10.4 98
Total audif remuneration 10.2 0.2 104 100
Fees payable 1o the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of non-
oudit related services
Auditreloted assurance services 0.4 04 0.4 D.4
All other services - 0.6 0.5 Q.4 05
Total non-audit relale remuneration 1.0 0.9 1.0 0%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

4. Operating cosis continued

Exceptional items

2023

The income statement this year included g non-cash exceptional impairment charge of £109m. In the ABF Grocery
division, the Don business has been adversely affected by infiotionary prossures, a surplus supply of fresh pork in the
markef, labour canstrainfs and equipment reliability causing produchion shortfalls and oddifional ransportafion costs
following the unforeseen liquidation of its distribution partner, As a result, the Group has recognised impairment write-
downs of £3%9rm against property, plont and equipment, £1m agoinst right-of-use assets and £1m against infangible
assefs.

In the ABF Sugar division, north China recognised o £15m impairmont write down against property, piant and
equipment. This business was classified as held for sale In the previous year, buf the potential buyer withdrew their offerin
the second half of the yeor, Due to the severe flooding in Mozombigue, the relafed damage to the sugar crop fields
and the inabilify to plant for the foreseeable future, iifove Mozombique recognised a £25m mparment wrifc-down
against property, plant and equipment, £7m against current Blofogical assets, provided £2m for personnel costs and
wrote down inventory by £1m.

In the ABF Retail division, the Group recognised £13m of exceptional impairment charges relating to the German slore
portfolio, This primarily related to stores impaired in the previous year after additional right-of-use assefs were recognised
due to rent indexation adjustments. The Group also recognised a £4m charge including a £3m exceptional impairment
for the write-down of property, plant and equipment for the right-sizing of four further ABF German stores and £1m to
wiite down a freehold store.

2022

The income statement included an excoptional imparment charge of £206m comprising non-cash writcdowns of £72m
against property, plant and equipment and o write-down of £134m of right-of-use assets relating fo the capitolisation of
store leases for Primark. Also £49m of the £63m exceptional charge included in the Group's total tax charge for this
financial year was the de-recognition of the ABF deferred tax assets relating fo Germany.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

5. Employees and directors

| ABF ) Consoldater] Group
2023 2072 2023 P
£m L £m Lm
Average number of employees
Urited Kingdom 42,071 41,524 43,407 43.086
Eurcpe & Afnca 73,411 73,155 7341 73155
The Americas 6,769 o, 102 6,769 6,102
Asia Pacific 11,236 11,490 11,294 11,552
133,487 132,273 134,881 133,895
T - Apt | Conscligatod Grag
2023 2077 2023
MNale £m £m £m
Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries 2,657 2,350 2,714 2,406
Social secunty contributions 355 31 360 316
Contributions to defined contribution schemes 14 95 87 97 a9
Charge for defined benefit schemes 14 33 45 33 44
Equitysetiled share-bosed payment schemes 26 18 19 18 9
o 3,158 2812 3222 2876
"""""" 2023 2077
£'900 £000
Directors’' remuneration
Aggregate directors’ emoluments 6,374 6,095

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £4,100,000 (2022: £2,284,000). He is a member of a Group
pension scheme and his annual accrued pension at the period end was £754,291 (2022: £712.918).

Numoer of grects

s

2023 2022
Retirement benefits are accniing to the following nurmber of directors under:
Defined benefit scchemes 4 4
6. Interest and other financial and expense
D age T " Comsolidated Growp,
2023 0z2 2023 2072
Note £m Lin £m im
Finance income
Cash and cash equivalents 43 19 58 24
Far value gams oninvestments - - 57 8
Dividends receivable - - 1 2
48 19 . 116 44
Finance expense N T
Bank loans and overdrafts 23) {20) (23) (20}
All other borowings (LKD) (@) (1 8)
Fair value losses on investments - - {2} {4)
Lease liabilties =1} (81) (92} 82}
Other payables (3) i2) (3} (2
) (1289 (il (131) n1g)
Cther financial (expense}/income
Interest ncome on employee benefit scheme assets 14 185 84 185 &84
interest charge on employee benefit scheme liabilities 14 (123 {74) (123) {74)
Inferest charge on irecoverable surplus 14 (2) {1) (2) (1}
Net financial ncome inrespecl of employee benefit schemes 60 ¢ 40 ?
Net foreign exchange (lossesl/gains on financing activilies (20} 4 (34) 31
Total other financicl income 40 13 26 40
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tor the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

7. Income tax expense

- W Consolagred Group
2023 2025 2023 22
£m im £m £
Current tax expense
UK -- corporation fax at 21.8% {2022 - 19%)] 26 44 40
Overseqs —corporation 1ax 249 244 249
UK - {over)/under provided in prior periods {14} {12} (15)
Cverseas - under/over) provided in prior periods 18 LA
279 277 292
Deferred tax expense
UK deferred tox 54 18 51 22
Oversecs deferred lax 28 72 28 72
UK over provided in pricr periods (26} {3} (23) 13)
Overseas  over provided in prior periods I (- D {63) {8}
o 7 79 M 83
Total income tax expense in income statement N ) 2 358 285 370
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit kefore taxation 1,340 1.076 1,384 1,153
Less share of profit after tax from jaint ventures and associales (124 {109) {24 (109)
Profit before taxation excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and
associgles o 1.2156 967 1,260  1.044
Nominal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate of 21.8% (2022 - 19%) 265 184 274 193
Effect of higher and iower tax rates on overseas earmings (16) 4 (16) 4
Effec! of changes in tax rates on the income statement 5 2 5 3
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1] &3 b6 40
Disposal of assels coverad by lax exemptions or unrecognised capital losses 2) <} 2} 4
Deferred fax nol recognised 39 120 40 119
Adjusitients In respact of prior penods (85) {23) {83} (23}
Other tax adjustments L - - 13
S 272 356 285 370
Income tax recognised directly in equity
Deferred 1ox associoted with defined benefit schemes (4) 198 {4) 199
Defered tax associated with share-based paymenis (1 ! (n |
Deferred tox associoled with movements in cash flow hedging position (40) 28 {40) 28
Defered lax associated with movernent in foreign exchange 5 - 5 -
Curren! tax associated with movement in foreign exchange () (&) -
Defered lax assecicted with movements in other investments - ! - o
T (46) Co228 (48) 227

The UK corporation tax rate of 19% increased to 25% from | April 2023. The legislation to effect these changes was
enacted before the balance sheet date and UK deferred tax has been calculated accordingly.

In April 2019 the European Cormmission published its decision on the Group Financing Exemption in the UK's controlled
foreign company legislation. The Commission found that the UK law did not comply with EU State Aid rules in certain
circumstances. The Group has arrangements that may be impacted by this decision as might other UK-based
multinational groups thot had finarcing arangements in line with the UK's legislation in force at the fime. The UK
Govermment, the Group and a numibser of other UK companies appealed against this decision to the General Courl of
the European Union (*GCEU"). On & June 2022, the GCEU found in favour of the Commissian’s ariginal decision. As a
result of this, in August 2022, the UK Government, the Group and various other UK companies appealed GCEU's decision
to the Court of Justice of the European Union. We have calculated our maximum potential liability to be £26m (2022 -
£26m}, however we do not consider that any provision is required in respect of this amount based on cur curent
assessment of the issue. Following receipt of charging notices from HM Revenue & Customs ('HMRC'), we made
payments 1o HMRC in 2021, Cur assessment remains that no provision is required in respect of this amount. We will
confinue to consider the impact of the Commission's decision on the Group and the potential requirement to record o
provision,

In the second half of last year a deferred tax asset arose mainly in relation 1o the charge taken for the impairment of
property, plant and equiprment and store leases in Primark Germany. A significant proportion of this asset was deemed
not to be recoverable and was written off as an exceptional tax charge. Since then, further work has been undertaken
ta assess the amount of the deferred tax asset that is expected to be recoverable. This work determined that the
deferred tax asset at last year end was understated in eror.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

7. Income tax expense continuved

The directors believe that this understatement of the deferred tax asset was not material to the prior period financial
stalerments. Accordingly, an exceptional fax credil of £58m has been recognised in this year.

We recognise the importance of complying fully with all applicable tax laws as well a5 paying and collecting the right
amount of tax in every country in which the Group operates. Qur tax strateqy, approved by the Board, is based on
seven tax principles that are embedded in the financial and nen financial processes and controls of the Group. This tax
strategy is available in the Policies sectian of the Group's website.

Deferred taxation balances are analysed in note 15,

8. Dividends

2023
pence per e 2023 P
share 3o £m im
First inferim 78.50 71.25 [-1:] 62
Second inferim 69.50 42.00 60 42
148.00 120.25 128 104
9. Intangible assets
"""" N o T T Cperatng N
Grower
Goodwill Tecrnolagy Bramcts azesments Othar Omher Tota
im im £m im £m £m im
Cost
At 18 September 2021 1.236 214 429 271 109 5 406 2,870
Acquisitions - extermally purchased - - - - - - 141 141
Acguired through business combinations 85 49 33 4 - - - 173
Other disposals - - - - - - 14%] 149}
Transler to assets classified as held for sale - - 114 (14}
Effoct of hypernflaticnary cconomies 7 - - - - - - Y
Effect of movernents in foreign exchangs 84 22 26 13 1 - 33 179
Al17 September2022 1414 285 488 290 16 5 715 3307
Acquisitions — extermnally purchased - 4 - - 146 150
Acquired through business cormbinalions 39 i % 21 - - 3 74
Other disposals - - - 115) - (5) {&9) {8%)
Transfer from assets classified s held for sale - - - - - - 15 15
Elfect of hyperinflationary economies 2 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {79 [15] (15) [ {16} - (25) REIN
Al 16 Sepfember 2023 1,376 272 484 285 94 - 785 3,298
Amorisation and impairment
At 18 September 2021 112 195 372 200 107 5 286 1,279
Amaitisation for the year 7 22 15 27 71
Other disposais - - - (2} [2]
Transfer 1o assets classified as held for sale - - (4] 14}
Fffect of movements in foreign exchange 10 9 21 11 ] - 22 24
AL17 Seplember 2022 122 221 415 224 110 5 329 1,428
Amerlisation for the year - g 15 14 48 84
Other disposals - - {15] - {5] - {20)
Transfer from assets clossified os beld for sale - - - - - 4 4
Irmpairment - B - - - 1 1
Eifect of movements in foreign exchange (12 113) ) 8) {18} 1213 81
At14 Sepfember2023 __ho 217 419 17 4 - 3561 1,418
Net baok value
A1 17 September 2022 S 1292 44 73 b4 - - 3 1879
At 14 September 2023 1,264 55 47 48 - - 424 1,880

1 Al Goodwil and Non-operating 1 angible assets are ABF assets. Of tne ~otal Opearatiag In-angible assets of £424m (2022: £386m1). £414n- (2022

£375m) are A3F asse’s.

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no intangible assets (2022 - £12m) classified as assets held for sale
(see note 17}). Amortisation of non-operating intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m} shown as an adjusting item in the income
statement includes £3m (2022 - £3m) incurred by joint ventures, in addition 1o the amaunts shown above.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

9. Intangible assets continuved
Impairment

As at 16 Seplember 2023, the consolidaled balance sheet included goodwill of £1.266m (2022 - £1.272m). Goodwil is
adllocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs), or groups aof CGUs, thal are expecied to benefit from the

p”r.&”v ore hg

segmer s thin ABF (DR NRH 2023 2007

{50 or Groun of CGUs buainess segmien! rshe £m i
Acetum Grocery 13.5% 91 93
ACH Grocery 13.4% 193 208
AB nAaur ingredients 12.8% 267 2589
Twinings Ovaltine Crocery 13.6% 119 119
love Sugar 23.7% 89 105
AB World Foods Grocery 12.5% 78 79
Other (not individually significant] varous  vVarious 2% 399
T 1,266 1292

A CGU, or group of CGUs, to which goodwill has been allocated must be assessed forimpairment annually, or more
freciuently if events or circumstances indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. There has been no
change in CGUs or group of CGUs from the prior year.

The carying value of goodwill is assessed by reference fo its value in use reflecting the projected cash flows of each of
the CGUs or group of CGUs. These projections are based on the most recent budget and reflects management's
expeactations of sales growth, operating costs and margin, based on past experience and external sources of
information. Long-term growth rates for periods not covered by the annual budget reflect the products, industries and
countries in which the relevant CGU, or group of CGUs. operate.

Management expects to achieve growih over the next three to five years in excess of the long-term growth rates for the
applicable country or region. In these circumstances, budgeted cash flows are extended, generally fo between three
and five years, using specific growth assumptions and taking into account the specific business risks.

The key assumptionsin the most recent annual budget on which the cash flow projections are based relate to discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes in volurmes, selling prices and direct costs.

The cash How projections have been discounted using a pre-tox weighted average cost of capital for each business,
adjusted for country, industry and market risk. Inflation assumptions used to calculate discount rates are aligned with
those used in the cash flow projections. The rates used were between 10.2% and 23.7% (2022 — between 9.8% and
23.4%).

The long-term growth rates beyond the initial budgeted cash flows, appiied in the value in use calculations for goadwill

allocated to each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs that are significant to the total carrying amount of gaodwill. were in o
range between 0% and 6.0%. consistent with the inflation factors included in the discount rates applied (2022- between
0% and 6.7%).

Changes in volumes, seling prices and direct costs are based cn past results and expectations of future changes in the
market.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

Impairment testing is dependent on management's estimates and judgements, particularly as they relate to the
forecasting of future cash flows, the discount rates selected and expected long-term growth rates. Each of the Group's
CGUs had headroom under the annual impairment review.,

In light of the supply side inflatichary pressures combined with the cost of living pressures faced by our UK Grocery
business, management performed a detailled impairment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvita, and concluded that no
impairment was required. Key drivers of the forecast improvement in performance include annualisation of price
increases, completion of a number of margin improvement initiatives, implementation of planned strategic initiatives
and the completion of angoing new product development. Headroom was £59m on o CGU carrying value of £137m
(2022 - headroom of £26m on a CGU camying value af £147my}. The discount rate used was 12.2% and would have to
increase to more than 15.7% before value in use fell below the CGU camying value. The lang-term growth 1ate applied
into perpetuity was 2.8%, based on forecast industry growth of 2.5% for breakfast cereals and 3.3% for biscuits.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

far the 52 weeks ended 146 Septernber 2023

10. Property, plant and equipment

Consal aa'ed Group

Land and Plost and Fixtures and Assefs Lnder Suqﬂr cone
Buildings macimery fithrigs corstrLction rools Total
im P i £r L £
Cost
At 18 September 2021 2828 4018 4,080 441 92 11.459
Acquisitions - externcaly purchased 40 78 204 421 11 754
Acquired through business combinations 1 4 1 - 4
Other dispaosals 114) {3 (20} - {4) {41}
Transfers from assets under construction 33 164 26 (293) -
Transfer 1o assets classified as held for sale [32) (53) 2 - - (87}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 28 223 119 37 6 483
Al 7 Seplember 2022 2,954 4,431 4,478 406 105 12,574
Acquisitions — externally purchased 21 84 434 454 164 1.011
Acquired through business combinations - 4 - - - 4
Businesses dispossed of {52) {1 4 - - (67}
Other disposals {46) {57} % - ) {113}
Transfers frorm assets under construction 35 191 89 {315} - -
Transfer from qssets classified as held for sale 37 75 2 - - 114
Effect of movements in hypernflafion - 78 19 - - 97
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {99} {257) (84) s {19) [493)
At 15 September 2023 2,850 4,540 4,925 1 101 13,127
Deprectation and impairment
At 18 September 2021 792 2,834 2376 51 6,053
Depreciation for Ihe year 48 174 294 - 10 530
Impairment (6} - 72 - - 2]
Impairment on sale and closure of business 11 19 - - - 30
DOther disposals {1} 19 - (4] {24
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale 17} 160) 2] - - 79
tffect of movements in foreign exchange 35 160 73 - 3 o
At 17 September 2022 862 3128 279 o &0 6847
Cepreciation for the year 52 184 293 - ? 538
Impairment 27 56 3 - 88
Businesses dispossed of (1} 8) (3) - - (12}
Other disposals {34} 147} ) - {1} 91
Transfer from assels classified as held for sale 20 75 2 - - 97
Effect of movements in hypernflation - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in forelan exchange {37] (158) [50) - {110} 1255)
Al 14 September 2023 8a9 3295 3,049 = &0 7.293
Net bock value
Al 17 September 2022 2092 1,302 1,682 606 45 5.727
Al 14 September 2023 1,951 1,245 1.876 11 41 5834
e et e e i Lis
im £
Capital expenditure commitmenls — conlracted but not provided for 493 344

In addition to the amounts disciosed above, no property, plant and eguipment (2022 - £18m of which £18m is freehold
land and buildings) is clossified as assets held for sale (see note 17).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
far the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

10. Property, plant and equipment continued

ABF

Frctures anel

rnofuneny Nihieds Tkl

Ll £y im
Cosf
Af 18 Sepfember 2021 2707 4,008 4.019 440 97 11,266
Acquisitions — externally purchased 32 76 203 421 B 743
Acguired through business combinalions ! 4 ! - - i3
Other disposals f14) {3} {17} {4] {38}
Transters from assels under canstruclion 33 164 ] 1293} - -
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale 32) {53} 2} - - {87}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 28 223 1ie A 483
A1 17 Seplember 2022 2,825 T a4io T T a0s TosT T 2373
Acquisitions - externaly purchased 20 86 431 452 14 1,005
Acquired through business combinalions - 4 - - - 4
Other disposals {34) {57} {3} {1) {25}
Transfers from assets under consiruchion 35 191 87 {313) - -
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 37 75 2 - - 114
Effect of movements in hypernfiation - 78 19 - - o7
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {99} {257) (84} {34]) {19) {493)
At 16 September 2023 2,784 4,539 4,871 710 101 13,005
beprecialion and impairment
Al 18 September 2021 759 2.827 2,343 - 51 5.980
Depreciafion for the year 47 174 290 - 10 521
Impcirment - - 7z - - 72
Irmpairment on safe and closure of business R 1% - - 30
Other disposals {1} (17) {4} {22)
Transter fto) firom assefs classified as hold for sale {17} {60) {2] - - {79/
Effcct of movemends in foreign exchonge 35 A 74 3 272
Af 17 Seplember 2022 B VN W T 2,760 - &0 8774
Deprecicfion for the year 52 183 287 - 9 531
Impairment 22 56 3 - ? 83
Other disposals {22} {46) {3 - {1 72}
Transfer from assels classified as held for sale 20 75 2 - - 77
Effect of movemeniis in hypennflation - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {37} {158} {50] - {10} {255}
Al 16 September 2023 8¢ 3294 3016 - 60 7239
Nef book value '
At 17 September 2022 1,991 1,299 1.659 405 45 5599
Af 16 Seplember 2023 1,915 1.245 1,855 710 41 5,766
Impairment

The methodology used to assess property, plant and equipment forimpairment is the same as that descibed for
impairment assessments of goodwill. See note ¢ for further details. In addition where the fair value less costs of disposal is
higher than value in use, 1his methodology has been used to determine the recoverable amount. This method uses
inputs that are unobservable, using the best information available in the circumstances for valuing the CGU, and
therefore falls into the Level 3 categery of fair value measurement,

In Grocery, the Austratian Don business has been adversely affected by infiationary pressures, a surplus supply of fresh
nork in the market, labour constraints and equipment reliability causing production shortfalls and additionat
transportation costs following the unfareseen liquidation of its distribution partner. Management therefore performead a
detaled impairment review and cancluded that an impairment of A$72m (£39m) should be recognised, A$62m (£34m)
against plant and equipment and A$10m (£5m]} against buildings. The mpairment model assumed long-term growth
rates beyond the forecast period of 2.0% (2022 - 2.0%) and a discount rate of 12.6% {2022 - 11.9%}.

The sugar business in north China recognised a £15m write down against property. plant and equipment. This business
was classified as held for sale in the previous year, but the potential buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of the
vear.

Due to severe flooding in Mozambique, the related damage fo the sugar crop fields and the inakility to plant for the
foreseeable future, llovo Mozambique recognised o £25m write-down against property, plant and equipment. Primark
recagnised a £3m write down against fixtures and fittings for the right-sizing of four German stores and £1m to wite down
a freehold store.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

11. Leases
rost of the Group's right-of-use assets are associated with ABF's lecsed property portfolio in its Retail segment.

Right-of-use assets

Consalidoted Group

Land ¢ d Plared caned Fiarures "ol
bl ings raciunery [iThngs £m
£ £m im

Cost
Al 18 September 2021 3,494 63 2 3.359
Additions 161 10 171
Lease incentives [46) - [46)
Acquired through business combinations 3 - - 8
Other disposals {1 1) N [3)
Other movements 12 2 - 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o8 2 - 110
AT 17 Seplember 2022 T 3538 76 1 3613
Additions 193 17 210
Lease incenlives {53) - - 53]
Accuired through business combinations 1 - - 1
Cther disposals [ {4} - ()
Cther movements 80 5 - 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 72) (6] - {78)
Al 14 Seplember 2023 3,683 88 1 3772
Depreciation and impgairmen?
At 18 Seplember 2021 652 32 1 485
Depreciation for the year 268 8 - 284
Impairment 134 - 134
Cther disposols m ) 4l [3)
Cffect of miovernents Inforcign cxchange 7 33 1 ) a1
AL17 Septemper 2022 1086 &0 - 1.136
Depreciation for the yaar 241 16 - 277
Impainment 13 1 - 14
Other disposals {1 (4} - (5)
Effect of movements in forelgn exchange [23) {4) - 27]
A} 16 Seplember 2023 o 1,33 59 S 13%
Net baok value e T o
Al 17 Septemier 2022 2.450 2 1 2.477
At 16 Seplember 2023 2,347 29 1 2,377
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

11. Leases continved
Right-of-use assets confinved

Land ana Pl ond Toatend
L morhiagny Em
£m

Cost
At 18 September 2021 3,261 63 Z 3.326
Addiitions 167 10 - 171
{ease incentives 146) - - {48)
Acquired through business combinations & - - 8
Oiher disposals {1 1) {1} {3)
COther movements 12 7 14
Fffect of movemerts in foreign ex o 107 2 - 109
AF 17 September 2022 3,502 74 ] 3,579
Additions 183 17 - 200
Legse incentives {53} - {53)
Acquired through business combinations h - - !
Other disposals 12} 4) - {6)
Other moverments 80 5 - 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchange T £ | {6) - {78)
At 16 September 2023 3639 88 ! 3728
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 September 2021 B44 3z ] a77
Depreciation for ihe vear 263 18 - 281
Impairment 134 - - 134
Other disposals {1 {1 ) (3]
Effec! of movements in forcign oxchange 33 i - ) A:‘Si
ALl Seplember 202 1,073 20 - L
Depreciation for the yeor 257 16 - 273
Irnpairment 13 i - 14
Other disposals {1 {4} - {5}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {23) {4} - {27}
Al 16 Seplember 2023 1,319 59 - 1,378
Net book value
Al 17 September 2022 B 2,429 26 ] 2,456
Al 14 September 2023 2,320 29 T 2,350
Impairment

The methodology used o assess right-of-use assets for impairment is the same as that described for impairment
assessments of goodwill. See note 9 for further details.

In the year there was a £14m (2022 - £134m) impairment of right-of-use assefs related to Pnmark and the Don business
fincluded within exceptional items).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

11. Leases continued

Lease liability

Consohdule:: Gio

Larsd and Faml ang 1-5?&]“-
wu'cings euzhingny in
i im
Cost
Al 18 Septemiber 2021 3.289 34 - 3,323
Additions 161 9 - 170
Inferest expense relofing to lease labilities g1 1 82
Repayment of lease liabililies [390) 18] - [408)
Acquisition of businesses 8 - - 8
Other movements 14 2 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ?7 1 - 98
A7 Seplemiber 2022 3,260 29 - 3,289
Addlitions 191 18 - 209
Interest expense relating fo lease liabilities 20 2 - 92
Repayment of lease liabilities {378} 18] [394)
Other movements 80 5 a5
Other disposals {5) - - (5}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 80} (3) - [43)
At 16 Sepfember 2023 3178 33 - 3211
T - o Cansc aated Group
2322
£m im
Curmrent 359 334
Non-cureni o 2,852 2,955
. - sant 3%
| eqase habiliies comprise £3.190m (2022 - £3.275m) capital pavable and £21m {2022 - El4mi irterest pavable. The
inferest payable is all curent and disclosed within trade and other payables. Repayments comprise £312m (2022 -
£325m) capital and £84m (2022 - £83m) interest.
Tara
£
Cost
Al 18 Sepfermber 2021 3262 34 - 3,294
Additions 161 9 - 170
interast experse refaling fo lease lichiftics 80 ! - &1
Repayment of lease liabilhes {383) {18) - {403}
Acquisition of businesses 8 ~ - 8
Other movernents 14 2 16
tffect of moveaments in foreign exchange 27 1 28
At 17 Sepfember 2022 3237 9 3,266
Additians 180 8 - 198
Inferest expense relating 1o lease liabilifics 89 2 - @1
Repayment of lease fiabiities (373) {18} - {391}
Other movemenis 80 5 - 85
Cther disposais {5) - {3)
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge {60} (3) - {63}
Al 16 Seplember 2023 3.148 33 - 3,181
- Cpuz
im
Cumrenl 330
Non-curen) o 2,825 2936
oo e 3181 325
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Septembear 2023

11. Leases continued

Other information relating to leases
The Group had the following expense relating to short-term leases and low-value leases:

.. ABE Consal daled Grous
2023 2072 2023

£m £ £m o

Land and buldings 2 - 2 -
Plaint and machinery 1 2 1 2
Fixtures and fittings o - o - 1
T 3 3 3 3

The Group expensed £1m (2022 — £1m) of variable lease payments thal do not form part of the lease liability. Cash
outflows of £2m (2022 - £4m) that do not form part of the lease liability are expected to be made in the next 12 months.

Rental receipts of £3m (2027 - £4m) were recognised relating to operatfing leases. The fotal of fulure minimum rental
receipts expected to be received is £43m (2022 — £36m). £10m (2022 - £11m)is due to be received in respect of sub-
leasing right-of-use assefts.

12. Investment property

Consolidated

Granga

M

Al 18 September 2021 o 214
Additions o S 63
Disposals {23)
Impairment losses ) e
Al17Seplember 2022 248
Additions 45
Disposals (3
impcirment losses e . . (14)
AY 16 September 2023 - 274

Impairment losses were recorded in both 2022 and 2023 to reflect where the fair value of investment properlies was
below cost as determined by an independent valuer. The impairments reflect prevailing market conditions.

13. investments in joint ventures and associates

ABF e e Gpneoidoled Growg
Tt vesergresy s Jant ver e AROTIOTCS
T £11 £m
At 18 September 2021 278 278 47
Acguisiions 4 - 6 -
Profit for the pericd 20 19 20 19
Dividendds recaivect {88) {5) (88) 18}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ) iz - 7 o
At 17 September 2022 o 301 85 303 8y
Acquisitions E - g _
Profit for the period 106 18 106 8
Dividends recerved {102} {5) {102} {7)
Effect of movemenis in forsign exchange (i) {7) (11} 7}
At 16 Seplember 2023 303 97 305 93

Details of joint venturas and associales are listed in note 32.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

13. Investments in joint ventures and associates continuved

Included in the consclidated financial statements are the following items that represent the Group's share of the assets,
liabilities and profit of joint ventures and associates:

ABF . . Censoidated Gloap
o ont venlurey 0 Asscogtes lont ventures I Associaten

2023 2077 2023 022 2023 2022 2023 2022

£m im £m L £m £ £m £m

Nan-current assets 222 202 47 46 222 202 47 43

Curent gssefs 541 G 500 427 555 443 505 432
Curent nbitities (414) {473) {454) {386] (426) [475) (458) 1389}
Non-curent liabilities {67) (87} (3} {3 [67) (87} (4) 13}

Goochwil 25 20 ! ! 25 20 1 1

Non-controling interest (4} - - - (4) - - -
Nef assels 303 301 91 85 305 303 93 89

Reverue 2,539 2,165 1,605 1,313 2,540 2165 1.614 1.343

Profit for the period 106 90 18 19 106 90 18 19

14. Employee entitiements

The Group operates o number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirerment benefit schemes in the UK and
averseos.

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group fa a varety of actuanal rsks including democgraphic assumptions such
as rartality and financial assumptions such as discount rate, inflation risk and market {investment) risk. The Group is not
exposed to any unusudl, entity-specific or scheme-speacific risks. All schemes comply with loca! legisiative requirements.

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group's principal UK defined benefit scheme is the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme (the ‘Scheme’), which is
o funded final salary scheme that is closed o new members. Delined coniribution arangements are in place for ofher
employees. The UK defined benefit scheme represents 0% (2022 — $0%) of the Group's defined benefit scheme assets
and 85% (2022 — 86%} of defined benelit scheme liabllities. The Scheme is gaverned by a frustee board which 1y
independent of the Group and which agrees a schedule of contributions with the Company each fime a tormal funding
valuation is performed.

The most recent triennial funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 5 April 2023, using the current unit
method, and revealed o surplus of £1,013m. The market value of the Scheme assets was £3,648m, representing 138% of
mermbers' accrued benefits after allowing for expected future salary increases.

The Scheme's assets are managed using a risk-controlled investment strategy. which includes a liability-driven
investment policy that seeks to match, where appropriate, the profile of the liabilities. This includes the use of derivative
instruments to hedge inflation, interest and foreign exchange risks, The Scheme utilises both market and solvency triggers
to develop the level of hedges in place. To date, the Scheme is fully hedged for 75% of inflation sensitivity and 746% of
interest rate risk. It is intended o hedge 80% of fotal exposure.

The Scheme is forbidden by the trust deed from holding direct investments in the equity of ABF. although it is possible
that the Scheme may hold indirect interests through investments in some equity funds.

Overseas defined benefit schemes

The Group also operates defined benefit retirement schemes in a number of overseas businesses, which are primarily
funded final salary schemes. as well as a small number of unfunded post-retirement medical benefit schemes, which are
accounted forin the same way as defined benefit retirement schemes.

Defined con¥ibution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined confribution schemes for which the charge was £49min the UK and £48m
overseqs, totaling £57m {2022 - UK £44m, overseas £45m, totaling £89m).

Actuarial assumplions
The principal actuarial assumptions for the Group's defined benefit schemes at the yvear end were:

2023 2023 3037 2022

UK Overseas UK Crerssos

o % % %

Discount rate 55 1-158 4.6 0.9-13.5
Inflation 27-34 0-17.4 2.4-3.4 0-55.0
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7-43 0-150.0 3.7-43 0-40.0
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 1.9-3.1 0-4%.0 1.9.3.2 0400
Rale of increase for pensions in defeiment {where provided) 25-28 0-3.9 2528 0-2.3

Discount rates are determined by reference to market vields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds
consistent with the estimated term of the ohligations. This has been done in conjunction with independert actuaries in
each jursdichon.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

14. Employee entitlements continued

The UK inflation assumption includes assumptions on both the Retail Price Index and Consumer Price Index measures of
Inflation on the basis that the gap between the two measures is expected to remain stable in the long term.

The mortality assumptions used to value the UK defined benefit schemes in 2023 are denived fram the S3 mortality tables
with improvements in line with the 2022 projection maodet prepared by the Continuous Mortality Investigation of the UK
actuaral profession [2022 — 53 mortality tables with improvements in line with the 2020 projection model), with a O-year
rating movement for males and females {2022 - O-year rating movement for males and females), both with a long-term
trend of 1.75% {2022 - 1.5%). These mortality assumptions take account of experience to date, and assumplions for
further improvements in fife expectancy of scheme members. Examples of the resulting life expectancias in the UK
defined benefit schemes are as follows:

L. 2023 .
Life expectand y rom age ab [in yeoins) Male Fermnale Male Ferrale
Member aged 45 in 2023 {2022) 218 242 2201 24.3
Member aged 6510 2043 {2042) 23.7 26.2 237 26.1

An allowance has been made for cash commutation in line with emerging scheme experience. Other demographic
assumptions for the UK defined benefit schemes are set having regard to the latest frends in scheme expearience and
other relevant data.

The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as parl of the periodic funding valuation of the schemaes.

For the overseas schemes, regionally appropriate assumptions for mortality, financiol and demographic factors have
been used.

A sensitivity analysis on the principal assumptions used to measure UK defined benefit scheme liabilities at 16 September
2023 is:

Charnge n assumgshor \n}[:qd onscheme Vabil” a1
Discount rate decrease/increase by 0.1% Increcse/decrease by 1.2%
Inflafion increase/decrease by 0.1% ncrease by 0.6%/decrease by 0.9%
Rate of real increase in sclaries increqse/decrease by 0.1% increqse/decrease by 0.9%
Rate of modality memizers assumed to be one increcse/decrease by 2.9%

year younger/older

A sensitivity to the rate of increase in pensions in payment and pensions in deferment is represented by the inflation
sensitivity, as all pensions increases and deferred revaluations are linked o inflafion.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determinad based on recsonably possible changes in the respective assumphions
occurring at the end of the period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the
specific assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivities, the same method
used to calculate scheme liabilities recognised in the balonce sheet has been applied. The method and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis have not changed since the prior yvear,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

tor the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

14. Employee entilements continved
Balance sheet

Censoldaier Group,

2023 i T -

UK Overseas Tolal [T Crvarseas lota'

£m £m £m im £m £rn
Equilies 1,020 172 1,192 1.135 188 1.323
Governmeant bonds 455 89 544 308 92 400
Corporate and other bonds 419 55 474 747 47 814
Property 314 36 350 398 37 435
Cash and cther assets 1,145 57 1202 1,126 53 1.179
scheme assals 3,553 409 3962 373 47 aasl
Scheme liabilities - N {2,182) (373) (2,555} (2.397) {405) (2802)
Aggregate nel surplus 1,371 38 1,407 1,337 12 1.349
Imecoverable surplus” - (36) (3¢ L 4y A
Mef pension assel/(iabliy) ] 1,371 - 1371 ) 1.337 @O 1307
Analysed as
Schemes in surplus 1,397 1,444 1,346 27 1,393
Schemes in deficit __(_2_6) L (75_)_ ) (29] 157] {86)
"""" o 1371 - 1,371 T3 B0 1307
Unfunded liability included in the present value of scheme
iabilties above (26) (32) (58) {29 152) (@1

* The surpiuses in tne plans a2 anly recoverable to The extent ‘nat ne Group can benefit from aither retunds fomally agreed or trom fusure

convibution reductions.,

UK Scheme

Scheme assets include £64m (2022 - £30m) of derivative instruments, £409m (2022 - £441m} of corporaie debf

instruments and £1,119m (2022 - £861m) of government debt,

Corporate and other bonds assets of £619m (2022 - £767m) include £235m (2022 — £248m) of assets whose valuation is
not derived from quoted market prices. The valuation for all other equity assets, government bands, and corporate and
other bonds is derived from guoted market prices. The carrying value of UK property assets is based on a 30 June market
valuation, adjusted for purchases, disposals and price indexation between the valuation and the balance sheel date.
Cash andg other assets includes £883m (2022 - £820m) of assets whose valuation is not derived from quoted market

nrices.

For financial reporting in the Group's financial statements, liakilities are assessed by actuaries using the prejected unit

method.

The accounting value is different from the result obtained using the funding basis, mainly due to different assumptions

used to project scheme liabilities,

The defined beneiit scheme liabilittes comprise 18% (2022 - 24%) in respect of active participants, 21% (2022 - 20%) for

deferred participants and 61% (2022 - 56%) for pansionen.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit scheme babifhes at the end of the yearis 12 years for both UK
and overseas schemes (2022 - 15 years for both UK and overseas schemes).

The Group recognises the accounting surplus as it has the ability to use the surplus fo meet employer contributions to the

UK Scheme, covering both the defined benefit and defined contribution sections. This has been agreed with the

independent Trustee Board for the new financial year. See the Cash flow section below foer further details.

Income statement

The charge to Ihe income statement for employee benetit schemes comprises:

Corsohdated Goup

2023 e
£Em im
Chargad to operating profit:
Delined benefit schemes
Cument service cost (31) {46}
Past service cost ) -
Defined contribution schemes (?7) 189}
Tolal operating cost o (130) {135)
Réﬁoﬁed in oiher financial (exoense}/incohwe': o
MNet interast income on the net pension asset 62 10
Interest charge onirecoverable surplus N _m
Net impact on profit befors fax B N - _ B (70) {126}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

14, Employee entitiements continued
Cash flow

Group cash flow in respect of employee benefits schemes comprises cantributions paid to funded schemes of £36m
(2022 - £36m) and benefits paid in respect of unfunded schemes of £5m (2022 - £2m). Contributions 10 funded defined
benefit schemes are subject to periodic review. Contributions to defined contribulion schemes amounted to £97m {2022
- £89m).

Total contributions to funded schemes and benefit payments by the Group in respect of unfunded schemes in 2024 are
currently expected to be approximately £3m in the UK and £10m overseas, fotalling £13m {2022 - UK £29m, overseas
£10m, totalling £39m).

As pait of the triennial funding valuation of the UK Scheme as at 5 April 2023, which was findlised with the independent
frustee board in September 2023, the Company has agreed an abatement of all UK employer confributions to the UK
Scheme, covering both the defined benefit and defined contribution sections from the start of the new financial year.
The employer contributions will instead be met from tha surplus in the UK Scheme. This is subject to a solvency check,
assessed annually by the Scheme Actuary. This is expected to result in approximately £70m cash flow benefit for the
Group in the new financial year,

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of the net pension asset recognised in other comprehensive income are as tollows:

Consaldatec Groan

2023 2
£m Al

Return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest In the income statement (238) 1582}
Actuarial gains ansing from changes in financial assumptions 265 1,444
Achuarial gains arising from changes in demegraphic assumptions 18 11

Experience losses on scheme labilihies {57} {38}
Change inunrecognised surplus [ (0
Remeasurements of the nel pension {licbility)/asset @ axn

Reconciliation of change in assets and liabilities

Consclidatec Goup

2023 2022 2023 P 2023
assets asse's Hablliies it e net nsl
£m £ Em £m £m £mn
At beginning of year 4,151 4,728 (2,802) {4.219) 1,349 509
Cument service cost - (31) |46} [E1h] {46)
Employee conlributions 7 5 ) [8) - -
Employer contributions 35 34 - - 36 34
Benefit payments {151) [154) 164 154 5 2
Past service cost - - (2) - 2) -
Interest income/{expense] 185 34 (123) {74) 42 0
Loss on scheme assefs less inferest income {238) [582) - - {238) [(582)
Actucrial gains arsing from changes in financict assurmstions - - 265 1,444 245 1,444
Actuarial gains arising from chonges in demographic
assumotions - - i8 11 18 I
Experience losses on scherne labilities - - (57) 138) (57) {38)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (18) 31 18 128) - 3
Atend of year 3,962 4151 (2.555)  [(2.802) 1,407 1,349

Reconciliation of change in irecoverable surplus

Al beginning of year

Change recognised in other comprehensive income & {104
Interest charge onirrecoverable surplus (2) 1)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange B 2y
At end of year S (36) {42}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Carso idatew Grdup

Proviaions  Tax value nl ’
Propaerly and ather corme
olanl and It langitile Enproyes terroo-ary fonevcird
QU mment QIBETT Leases seraiiy chigrences e Taral
Lm £m i £ im I im

Al 18 Septermber 2020 140 90 {101) 125 181) 136) 155
Arnount credited to the income statermen! 34 [5) 27 1 13 8 78
Amount credited to equity - - - 155 28 2 185
Acouired through business combinations 22 - - - 2 - 24
Effect of changes in taxrates on the income 2 - - - 2
statement
Fffect of changes in tax rates on eguity - 44 - - - 44
Effect of nyperinfiationary economies taken
to operating profit 3 - - 3
Transfer fo assets/liabilities held for sale 5 - - 5
Effec! of rovements in foreiyn exchange & 0 [4) £ - 8
At 17 September 2022 190 117 (78) 325 46 168) (28) 504
Amount cradited to the incorme stafement 74 {3 30 10 16) 18) (51} 12
Amount credited to equity - - - 15 {40 5 - [40)
Acquired through business combinations - 7 - 1 - 1 1} 6
Effect of changes in tax rates on the incormne - - 2 - - - 5
statement
Effect of hyperinflationary economies taken 4 - - - - 4
1o operating profit
Transfer from assets/liabiliies held for sale {5) - - - - - - {5}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 119) {3} 3 - - 2 2 [15]
At 16 September 2023 249 118 {105} 333 - (70) (78) 447

Provisions and other temporary differences include provisions of £{103)m {2022 - £{%3)m), biclogical assets of £33m (2022

- £32m), tax credits of £{9}m (2022 - £{14)m} and other temporary differences of £9m (2022 - £%m).

ABF

Intengne 3
sl Legsey ] anfferences Taio!
£m £m it £m im
Al 18 September 2021 90 {101) 125 12 {84) 134) 145
Armount credited fo the income stafement {5) 27 ! - 13 & 78
Amount crectited to equity - - 154 28 2 184
Acquired through business cornbinalions 22 - - - 2 - 24
Effect of changes in fax rates on the income
staternont 2 - R _ _ 2
Ffiect of changes in fax rotes on equity - 44 - - - 44
Fffect of hyperinflalionary economies laken
o operating profit 3 - - - - 3
Transfor fo assets/fifatiities held for sale 5 - - - - 5
Fifect of movements in foreign exchange o] 10 {4) - = {8) - 4
AT 17 Septembor 2022 187 17 {78) 324 40 (75) (26} 489
Amount crechted to the income statement 73 (3) (30} 12 - (1) (53) (12)
Amount credifed to equity - - - (5) (40 5 - {40
Acquired through busingss comtinafions - 7 - ! - ) {n &
Effect of changes in tax rafes on the income
staterment 3 - - 2 - - - 5
Fifect of hyperinflafionary economies taken
to operating profit 4 - - - - - - 4
Transfer from assets diabilties held for scile {5) - - - - - - {5}
Effect of movements in loreign exchange a9 3 3 - - 3 2 {14)
Al 16 Seplember 2023 243 18 (105) 334 - 79 (78) 433
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued

Certain deferred tax assets and llabilities have been offset in the table above. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

___Consohdared Group

T ez T Ear 2023 2077

£m £m £m £m

Defearred tax assets 193 158 195 160
Deferred fax liabilties o - (628 {647} (642} {664)
- T (433) {489} (447} (504)

In addilicn to fhe amounis disclosed above, there are no deferred tax assets (2022 - £5m) classified as assets hetd for
sale (see note 17).

Ceferred tax assets have not been recognised inrespect of lax losses of £360m (2022 — £348m). Of these tax losses,
£186m (2022 — £188m) will expire at various dates between 2023 and 2028 (2022 - 2023 and 2027). Deferred tax assets
have also not been recognised in respect of other temporary differences of £348m {2022 - £520m). This includes £160m
(2022 — £378m) relating to property. plant and equipment and leases n Germany which were derecognised following
the impairment in 2022 {see notes 10 and 11 for further details). These deferred tax assets have not been recognised on
the basis that their future economic benefitis uncertain.

In addition, the Group's overseas subsidiaries have net unremitted earmings of £2,527m (2022 - £2.029m). resulting in
temporary differences of £1,426m (2022 - £1,425m). No deferred tax has been provided in respect of these differences
since the timing of the reversals can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reversein
the foreseeable future.

16. Trade and other receivables

ABE s e COQAOISG G DO
2023 9087 2023 2022
£m £ £m Z
Non-current — other receivables
Loans and receivables 31 29 3 29
lvestments designated FvoCH 3z 29 32 29
o 63 58 43 5
Current ~ frade and olher receivables
Trade receivables 1.319 1.3 1,330 1.321
Other receivables 223 218 234 232
Accrued Incomse ) o 26 35 29 38
) oo ’ 1568 1.564 1,593 1591
Prepayrments and other non-fincncict receivakles 210 194 214 198
T 1778 1758 1,807 1789

in addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are ne trade and other receivables (2022 - £3m}) classified as assets
held for sale (see note 17).

The directors consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximates fair value.
For details of cradit rdsk exposure on irade and otherreceivables, see note 28.

Trade and other receivables include £32m {2022 - £29m) in respact of finance lense receivables, with £28m in non-
current loans and receivables and £4m in current other receivables (2022 - £25m in non-current loans and receivables
and £4m in current other receivables). Minimum lease payments receivable are £4m within one year, £ 1m bebween
one and five years and £17m in more than five years {2022 - £4m within one year, £16m between one and five years
and £9min more than five years).

The finance lease receivables relale to property, plant and equipment leased to a joint venture of the Group (see note
30).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 Septermber 2023

17. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The Group has no assets and liabilities Classified as held for sale at year end. In the prior year, the Group's north China
sugar business was classified as held for sale. The proposed buyer withdrew their offer In the second half of this year and
the Group has since recognised a £15m non-cash exceptional impairment charge to wiite down the property, plant
and equipment in that business.

18. Inventories

Corns dated GoLs

2023 7077 2023 e
£m L Em i
Raw matenals and consumables 599 &07 605 507
Work in progress 78 70 78 70
Finished goods ond goods held for resale 2,530 2,582 2,563 2,619
T T i " T 3207 3259 © 3246 3,294
Wnie down of inventories (123) {1135) {124) {115}

In addition 1o the amounts disclosed above, there are no inventories {2022 - £7m)]) classified as assets beld for sale (see
note 17).
19. Biological assets

" Comsaiidated GrDQp“““"

Grerwing

LAt LhTH g Tatal

£ im Lr

A 18 September 2021 75 3} 85
Transfered 1o inventony (113} (13} {124)
Purchases : 5 5
Other disposals - 1) M
Changes in fair value 124 0 134
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge 7 ] 8
Al 17 seplomber 2022 07 8 105
Transfered to imventory [121) (14] [135)
Purchases 3 A 9
Impairment ] - 7
Changes in foir value 135 N 144
Effect of movemenls inA[Qur(—:jign__exchomge {19} - ks
Al 16 September 2023 88 n 99

Impairment

The methodology used to assess current biclogical assets for impairment is the same as that described for impairment
assessments of goodwill. See note 9 for further details,

In the year there was a £7m {2022 - £nil} impairment of current biological assets in lllovo Mozambigue due to the severe
flonding and damage ta the sugar crop fields {included within exceptional iterns).

Growing cane

The fair value of growing cane is determined using inputs that are unobservable, using the best information available in
the circumnstances for valuing the growing cane, and therefore falls into the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.
The following assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose tonnage al 16 September 2023:

South Afrca Malawi Iambia Eswatini Janzania Moi&ﬁ'{bl‘quéw
Expecied area to harvest (hectares) 5,729 18,819 15,700 10,580 9,578 -
Estimated yield (fonnes cane/heciare) 67.9 1001 114.0 2.0 80.2 -
Average maturity of growing cane 44.4% 67.4% 65.7% 47.7% 46.2% -

The following assumpfions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose tonnage at 17 September 2022;

Sauiroafnc taGlgwi Lamoia Eswva' 1l Tarzania MozaM Sigues
Expected area to harvest (heclares) 6,028 19,207 16,163 8419 9.612 5.802
Estimated vield (tonnes cane/heciare) 679 103.7 1159 ?9.5 724 7.0
Average maturty of growing cane 47 6% 67.4% 65.7% 67 7% 46.2% 72 4%

A 1% change in the uncbservable inputs could increase or decrease the fair value of growing cane as follows:

2023 - 2022
1% 1% 1% 1%
£m £m im im
Esfimaoted sucrose content 1.6 (1.6} 1.2 1.2
Estimaled sucrosa price 1.% {1.%} 1.4 11.4)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

20. Cash and cash equivalents

AT Corsdlidated Gravp
2023 2022 2023 Far]
Mote £m im £m £m
Cash
Cash at bank and in hend 431 74 532
Cash equivalentss o 976 1,447 1,064
Cash and cash equive ® 1487 2121 _1.5%
Reconciliation fo the cash flow statement
Bonk overdrafts 21 (59) {126} [69) [128)
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash fow siaterment 1,388 1,695 1,527 2100
Cash and cash eguivaients on the face of the balance sheel 1.457 2121 1,59 2,224
T 1,457 2,121 1,596 2924

Cash al bank and in hand generally earmns interest at rates based on the daily bank depasit rate.

Cash equivalents generally comprise deposits placed on money markets for periods of up to three months which earn
interest at a short-term deposit rate; and funds invested with fund managers that have a maturity of tess than or equal to

three months and are at fixed rates.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value,

21. Loans and overdrafts

Aee T Consolidalea Group
2023 2077 2023 2023
hNoe £m i £m im
Current loans and averdrafts
Secured loans - ] 1 1
Unsecured loans and overdrafts N } 168 156 168 156
168 157 169 157
Non-cumrent loans
Secured loans - - - |
Ursecured loans 394 480 394 480
) 394 480 394 a8
o 28 562 637 563 638
AP Consolidored Group
2023 2022 2023 2022
Nols £m £m £m £m
Secured loans
- GBP foating rale - - T 1
- Otherflogling rate - I - 1
Unsecured bank loars and overdralts
- Bank overdrafts 20 69 126 59 126
- GBP fixed rate 392 390 392 390
- USD floating rate 8 8 8
- USD fixed rate 81 87 81 87
- EUR floating rate ) 2z 1 2
- Other floating rate g 13 g 13
- Cther fixed rate 2 o 2 10
552 637 563 438

Secured loans comprise amounts borrowed from commercial banks and are secured by floaling charges over the assets
of subsidiares. Bank overdrafts generally bear interest at floating rates.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

22. Trade and other payables

Caonsollgaled Group

2022 2023 2z

Lo £m L

Trade poyables 1,362 1,191 1,377
Accruals 1,275 1286 1,294
o o 2,637 T 2',477 N 26?3 ’
Defered income and ofher non-financial payables _ 523 A7z
' 3,000 3,145

In addition to the amounts disclosed obove, there are no trade and other payables {2022 - £14m) classified as liabilities
held for sale {see note 17).

For payables with a remaining life of less than one year, carrying amount is deemed to reflect fair value.

In @ small number of businesses, the Group utilises supplier financing arrangements to enable participating suppliers, at
each supplier's sole discretion, to sell any or all amounts due frem the Group to a third-party bank earlier than the
invoice due date, at better financing rates than the supplier alone could nichieve, Payment terms for suppliers are
identical, irespective of whether they choose to participate. The Group receives no benefit from these arrangements.
Contractual terms and invoice due dates are unchanged and the Group considers amounts owed to the third-party
bank as akin to amounts owed to the supplier. Such amaounts are therefore Included within rade payables and
associated cash flows are included within operating cash flows, as they continue to be part of the Group's normal
operating cycle,

At year end, the value of invoices sald by suppliers under supply chain financing arangements was £75m (2022 — £45m).

23. Provisions

Corsahaated Group

Dexlered

Rest-uctarng consiclers on Ctear fatal

i im im £mn

AL 17 September 2022 55 20 38 113
Createdd 21 2 &7 20
Utifised (39) (18] 19) 144]
Relensed (18] - 113) 131}
Effect of movementsinforsign exchange 1V R = TR =)}
At 16 September 2023 L 3 79 103
Curent 18 3 34 55
Non-curent - 3 45 A8
18 é 79 103

Financict liabilities within provisions comprised deferred consideration in both years (see note 28).

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions include business restructure costs, including redundancy, associated with the Group's
announced regrganisation plans. These restrucluring provisions are largely expected to be utilised in the next financial
year.

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration comprises estimates of amounts due to the previous owners of businesses acquired by the Group
which are often linked to performance or other condifions.

Other

Other provisions mainly comprise litigation ciaims and warranty claims arising from the sale and clasure of businesses. The
extent and timing of the utilisation of these provisions is more uncertain given the nature of the claims and the period of
the warranties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

24. Share capital and reserves
Share capital

At 17 September 2022 and 16 September 2023, the Group's issued and fully paid share capital comprised 862,022
ordinary shares of 50p, each carrying one vote per share, Total nominal value was £431,017.,

Other reserves
Other reserves are non-distributable and materially arose from the cancellation of share premium account by ABF in
1993.

Translation reserve

The transiation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the franslation of the financial statements
of fareign operations, as well as from the franslalicn of lobiifies that hedge the Group's net invesiment in fereign
subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises all changes in the value of derivatives to the extent that they are effective cash flow
hedges. net of amounts recycled from the hedging reserve on occurrance of the hedged transaction or when the
hedged transactionis no longer expected to cccur.

25. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

2023

In the first haff, the ABF Agricuffure division acquired Kite Consulting, Advance Souwrcing and Progres. Kife Consulting s a
specialist dairy consultant and Advance Sourcing provides specialist products to creafc value by improving herd
pertormance and supports dairy farmers to improve herd efficiency and build resifience across the agri-food supply
chain. Progres in Finland uses a patented additive to support good health, reduce inflammation and sfimulate recovery.,
which impraves gut infegrity and the performance of ammals.

In April, the Ingredients ABF division coguired Vital Sofutions, o German cormpany specialising in natural science-based
ingredients for application in dictary supplements and functional foods.

The ABF Agriculture division acquired IFCN AG. a dairy research and consulting compaony in June and in August
acquired National Milk Rocords pic (NMR] tor £48m. NMR v the leading agr-tech supplier of managemaent information
and tesfing services to the UK dairy supply chain, developing technology used fo inform farming efficiency and animal
welfare, and quaniify food provenance,

The acquisitions had the following effect on the Group's assels ond habilifies:

e 7 Recogrised values on acaaiston
il Meaticr sl silk
SOy NG Records Crmer Tora

valags Irn £ £m im
Net assets
Intangible assets 3 73 12 35
Property, plont ond equipment and right-of-use assets 5 4 1 5
westment in joint ventures 3 g - K
Ccsh and overdrafts 1 1 1
Working capital (1) 1 1
Loons (2} 12} - (2}
Tevaion o e v B ¢ TR c: RS -
Met identifiable assets and liabilities 10 30 b 4]
Goodhwil 18 21 3%
Total comsideration 48 32 80

Satishied by:

Cash consideration 78

Defered consideration 2

Net cash:

Cash considerarion 78

Crersh and cash equivalents acouired - o i
77
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

25, Acquisitions and disposals continued

Pre-acquisition canying amounts were the same as recognised values on acquisition aparf trom £32m of non-operating
intangiblos in respect of brands, fochnology ond customer relationships, a £7m related deferred tax hability, a £6m uplift
fo the investment in joint ventfurcs and goodwill of £39m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries, joint vonfures and
associates of £24m comprised £78m cash considerafion less £1m cash and averdrafts acquired, £16m of deferred
consideration reloting fo previous acauisitions and a £1m conidbution to an exsting ABF joint veniure in China.

2022

In January, the Group acquired 100% of Fytexia, a B2B specialfy ingredients business in Ffrance and italy producing and
formulating polyphenols-based active ingredients for the dietary supplements industry. In July, the Group acquired
Greencodat. a UK-based animal supplemoent and care business. During the yvear, the Group also acquircd a small
grocery company in New Iealand, a small agriculture business in Finlond and a small ingredients business in Australia.

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were the same as recognised values on acquisition apart from £88m of non-operating
intangibles in respect of brands, technology and customer relationships, an £8m upliff to inventory, a £16m related
defered tax liability and goodwill of £85m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of
£154m comprised £153m cash consideration fess £10m cash and overdrafts acquired, £7m of defered consideration
relating to previous acquisitions and a £4m confribufion to an exsting joint venture in China.

Disposals

2023

The Group agreed to sell property, plant and equipment to its Chinese joint venture partner. Profit on sale was £3m. In
March Gledhow, the Group's 30% equity-accounted associate in llove South Africa, formally went info business rescue.
A non-cash provision of £6m was booked on the financial guarantec held on this business” liabififics.

Tne Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fattal Group in May 2023 for £61Tm.

2022

The proposed safe of an ABF yeast company to the joint venture with Wilmar international in China (classified as heid for
sale at the 2021 year end) is not going ahead. The £10m non-cash impairment reversed in 2021 through profit/floss) on
sale and closure of business has been reinstated at a cost of £11m.

The Group's investment in north China Sugar is classified as held-for-sale at year ond and an associated £19m non-cash
write-down has been charged to lass on sale and closure of business.

The Group also released £3m of closure prowisions in Vivergo in lhe UK and £4n of warranty provisions no longer required
for o disposed Ingredients business in the United States.

24. Share-based payments

The annual charge in the income statement for equity-settled share-based payments schemes was £18m (2022 - £19m).
The Group had the following principal eguity-settled share-based payment plans in cperation during the period:

Associated British Foods 2014 Long-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2016 LTIP')

The 2016 LTIP was approved and adopted by the Group at the ABF AGM held on ¥ December 2014, If takes the form of
conditionaf allocations of shares which are released if, and to the extent that, performance targets are satisfied,
typically over a three-year vesting period.

Associated British Foods 2014 Short-term Incentive Flan (‘the 2014 STIP')

The 2016 5TIP was approved and adopted by the ABF Board on behalf of the Group on 2 Movember 2014, It takes the
form af conditional allocations of shares which are released at the end of @ three-year vesting pericd if. and to the
extent that, performance targets are satisfied, over a one-year performance period.

Further information regarding the operation of the above plans can be found in the Remuneration Report in the annual
report and accounts of ABF on pages 100 to 115,

Total conditional allocations under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are as follows:

Balane e
aalslanding at
Ihe. g CGrar-eal
o ne oorod caarded Vel “ s
2023 6,090,005 3,113,056 (607,140} (1,618,739) 6,977,182
2022 5419237 2445814 (718185  [1.056861] 090,005

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

Shares subject to allocation under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are held in a separate
Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust funded by the Group. Voting rights attached to shares held by the Trust are
exercisable by the trustee, who is entitled to consider any recommendation made by a committee of ABF. At 16
September 2023 the Trust held 4,734,992 (2022 - 3,042.132) ordinary shares of ABF. The market value of these shares at the
vear-and was £99m (2022 — £40m). The Trust has waived its right 1o dividends. sovements in the year were arelease of
607,140 shares and the purchase of 2,300,000 shares (2022 - relecse of 718,185 shares and the purchase of 2,413,228
shares),
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

24. Share-based payments continved

Fair values

The weighted average fair value of conditional grants made was detenmined by taking the market price of the shares at
the time of grant and discounting for the fact that dividends are not paid during the vesting period. The weighted
average fair value of the conditional shares allocated during the year was 1,544 (2022 - 1.6460p] and the weighted

average share price was 1,925p (2022 - 1.975p). The dividend yield used was 2.5% {2022 — 2.5%}.

27. Analysis of net debt

Consohclated Grou

P leroses

A A
17 Septemaer Acgumbons  oand ron cosh Exzhangs 14 Seplember
2022 Cash flioa and discosals ilems ad sstrents 2023
£n1 Il m Fil £m £m
Short-term loans 3N 13 (1) (88) 7 (100)
Long-term lodns 1481) 1] i) - (394}
Lease iobiihes (3,275} 312 {290} 43 {3,190)
Total liabiities from financing activities 13.787) 325 (?) 1290} 7  (3.e84)
Cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents and
overdrafts 2,100 {500) - - {73} 1.527
Current investments designated FVTPL 1,243 42 - 5] {14) 1,329
{444) 1126) (2 1237} (17} (828}
. [ . o Cmmsoldated Grouo S _
Al e x5 At
158 Seternier Azdusrons  andnon cash Exchonge 17 3eztember
071 Coe e and diisponals 1tarae SyuslmoeT: 2022
Em £m £m £ im £m
Short-term loans [290) 58 {23) 224 {31)
Long-term loans 175) 1179) - [1224) 2] 1481)
Lecse lichiiies (3308 325 (8) [184] {98} [3275)
Total liabilities from financing och\if_ilje(stww o 13.674) 204 131) 1184] {100) [3.787)
Cosh al bark and in hand, cash equivalents and
overdrafts 2,423 [397) - - 74 2100
Curent invesiments designafed FYTPL 1.093 2z e & 3 1,243
{158) 1714 131) 118%] 5 [44.4)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash balances. call depaosits and short-term investments with origing!
maturities of three months or less. £69m (2022 — £1246m} of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an
integral part of the Group's cash management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement [see note 20 for a reconciliation).

Net cash excluding lease liabilities is £2,362m (2022 - £2,831m) comprising cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents
and oveardrafts of £1,527m, short-term foans of £100m, long-term loans of £394rm and current investments designated
FVTPL of £1,329m {2022 - £2.100m, £31m. £481m and £1.243m respectively).

£69rm (2022 - £176rm) of bank overdrafts plus the £100m {2022 - £3Vm) of short-term loans shown above comprise the
£16%m {2022 - £157m} of current loans and overdrafts shown on the face of the balance sheet.

Current ang non-current lease ligbilities shown on the face of the balance sheet of £338m and £2,852m respectively
(2022 - £320m and £2.955m respectively) comprise the £3,190m (2022 - £3,275m) of lease liabilities shown abave.

Current investiments designated FVTPL comprise term deposits and short-lerm investments with original maturities of

greater than three months but less than one year,

Interest paid is included within financing activities. The roll-forward of the liabiliies associated with interest paid is an
opening balance of £{18)m, expense of £{129)m. payments of £119m, effect of hyperinflationary economies of £3m and
a closing balance of £(25)m (2022 - opening balance of £[20)m, expense of £{112)m. payments of £114m and a closing
balance of £{18}m). Outstanding balances of interast payables are included in accruals in nole 22.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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28. Financial instruments
Financial instroments include E£nil {2022 - £3m} of frade and other receivables and £nil (2022 - £14m) of trade and other

payables which are classified as held for sale {see note 17). All disclosures in this note are given gross, betore the held-
for-sale reclassification is made.

a) Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilities

. ABr o Qo.n;ojidﬂ'ﬂz;afé:;j; __--
2023 2022 2023
£m Lim Em
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,457 2,121 1,5%4 2224
Investmenis - 4 - 4
Trode and ofher receivables 1,568 1.567 1,593 1.594
Other non-current receivables 31! 29 31 29
At fair value through other comprehensive income
nvestments 32 29 32 29
At fair value through profit and loss
Investments - - 1,478 1,381
Derivative ossefs not designated in a cash flow hedging
relaticnship:
- currency derivatives 1! 50 1 50
- cormmodchty derivatives - 3 - 3
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative assets designated and effective as cash flow
hedging insfruments:
- currency derivatives (excluding cross-currency swaos) 40 70 40 70
- CrOss-CUMENCy Swaps 24 29 24 2%
- interest rale dervalives 4 - 4 -
- commadity derivatives o . 17 323 17 323
Total financial assol: 3,184 4,725 4824 5,730
Financial liakilities
Financial ligbilities at amorised cost
Trade and other payables {2,448) {2.651) [2477) |2,687)
Secured loons - {1) (1) {2}
Unsecured loans and overdrafts (fair value 2023 — £470m; 2022
-£571my) (562) {6306} (562) 1634)
Lease liabilifies (fair value 2023 £3.208m; 2022 - £3.494m;) (3.160) {3.252) (3,190) 3.275)
Defered consideration {6} {20} (8) (20)
At fair value through profit and loss
Derivative liakiities not designated in o cash fow hedging
relationship:
- curency derivatives [excluding cross-currency swaps) ()] (3} (6) 19)
- commodity derivatives - {3 - {3)
Designated net investment hedging relationships
Derivalive liabilities designated as net investiment hedging
instruments:
- Cross-CUNENCY Swaps (7 {7} 7) {7}
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative liabilities designated and effective as cash flow
hedging instruments:
- curency derivatives (excluding cross-curency swaps) {4 {17} (4) {17)
- interest derivafives - {3 - (3)
- commodily derivalives ) S (52) 1170} (52) LAY
Tolal financial liabiliies o ) , {6.245) (6765) {6.305) (6825)
Net financlal liabilities o o (306 (2,540) (1.479) (1.087)

Except where stated, canmying amount is equal to fair value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 Sepfember 2023

28. Financial instruments continued
Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instfruments camed al fair value on the balance sheet comprse dervatives and invesiments. The Group
classifies these financial instruments using a fair vatue hierarchy that reflects the relative significance of both objective
evidence and subjechve judgements on the inputs used in making the far value measurements:

Level 1: financial msiruments are valued using observable Inputs that reflect unadjusted guoted market prices inan
octive market far identical instruments. An example of an item in this category 15 a widely traded equity instrument with
a normal guoted market price.

Level 2: financial instruments are valued using technigues based on observable inputs, either directly [i.e. market prices
and rates) or indirectly (e, derived from market prices and rates). An example of an item in this category is a currency
derivative, where forward exchange rates and vield curve data, which are observable in the market, are used to derive
fair value,

Level 3: financial instruments are valued using fechnigues involving significant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is
categorised for Investments held at fair value through profit and loss:

(;pn;ohc-!-or-&dﬁupup

level1 level 2 level 3 Tetal Leval | le.el? lewel Tatal
£m £m im £m im £ £m Lr
Investments designated FVYTPL 1,175 299 4 1,478 495 682 4 1,381

Included within the level 2 investmenis is the Group's aggregate £145m inferast (2022: £138m) in 40 (2022: 44} separate
Partnerships, each of which held investments in unguoted investments. Such invesiments represent the Group's
allocable share of Partnership investiments and include inferests in nonredeemable, closed-end private investment
funds that do not trade in an active market and represent iliquid long-term investments that generally require future
capital commitments.

The fair value of such investments are determined by the General Partners of the funds invested in. Unquoted
investments are valued in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Cagpital Valuations Guidelines
as endorsed by the British Venture Capital Association. The basis of valuation in these guidelines include valuing
investments at the price of recent comparative industry price earings ratios discaunted faor marketability and
performance of the investment. by review of comparable M&A dedls in appropriate sectors, and net asset valuations for
asset based investments.

Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuing unguoted investments, the eventual realisation proceeds may differ
from the estimated fair value and the difference could be significant. Appropriate provisions are made against all
individual values where necessary to reflect unsatisfactory financial perfformance or a fall in comparable ratings, leading
to impairment in value.

b) Derivatives
All derivatives are classified as current on the foce of the balance sheel. The table below analyses the carying amount
of derivatives and their contractual/notional amounts, together with an analysis of derivatives by the level in the fair

value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is calegorised.

Conseldared Graup

2023 . e R
Contracieal/ 4
natienal
amounts Level 1 Level 2 Totat Lesver 0 Level 2 Total
£m £m £m Em £ Firel £
Financial assets
Curmency derivafives 2,402 - 51 51
lexclucling cross-cumency swaps) 2193 - 120 120
Cross-CUMency swips a4 - 24 24 94 29 29
Interest rate derivatives 400 - 4 4 : -
Commodity derivatives 163 E) 12 a7 439 3
o 3,049 5 b4l 26 _27%
Financial liabilities
Currency derivalives 626 - (10} (10)
{excluding Cross-Cumrency swaps) 721 - 22) [22)
Cross-cumency swaps 65 - (7} 7 48 - {7) {7)
interest rate derivatives - - - - 400 - {3 {3
Commodity cervatives Cows @ (59 (52) 6 - 73 (17
66 (2) (67) 6%) 1.755 - [205) [205)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continyed

c) Cash flow hedging reserve

The following table identifies the movements in the cash flow hedging reserve during the year, and the periods in which
the cash flows are expected to occur. The periods in which the cash flows are expected to impact profit or loss are

materally the same.

Consolidated Group

2023 2622 N
Curency
derivalives
{excluding Cross-
cross- curency Inferest  Commodity
curency) swaps Detivatives derivallves [R5 el
£m £m im im 2
Opening balance {41} - 2 {115) (43)
Losses/[gains) recognised in the
hedgng reserve 73 5 (5) 33¢ 12 (295) (20) 3 (234) [546)
Amount remaoved from the hedging
ieserve andd included in the income
statement:
revenug (8} - - (7) 13) 5 - - {4) |
- cosl of sales - - - (132) (132) - 105 105
—other financial incomel/expense - 7} - - (k4] 21 21
Amount removed from the hedging
reserve and included in a non-
financial asset:
inventory (52) - - {14) [68) 258 - - 22 280
Deferediox 2) - - (39 (40 5 - n 24 38
Closing balance (28) {2} (2} 30 (2) (41) - 2 {115) (154}
Cash flows are expected to ocgur:

—within six monihs (15) - - 25 10 {36) - 2 (105)  {139)
- between sixk months and one year (13) {2} (2) 4 {13) (¢ - - [10) (18}
between one and two years - - - 1 1 1 - - 1

(28) (2} (2} 30 2) {41) - 2 (115) {154]

Of the closing balance of £(2}m, £{1}m is attibutable to eguity shareholders and £{1)m to non-controlling interests {2022
- £{154)m, £{84)m attributable to equity shareholders and £{70)m to non-confroling inferests). Of the net movement in
trre year of £152m. £83m s attributable to equity shareholders and £69m 1o non-controling interests (2022 - £{111)m,
£{60)r is attributable to equity shareholders and £{51}m to non-conirolling inferests).

The balance remaining in the commodity cash flow hedge reserve from hedging relationships for which hedge

accounting is no longer applied is £3m (2022 - £1m).

The balance in the cost of hedging reserve was not significant at 17 September 2022 or 16 September 2023,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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28. Financial instruments continued
d) Financial risk identification and management
The Group is exposed to the following financial risks from the use of financial instruments:

liquiddity risk.
- market risk; and
- credit risk.

The Group's financial risk management process seeks to enable the early idenlification, evaluation and effective
management of key risks facing the business. Risk management policies and systems have been established and are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's aclivilies. The Group, through its standards
and procedures, aims fo develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Group sources and sells praducts and manufactures goods in many locations around the world. These operations
axpose the Group to potentially significant price volatility in the financial and commodity markets. Risk management
teams have been established in the Group's major busingsses to manage this exposure by entering into a range of
products, including physical and financial forward contracts, futures, swaps, and. where appropriate, options. These
teams work closely with Group Treasury and report regularly to executive management.

Treasury operations and commaodity procurement and hedging are conducted within a claarly defined framewaork of
Board-approved policies and guidelines to manage the Group's financial and commaodity risks. Group Treqsury works
closely with the Group's procurement teams to manage commaodity risks, Group Treasury policy seeks to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available at all times for the management and development of the Group's
businesses, whilst effeciively managing its market risk and credit risk. The Group's risk management policy expliciily
forbids the use of financial or commodity derivatives (outside its risk management framework of mitigating financial and
commaodity risks) for speculative purposes.

e) Foreign currency translation

The Group presents ifs financial statements in stering. As a result of its worldwide operations, the Group is exposed fo
foreign currency translation risk where overseas eperations have a functional currency other than sterting. Changes in
Toreiyn curency cxehange rates impact the transgtation inta stering of both the income statement and net assets of
these foreign operafions.

The Group typically finances its aperations using own funds generated in the functional currency of its operations and
where appropriate, by borrowing locally In the same funchional currency. This reduces net asset values reported in
funciional currencies other than sterling. thereby reducing the economic exposure to fluctuations in forgign currency
exchange rafes on franslation.

The Group also finances its operations by oblaining funding at Group level through external borrowings and, where they
are not in stering, these borrowings may be designated as net investment hedges. This enables gains and losses ansing
on retranslation of these foreign curency borowings to be charged to other comprehensive income, providing a partial
offset in equity against the gains ond losses arising on franslation of the net assets of foreign operations.

The Group also holds cross-curency interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate non-sterling debl. These are reporfed as
cash flow hedges and net investment hedges. The change in fair value of the hedging instrument. 1o the degree
eftective, is retained in other cormprehiensive incame., Under ITRS ¢, the currency basis on the cross-currency swaps is
excluded from the hedge designation and recognised in other comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The value of
the currency basts is not significant. Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetical derivative approach, The
hypothetical derivative is based on the critical terms of the debt and therefore the only ineffectiveness that might arise is
in relahon to credit risk, Credit risk is monitored regularly and is not a significant factor in the hedge relationship.

The Group does not actively hedge the translation impact of foreign exchange rate movements on the income
statement (other than via the partial economic hedge arising from the servicing costs on non-sterling borawings).

The Group designates certain of its intercompany loan arrangements as quasi-equity for the purposes of IAS 21, The
effect of the designation is that any fareign exchange volatility arising within the barrowing entity and/or the lending
entity is accounted for directly within other comprehensive income.

A net foreign exchange loss of £2m {2022 - £nil) on retranslation of these loans has been taken to the translation reserve
on consolidation, all of which was attributable to equity shareholders. The Group also held cross-curency swaps that
have been designated as hedges of its net investments in eures, whose change in foir value of £nil to the transiation
reserve. all of which was aftibutable to equity shareholders (2022 - £1m has been debited to the translation reserve).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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28. Financial insfruments continved
f} Market risk

tMarket risk is the risk of movements in the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrurnent or forecast transaction
as underlying market prices change. The Group is expesed to changes in the market price of commaodities, interesi rales
and foreign exchange rates. These risks are known as ‘transaction' (or recognised) exposures and 'economic’ [or
forecast] exposures.

(i) Commedity price risk
Commoedity price risk arises from the procurement of raw materials, the sale of finished goods linked to market indices
and the consequent exposure to changes in market prices.

The Group purchases a wide range of commoaodities in the ordinary course of business and has some sales contracts
which are linked to financial market indices. Exposure to changes in the market price of certain of these commodities
including sugar raws, energy, wheat, edible oils, soya beans, tea, lean hog, coceoa andrice is managed through the use
of torward physical contracts and hedging instruments, including futures, swaps and options primarily o convert floating
prices to fixed prices. The use of such confracts lo hedge commodity exposures is governed by the Group's risk
managemeant policies and is continually monitored by Group Treasury. Commodity derivatives alse provide a way fo
meet customers' pricing requirements whilst achieving a price structure consislent with the Group's overall pricing
strateqgy.

Sorme of the Group's commaodity forward contracts are classified as 'own use’ contracts, since they are enterad into,
and continue to be held, for the purposes of the Group's ordinary operaticns. In this instance the Group takes physical
delivery of the commaodity concerned. Own use confracts do not require accounting entries unti! the commadity
purchase actually crystclises. Where possible, other commodity derivatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges
{typically with a one-to-one hedge ratic], but there are some commodity derivatives for which the strict requirements of
hedge accounting cannct be satisfied. Such commaodity derivatives are used only where the business believes they
provide an economic hedge of an underlying exposure. These insfrumeants are classified as held for frading and are
marked to market through the income statement.

The majority of the Group's forward physical contracts and commodily dervafives have matunfies of less than ocne year.

The Group's sensifivities in respect of commodity derivatives for a +/- 20% movement in underlying commodity prices are
£16m (2097 = £62m) and £(13)m (2022 - £(57Im), respectively.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk comprises two primary elements:

interest price risk results from financial instruments beanng fixed interest rates. Changes in floating interest rates
therefore atfect the fair value of these fixed rate financial instruments; and

interest cash flow risk results from financial instruments bearing floating rates. Changes in floating interest rates affect
cash flows oninterest receivable or pavable.

Tne Group's policy is to manage its mix of fixed and floating rate debt, cash and investments so that a significant
change in Interest rates does not have a matend! negative impact on the Group's cash flows,

Al 14 Seplember 2023, £475m (85%) (2022 - £487m and 76%) of total debt was subject to fixed rates of interest, the
majority of which is the 2034 public bond {fixed rate of 2.5%). Floaling rate debt comprises other bank borrowings
boaring interest rates for various time periods up to 12 months, by reference to the relevant market rate for the curency
and location of the barowing.

The Growp's cash and cash equivalents and current asset invesiments are subject to floating rates of interast, typically
fixed for periods up to 3 months by reference to the relevant market rate for the currency of the cash placing or
investment.

£400m of 12-month sterling interest rate swaps have been entered into so that the floating interest rate received on an
equivalent balance of the Group's cash and cash equivalents is fixed for the 12-month period to September 2024,

Wittington Investments Financial Storcments 2023 53



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 Sepfember 2023

28. Financial instruments continued

(iii) Foreign curency risk

The Group conducts business worldwide and consequently in many foreign currencies. As a result, it is exposed to
movernents in foreign currency exchange rates which affect the Group's fransaction costs. The Group also publishes ifs
financial statements in sterling and is therefore exposed 1o maovemeants in foreign exchange rates on the franslation of
the results and underlying net assets of its foreign cperations into sierling.

Translation risk s discussed in seclion &) on page 54,

Transaction risk

Cumrency fransaction exposure occurs where a business makes sales and purchases in a currency ather than its
funchonal curency. It also anses where monetary assets and llabilifies of @ busingss are not denaminated in its functional
currency, and where dividends or surplus funds are remitted from overseas. The Group's policy is to match transaction
axposures wherever possitle, and to hedge actual exposures and firm commitments as soon as they cccur by using
forward foreign currency confracts.

The Group uses derivatives {principally forward foreign currency contracts and time options) ta hedge its exposure to
movements in exchange rates on ifs foreign currency trade receivables and payables. The Group does not seek formal
fair value hedge accounting for such transaction hedges. Instead. such derivatives are classified as held for trading and
marked to market through the income statement. This offsets the income statement impact of the retransiation of the
foreign currency frade receivables and payables,

Economic {forecast) risk

The Group principally uses forward foreign currency contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in exchange rates on
its highly probabie forecast foreign currency sales and purchases on arolling 12-month basis. The Group does not
formally define the proportion of highly probable forecast sales and purchases to hedge, but agrees an appropriate
percentage on an individual basis with ecch business by reference to the Group's risk management palicies and
prevailing market conditions. The Group designotes currency derivatives used to hadge ifs highly probable forecast
transactions as cash flow hedges. Under IFRS 9, the spot component is designated in the hedging relotionship and
forward points and currency basis are excluded and recognised in other comprehensive income - cost of hedging. The
cost of hedging value during the period and at the balance sheet date was not material. The economic relationship is
based on crifical terms and a one-to-one hedge ratio. To the extent that cash flow hedges are effective. gains and
losses are deferred in equity until the forecast fransaction occurs, ab which point the gains and losses are recycled either
io the income statement or to the non-financial asset acquired.

The majority of the Group's currency dervatives have criginol maturihies of less than cne year,

The Group's most significant currency transactlion exposures are:
sourcing for Primark — costs are denominated in a number of currencies, predominonily US doliars, euros and sterling.
sugar sales in Britsh Sugar to movements in the sterling/euro exchange rate,

Eisewhere, o number of businesses make sales and purchase a variety of raw materials in foreign curencies (primanly US
dallars and euros), giving rise fo transaction exposures. In ail other mafterial respects, businesses tend to operate in their
funclicnal curencies.
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28. Financial instruments continved

The table below illusirates the effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated
income statement by disclosing separately by risk category, and each type of hedge, the details of the associated

hedging instrument and hedged item.

Corsol dalad Grouy

o . 2023
Change in fair Change in fair
Carrying value of hedging value of hedge
amaunf Furthest instrument used to item used to
Contract assets/ maiurity Hedge determine hedge delermine hedge
notional  (liebilities} dote ratio ineffectiveness effecliveness
£m £m £m % £m £m
Current
Designated cash flow hedging relationships:
- currency derivatives {excluding cross-curency swaps) 2,024 36 Sep 24 100% 36 (38)
Cross-CURENCY Swaps 84 24 Mar24 100% [} (8)
— commodity dernvatives 427 {35} Sep24 100% (35) 35
- interest rate derdvatives 400 4 Sep 24 100% 4 {4}
Designated net investment hedging relationships:
curmengy derivatives [Cross-curmency swaps) 65 (7} Mar24 100% - -
Non-current
Designated cash flow hedging relationshios:
- cunency defivatives (excluding cross-curency swaps) 21 - 1007 - -
—commodity derivatives 1 - 100% - -
T B o oldaled Gravp .
2022 . _
Change: in o Change in lor
Cuarmiry salue of hedging vilue of nedge
arrcuni Fuiirest rstrument used to item used ¢
Cortroct asietel mah ity Hedge  celermine hedae  deleming hedgs
nohonal || = est dat= raho relfartiveness eftecliveress
£in £m im T L Fial
Current
Designated cosh flow hedging refationships:
curency dervatives [excluding cross-currency swaps) 2,102 54 Sep 23 100% 34 {54}
— Cross-CUImency swips 739 152 Aug 23 1005 152 [152]
- commadily derivatives 400 (3} Aug 23 100% (3] 3
Non-current
Desgnated cash flow hedging relationships:
- currency derivatives (excluding cross-currency swaps) 32 11} Sep24 100% m 1
- CrOss-CUMency swaps 94 22 Mar 24 100% 14 (14}
- commadity derivatives 20 1 Jan 24 100% 1 1)
Designated net investment hadging relationships:
—currency derivaltives [cross-curency swaps) 58 {7} mar24 1G0% {3) 3

Hedging relationships are typically based on a one-te-one hedge ratio. The economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument is analysed on an ongoing basis. Sources of possible ineffectiveness include changes in
forecast fransactions as a result of timing or value or, in certain cases, different indices linked 1o the hedged item and
the hedging instrument. As at 16 September 2023, £2.045m of forward foreign currency contracts designated ag cash
flow hedges were outstanding (2022 - £2,134m), largely in relation to purchases of USD (£1,702m) and sales of EUR
{£203m) with varying maturities up to Apnl 2025, Weighted average hedge rates tor these contracts are GBPUSD: 1.264,
EURUSD: 1.098 and GBPEUR: 1,145, Weighted average hedge rates for the cross-currency swaps are GBPUSD: 1.70 and
GBPEUR: 1.246. Commadity derivatives designated as cash flow hedges related to a range of underlying hedged items,

with varying maturities up to February 2025.
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28. Financial instruments continued
The analysis of the Group’s foreign curency exposure to financial assels and liabilities by curency of denomination s as
follows:

Cosaldared Grows.

2023
Sterling Us dollar Euro Gther Total
£m £m £m Em £m
Fingncial assets
Cuash and cash equivalents - 351 22 32 405
Trode and ofher receivables - 50 56 19 125
Investmenits - - - - -
' - 401 78 51 530
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (17) (381) {41} (6) (445)
Unsecured loans and overdrafis - (81) - 1 (80}
o ) B 017) (462) {41) {5) (525)
Currency derivatives
Gross amounts receivable 67 1,890 12 466 2,535
Gross amounts payable - (3) (161} {299) (179) (642)
- - 64 1,729 (187) 287 1,893
T o 47 1,668 (150) 333 1,898

Consoldaea Croup
2022

Sterng LIS dolar Euro Cther Tolal
im im im £ £
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 86 13 38 138
Trade and other receivaties - 55 54 24 133
Inveslments - H4e - 149
T T - _ B 290 &7 )
Financial liabilities o o
Trade and other payables {29) (512) [28) (17} (596)
Unsecured leans and overdrafts - °o = - [70)
T - (29) (602) B8 N7 18l
Curtency derivatives o
Gross amaounts receivable 93 2143 98 254 2.5%0
Gross amounts payakble {2) 1202) {428 {57) [689)
o 63 1629 (201 C 244 1435
The fallowing major exchange rates applied during the year:
T o Averogn e T Closing rate ——
2023 2622 2023 2522
US dollar 1.22 1.2¢ 1.24 1.14
Euro 1.15 1.18 1.16 1.14

The following sensitivity analysis lllustrates the impact that a 10% strengthening of the Group's transactional cumencies
against local functional currencies would have had on profit and equity. The analysis covers currency transtation
exposures al year end on businesses’ financial assets and liabilities that are not denominated in the funclional currencies
of those businesses. A similar but opposite impact would be felt on both profit and equity if the Group's main operating
currencies weakened against lecal functional currencies by o similar amount.

The exposure 1o foreign exchange gains and losses on fransiating the financial statements of subsidiaries into stering is
not included in this sensitivity analysis, as there is no impact on the income slatement, and fhe gains and losses are
recorded directly in the franslation reserve in equity (see below for a separate sensitivity). This sensitivity is presented
before taxation and non-controlling inferesis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

28. Financial instruments continved

Sensitivity analysis

2023 2023 v B T

impacton impact on Tipcact on st on

profil for total praht fo toran

. ) . th ied i g periad S0y

10% strengthening against ofher currencies of © pe";m eq‘;",,‘: ere ;n. 1},,{,
Sterling 1 & - &
S doliar 21 1464 19 172
Eurc (2) (£47)] [19] (41]
Other 29 32 16 22

A second sensitivity analysis calculates the impact on the Group's profit before tax if the average rates used to transiate
the results of the Group's foreign operations into sterling were adjusted to show a 10% strengthening of sterling. A similar
but cpposite impact would be felt on profit before tax if slerling weakened against the other currencies by a sirmilar
amount.

2023 2922

Impact on AT Or

profit for prothfor

163 strengthening of sterling against " penr:o.: " Der?r::i
US dollar (24) 118}
Euro (22} (3)
Other (27) {4)

g) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties to financial instruments do not perform gccording to the terms of the contract ar
instrument. The Group's businesses are exposed to counterparty credit risk when dealing with customers, suppliers, and
from financial institutions.

The immediate credit exposure of financial instrurments is represented by thase financial instruments that have a nel
positive fair value by counterparty ot 14 September 2023, The Group considers its maximum exposure to credit risk o be:

Consoldelea Goun

2023 02

£m im
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,5%6 2226
investments at armortised cost - 4
Investrments at fair value through profit and loss 1,478 1,381
Trade and other receivables 1.5%3 1,594
Cther non-current receivables 3n 29
Investments af fair value through other comprehensive iIncome 32 29
Derivative assets al foir value through profit and toss 1 33
Derivalive assels in designated cash flow hedging relationships . 78 415
oo o 4819 5731

The significant majority of cash balances and short-term deposits are held with strong investment-grade banks or
financial institutions.

The Group uses market knowledge, changes in credil ratings and other metrics to identify significant changes to the
financial profile of its counterparties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

28. Financial instruments continued
Trade and other receivables

Significant concentrations of credit risk are very limited as aresult of the Group's large and diverse customer base. The
Group has an established cradit policy applied by each business under which the credit status of each new customer is
reviewed betore credit s advanced. This includes extemnal credil evaluations where paossible and in some cases bank
references. Credit imits are established for alt significant ar high-risk customers. which represent the maximum amount
permitted to be ocutstanding without requiring additional approval from the appropriate level of management.
Qutstanding debts are continually monitored by each business. Credit limits are reviewed on a regular basis, and at least
annually. Custfomers that fait fo meel the Group's benchmark creditworthiness may anly fransact on a prepayment
basis. Aggregale exposures are monitored at Group level.

Many customers have been transacting with the Group for many years and the incidence of bad debts has been low.
Where approprialte, goods are sold subject to retention of titie so that, in the event of non-payment. the Group may
have asecured claim. The Group does not typically require collateralin respect of frade and other receivables.

The Group provides torimpainment of tinancial assets including trade and other receivables based on known events,
and makes a callective provision for losses vet 1o be identified, based on historical data, The majority of the provision
comprises specific amounts.

To measure expected credit losses, gross trade receivables are assessed regulariy by each business locally with
reference to considerations such as the current status of the relationship with the customer, the geographical location of
each customer, and days past due (where applicable).

Expected losses are determined based on the historical experience of write-offs compared to the level of frade
recelvables, These historical loss expectations are adjusted for current and forward-looking information where it is
identified to be significant. The Group considers factors such as national economic outlooks and bankruptey rates of the
countries in which its goods are sold to be the most relevant factors. Where the impact of these is assessed as significant,
the historical loss expectations are amended accordingly.

The Group considers credit risk 1o have significantly increased for debts aged 180 days or over and expects thaese debts
to be provided for in full. Where the Group holds insurance ar has g legal right of offset with debtors who are also
creditors, the loss expectation is applied only fo the extent of the uninsured or net exposure,

the failure of the debtor to engage in a payment plan, and failure to make contractual payments within 180 days past
due.

The maximum exposure to credil risk for trade and other receivables af the reporting date by geographic region of
Srgin was:

Corsolicated Grous

2023 e

£m in

UK 509 506
Europe & Afnca 398 385
The Amencas 214 230
Asia Pacific o . o 370 373
T o 1,593 1.594

Trade receivables can be analysed as follows:

" Conse datea Group:

2023 2322

£m £m

Not overdue 1,164 1,134
Up 1o one month past due 124 141
Between one and two months past due 30 31
Between two and three months past due 10 12
More than three moniths past due 30 30

Expected |oss provision - B N -} I V2
o ' ) ) 1,330 1.32]

Trade receivables are stated net of the following expected loss provisian:

Cerwolidated Goun

2023 7027

£m i
Opening balance 27 24
Increase charged to the income statement 7 [
Arnounts relecsed (2) 14)
Armounis wrtten off {2} 1)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {2} 2
Closing balance o T T T T T g 27

No frade receivables were written off directly to the income statement in either vear,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued

The gecgraphical and businass line complexity of the Group, combined with the fact that expected credit loss
assessments are all performed locally, means that it is not practicable to present further analysis of credit losses.

In relation 1o other receivables not forming part of trade receivables. a similar approach has been taken to assess
expected credit losses. No signiticant expected credit loss has been identified.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of raode and other receivables approximates fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Banking relationships are generally selected for their credit status, global reach and their ability to meet the businesses’
day-to-day banking requirements. The credit risk of these institutions are monitored on a continuing basis. Operating

procedures including choice of bank, opening of bank accounts and repatriation of funds must be agreed with Group
Treasury. The Group has nol recorded impairments against cash or cash equivalents, nor have any recoverability issues

been identified with such balances.
h) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liakilities as they fall due. Group Treasury is responsible for monitoring and managing liquidity and ensures that the Group
has sufficient headroom inits commitied tacilities to meet unforeseen or abnormal requirements. The Group also has

access to uncommitied facilities to assist with short-term funding requirements.

Availakle headroom is monitored via the use of detailed cash flow forecasts prepared by each business, which are
reviewed at least quarterly, or more often, as required. Actual results are compared o budget and forecast each
period, and variances investigated and explained. Particular focus is given to management of working capital.

The Board's treasury policies are in place fo maintain a strong capital base and manage the Group's balance sheet to
ensure long-term financial stability. This includes maintaining access to significant total liguidity comprised of both net

cash and undrawn committed credit facilities. These policies are the basis for invaestor, credilor and market confidence
and enable the successful development of the business.

Details of the Group's borrowing facilities are given in seciion ij on page 62,

The following table analyses the contraciual undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liabilities at the balance sheet

date and compares them to carrying armaounts:

Consoldated Groug

Due Due Due
between between between
Due within & months Tand 2 2angd 5 Dve after  Contracted Carrying
& manths  and 1 year yedars years 5 years amaunt amount
Note £m £m £my Em £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and ofther payables 22 {2.409) (68) - - - (2,477) (2,477)
Secured loans 21 - m - - - (1) m
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 21 (80) {101} (13) (30) (4460) (684) (562)
Lease labiltes 7 {199} {212) {40%) [1,065) (2,100) (3.985) (3,190)
Delared consideration 73 2) m (3} - - (&) {6)
Derivative financial fabilities
Currency derivatives [excluding cross- (4) - - (3) - 2] (10)
currency swaps) (net payments)
_Commodity derivafives [net payments) N ..) B ) I S (52) _ (52)
Total financial liabilities (2,740) (388) (424) (2,540} (7.212) (6,298)
T T o Comeioaten Group
e e 222
Cue Cus Due
bestwesn brgabwreen < 3elal
Doe wth & rnonthk: 1 and 2 Zanclh [oe aber Carying
4rronths  and | y=ar vearn WELTE 5 weaor, aracunt
NZe £m im im I £m £
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and olher poyables 22 12,459} (28] - - - 12.687) 12,687}
Secured foans 21 - 1 1) - (2) 12)
Unsecured loans and overdrofts 21 {153] (17) {103) 131) (470) [774) {634)
Lecse liabiities 27 {200] 1217] {413) [1.127} (2.404)} 14.361) {3,275}
Defered consideration 23 14) (12 {1 [3) - 20} {20}
Detivative financial liabilities
Currency derivatives (excluding cross- 15} 2) (1) - (18] 122)
currency swaps] (net payments)
- Commadity derivatives (nel payments) {170) (1) (2) - {173) (173
_Interest rate derivatives (net poyments) (3] == - - (3] (3
Total financial liabilities (3,204) [278) 15213 11.151) 12.874] 18,038) 14818)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continved
The above tables do not include forecast data for liabilities which may be incured in the future but which were not
confracted at 146 September 2023,

The principal reasons for ditferences between carrying values and contractual undiscounted cash flows are coupon
payments on the fixed rate debt to which the Group is already committed, fulure interest payments on the Group's
lecse iabilities, and cash flows on dervative financial instruments which are not aligned with their fair vaiue.

i) Borrowing facilities
The Group has substantial borrowing facilifies available to it The undrawn committed facilites available ot 16
Seplember 2023, in respect of which all conditions precedent have been meat, amounted 10 £1,.516m (2022 - £1,567m:

) Cons* \dul(—‘zir-\:(i"

2023 .
Facility Drawn YUndrawn Lncrawn
£m £m £m fin
Committed Revolving Credit Facitity 1,500 - 1,500 1,500
Public Bond due in 2034 390 390 -
US privearte placement 81 81 - -
Howvo 29 15 14 65
2,003 487 1,516 2,064 497 1,567
Uncommitted facilities available ol 16 September 2023 were:
Cersohclualen Croup
2023 e A
Facility Drawn Undrawn Facny ez !
£m £m £m Im &
llovo 1s 50 45 183 99
Azucarera 33 1 32 34 2
Chire 35 - 35 39
Moneymerket ines - - - 100 -
Other 180 25 155 142 40 122
363 74 287 525 141 384

In addition to the above facilities there are also £149m (2022 — £114m) of undrawn and available credit lines for the
ourposes of issuing letters of credit and guaraniees in the normal course of business.

The Group has issued a public bond of £400m due in 2034. Included are deferred financing costs totalling £10m which
have been capitalised against the bond and are 1o be amortised over its lerm.

Uncommitted bank borrowing tacilities are normally reaffirmed by the banks annuatly, although they can be withdrawn
at any time.

Referto note 10 for details of the Groun's capital commitrments and fo note 29 for a summary of the Group’s
guarantees.

j) Capital management

The capital structure of the Group is presented in the consolidated alance sheet. For the purpose of the Group's
capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to equily shareholders, totalling
£8.195m (2022 — £8.106m). The consolidated statement of changes in equity provides details on equity and note 21
provides details of loans and overdrafts. Short- and medium-term funding requirements are provided by a variety of loan
and overdrafl facilities, both commilted and uncommitted, with a range of counterparties and maturities. Longer-term
funding is sourced from the 2034 Public Bond, the private placement notes and committed syndicated loan facilities.

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence ond to
enable successful future development of the business. The Board monitors return on cagital by division and determines
the overall level of dividends payable to shareholders.

From time to time the frustee of the ABF Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust purchoses ABF shares in the market to
satisfy awards under the Group's incentive plans, Once purchased, shares are nol sold back into the market. The Group
does not have a defined share buy-back plan.

There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year, Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries is subject fo externally-imposed capifal requirements.

29. Contingencies

Litigation and other proceedings against the Group are not considered matenal in the context of these financial
statements.

Where Group companies enter into financial guarantee contracts te guarantee the indebiedness of other Group
companies, the Group considers these to be insurance arrangements and has elected to account for them as suchin
accordance with IFRS 4. In this respect, the guarantee contract is trected as a contingent liability until such time as it
becomes probable that the relevant Group company issuing the guarantee will be required tc make a poyment under
the guarantee.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

far the 52 weeks ended 16 Septemibzer 2023

29. Contingencies confinued

As at 16 September 2023, Group companies have provided guarantees in the ordinary course of business amounting fo
£1.724m (2022 - £1.754m).

In 2021, a Thai court ruled in favour of ABF's Ovalline business in Thailand in a legal action it brought against one of its
suppliers in respect of a contractual dispute. The court concluded that between 2009 and 2019 the supplier hacl
overcharged Ovatline Thailand and should pay compensation of 2.2 bilion Thai baht (£50m; 2022 - £52m), The relevant
conhractual relationship between the Group and ifs suppiier terminated ol the end of 2019, The Group has not yet
recorded an assetinrespect of this matter as the defendant is appealing the judgment. Since the balance sheet date,
a proclamation from the appeal court in Thailand has been made regarding the appeal by the defendant that reverses
the previous judgement that was given in 2021, We are currently reviewing next steps with legal counsetl,

30. Related parties

The Group has a centrolling shareholder relalionship with its subsidiary company. ABF, with the frustees of the Garfield
Weston Foundation and with certain other individuals who hold shares 1n the Company. Further details of the controling
shareholder reictionship are included in note 32, The Group has a related party relationship with its associates and joint
ventures (see notfe 32) and with ils directors. In the course of normal operotions, related party fransactions entered into
by the Group have been contracted on an arm’s length basis.

raterial transactions and year end balances with relaled parfies were as follows:

Sun 2023 2
nofe £000 £00i

Bividends poid by Witlington nvestments Limited and Associated Briftsh Foods plc {ABF7)

and receved In g beneficial capacity by:

fiy frustess of the Garfield weston Foundation and their close family 1 15,964 16,217
fi] chractors of Withnglon Investrments tmited who are not frustees of the Foundaltion and

their close family Z 3,408 3,334
Sales to and commissions paid 1o companies with common key management personnel on
normal freding ferms 3 9912 16,891
Amounts due lrom companies with common key management personnel 3 1,028 2898
Sales to joint venltures on nomnal frading ferms 40,645 54111
Scites 1o assaciates on normal frading ferms 88,753 73.360
Purchases from joint ventures on normal frading terms 432,267 436,467
Purchases from associotes on nomal lrading ferms 97.844 13,879
Amounts due from joint veniures 45,065 48,655
Amounts due from associates 9.045 2,451
Amounts due fo joint ventures 17,609 30214
Amounls due fo associales 7.151 574
Provision for deubiful debts on amounts due from associates (300) (300]

. The Garfield Wes on Foundation ['The Foundanon’] is an English enanrable trust, established in 19738 by he lare W. Garfield Weston, The
Foundation nas no direc: interest in the Company. bur as o+ 14 Seprember 2023 was the beneficial owner of 483.073 shares (2022 483.073
shares) in Withngton Inves mren's Limited representing 79.2% 12022 - 79.2%)] of *he Comoany's issued share capral and is. fnerefore, tne
Cormrpany's ultimare controlling party. At 14 Septembar 2023 frustes; of ‘ne Foundation comansed nine grondshildren of “he lgre W Gaield
Weston of whomr five are children of the late Garry F. Waston.

[~

. Details of the directaors of Witting-on Inves-menrs Limited ore given on paas 7, Direcars’ remunerahon is disclosed in note 5.

3. The comoany with comman key managemenl pesonngl is the Gearge Weston Limited group, in Canada.

Armounts due from joint ventures include £32m (2022 - £29m) of finance lease recelvables {see nole 14}. The remainder
of the balance is tfrading balances. All bul £4m (2022 — £4m) of the finance lease receivables are nen-current.

Details of the Group's subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates are set out in note 32,

31, Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £86.50, total value of £74.6m., will be
paid on 23 january 2024 to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2023,

32. Group entfities

Confrol of the Group

The trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation (‘the Foundation }are controlling shareholders of the Company. Certain
other individuals, including certain members of the Weston family who hold shares in the Company are. under the Listing
Rules. treated as acting in concert with the trustees of the Foundation and are therefore also freated as controling
shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

32. Group entities confinued
Subsidiary undertakings

Alist of the Group's subsidiaries as af 16 September 2023 Is given below.

ABF announced a share buyback progromme of £500m in November 2022, In the financial year, ABF purchased 23.7
million ABF shares for £448m and the shares bought back were cancelled. Since the financial year end, o further 2.8
milion ABF shares were purchased, completing the total £500m buyback programme. ABF has announced the
continuation of a buyback programme, targeting an additional amount of £500m over the next 12 months.

Given ithe Group owns 54.2% of the share capital of ABF plc at 14 September 2023, the effective ownership of
subsidiaries is 56.2% except where ownership percentages are shown. These percentages give the Group's ultmate
intarest and therefore allow for situations where subsidiaries are owned by portly owned intermediate subsidiaries, Where
subsidiares have different classes of shares, this is largely for historical reasons and the effective percentage holdings
given represent both the Group's voting rights and equity holding. All subsidiaries are conselidated in the Group's
financial statements. All subsidiaries with an effective holding of less than 50% are subsidianes of ABF plc. Since ABF plc
has greater than 50% effective ownership of these subsidiaries, and the Group owns 56.2% of the share capiial of ABF

plc, the Greup has effechive control of these subsidlianes,

T TR Sective Folaing

Subimi ury unclertckirgs ifnos 5a 24

Subsicoaty Lnderickings

United Kingdom

Weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Sfreet, London,
WIK 4QY. United Kingdom

A.B. Exploration Lirmited

AB.F. Holdings Limited

ABF. Nominees Limited

A.BF. Properties Limiled

AB Agri Limited

AB Foods Australia Limited

AB Ingredients Limited

AB Maur [UK] Limited

AB Mauri China Limitod

AB Mo BEurope Limited

AB Sugar Ching Holdings Limited
AB Sugar Ching Limited

AB Sugar China North Limited
AB Sugar Limited

AB Technology Limited

AB World Foods [Holdings) Limited
AB wWorld Foods Limited

ABF (No. 1) Limited

ABF [No, 2) Limited

ABF [Ne. 3) Limifed

ABF BRL Finance Lid

ABF Energy Limited

ABF Europe Finance Limited
ABF Eurcpean Holdings Limited
ABF Finance Limited

ABF Food Iech Investments Limited
ABF Funding

ABF Grain Products Limited
ABF Green Park Limied

ABF Grocery Limited

ABF HK Finance Limited

ABF Ingredients Limited

ABF Investments plc

ABF Investments (Mo.2} Limited
ABF Japan Limited

ABF MXN Fincnce Limited

ABF Crverseas Limited

ABF plc

ABF P Limited

ABF UK Finance Limited

ABF US Holdings Limited

ABF 7MW Finance Limited

ABN (Overseqs) Limiled

ABMA Feed Comparny Lirmnited
ABNA Limited
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Acetum (UK} timited [previausly Aliec
Technical Cenfre Limited)

Agrlines Limited

Allled 8akernes Limited

Allied Grain (Scolland) Limited
Alied Grain (South] Limiled

Alied Grain (Southem) Limited
Allied Grain Limited

Aliec] Mils [No. 1) Limited

Aliect Mills Limiled

Alinson Limited

Associated Brfish Foods Pension Truslees
Limited

Atriurm 100 Properties Limited
Alnum 100 Stores Holdings Lmited
Atriurn 100 Stores Limited

B.E. Infernational Foods Lmited
Banbury Agriculfure Limited

British Sugar [Overseas] Limited
Brilish Sugar plc

BSO [Ching) Limited

Cereal Industries Umited
Cereform Limited

Dairy Consulting Limited

Davion Food bmited

Dorsel Cereals timited

Fastbow Securffies Limited
Elsenham Quality Foods Limited
Fishers Feeds Limited

Fishers Seeds & CGran Limited
Food lnvestrments Limited

G. Cosla {Heldings) Limited

G. Costa and Company Limited
Gearmain's (UK Limiled
Greencoat Limited

Gresncoal Form Limited

H 5 Limited

lovo Sugar Afiica Holdings timited
John K. King & Sons Limited
Kingsgate Food Ingredients Limited
KO?2 Limited

LeafTC Limited

Maur Products Limited
Mountsfield Park Finance Limited
Notural Vetcare Limiled

Nutrition Trading (Internalional) Lirmited
Hutrition Trading Linmited

Patak (Spices) Limited



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Sepfember 2023

32. Group entities continued

Subsichary unde akings

% ellectve halding

if nat 56.2%

aubsictian, undertakieg.

Palak Food timited

Falok's Breads Limited

Patak's Foods 2008 Limited

Prermier Nulition Products Limited

Pride Cils Public Limited Cormpany

Prirncrk (UK.} Limited

Primairk Austriar Limited

Primark Made Limited

Prirnark Pension Adminisiration Services Limiled
{dissolved 24 Qctober 2023)

Primark Stores Limited

Primary Diets Limited

Prirnciry Nulrtion Limited

Pra-Aclive Nutrifion Umited

R. Twining and Comparny Umited

Reflex Nutiition Limited

Roses Nufrihon Lid

Seedcote Systerns Limited

Serpentine Securities Limited {dissolved 26
Septembbar 2023)

Shep-Foir Products Limited

Spectum Aviation Limited

Speedibake Limited

Sunblest Bakeries Limiled

The Bakery School Limited {dissoived 3 Oclober
2023)

The Bilington Ffaod Group Limited

The Horne Grown Sugar Company Limited
The Jordars & Rywita Comparny Limited
The Notural Sweetness Company Limited
The Roadmap Company Limitec

The Silver Spoon Company Limited

Tip Top Bakeries Limited

Trident Feeds Limited

Twining Crasfield & Co. Limited

Vivergo Fuels Limited

W, Jordan & Son (Sile) Limited

W. Jordan [Cerecls) Limited

wWerehnm Gravel Company Limited (The)
Westrmill Foods Limited

wWeston Biscuil Company Limited {The)
Weston Foods Limited

weston Research Laboratories Limited
Worldwing investments Limifed

Vernon House, 40 New North Road,
Hudldersfield, West Yarkshire HD1 518, United
Kingdlom

Proper Nutly Limited

Fox Taibot House, Unit 4 Greenways Business
Park, Belinger Close, Chippanham, Wiltshire,
SNTS 18BN United Kingdom

National sMilk Records Limited

National Livestock Records Limited

National milk Records Trustee Company Limited
Nordic Stor Lid

Northern Ireland

I Colicge Place North, Bolfasf, BT 686,
United Kingdom

Jomes Neil, Limited

Unit 4, 211 Casile Road, Randdlstown, Ceo.
Anirirn, BT41 ZE8, Uniled Kingdom

Jordan Bros. [N} Limited

Nuirition Services {Internalional) Limited
Vistavet Limiled

Scolland

32 Kolvin Avenue, Hilington Pork, Glasgow,
(G52 407, United Kingdom

National Milk Laboratories Limited

180 Glentanar Road, Glasgow, G22 7UF,
United Kingdom

ABN {Scotland) Limited

Miler Samue! LLE. RWF House,

5 Renficld Street. Glasgow, G2 562

United Kingdom

Korway Foods Limited
Karweay Haldings Limited
Patak’s Chilled Foods Lirited
Patak’s Frozen Foods Limited
United Kingdom — Non ABF
Weston Cenlre, 10 Grosvenaor Streel, London.
WIK 4QY, Unifed Kingdom

Clinton Farms Limited 100%
[disscived 19 September 2023)
George Weston Limited {dormant) 1003
Richmond Hiil Hotel [{Onerations) Limited 100%
WINDL Offices Limited 85%
wittingten Investmenits {Ahren) Limited 100%
wittington Investments (BPA I} Uimitec 100%,
{diormant)
wittington investments {BSPF] Limited {dormant) 10056
witlington investments (B Ill] Limited {dormant) 100%
wittington Investiments {Careplaces) Limited 100%
[dormant)
wittington Investments [FAPI) Limited [dormoant} 1G0%
wittington Investrments [FAPLHI} Limited 1007%
{dormant)
wittington Investments (FIPL) Limited {dormant) 100%
wittington Investments [Next Wave) Limited 100%
{dormant)
wittngton Investments [Properiies) Lmited 100%
wittington Investments (Reof] Limited {domaant) 100%
wittington Investments [Richmond Hill Hotel) 100%
Lirited
Wittington Invesirmenis Finance Limitec 100%
196 Totienham Cowrt Racd, London, WiT 7LQ
Hedl & Son Limited 100%
Heal's Holdings Limited 100%
Heal's Pension Fund Trustees Limited 100%
Heal's plo 100%,
Heals (1810} Limited 100%
181 Piccadity, London, WIA TER
Fo& A Limited 100%
Fortnum & mMason [Export) Limited 100%
Forfnum and fMason {London) Limited 100%
Forinum and dMason Hospitality Linmited 100%
Fortnum & mMason Plc 100%
Fortriums Limited 100%
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T T T T T T e e e Nl
Subsidirry undarfa<ngs il ol 54 2%
United Kingdom — Non ABF — audit exempt

The following subsidiary companigs of Wiitingfon Investments
limited [note thal Willington Investments (BSP) Limiled is o
subsidiary of Withngton Investments (Finance] Uimited} have
availed themselves of the aqudit exemplion for subsidiary
company under s479A-479C of the Companies Act 2004 for the
financial vear ending September 14th 2023

As the parent company [or ullimate parent company in the
case of Witlinglon  Invesiments (B3P Limited), witlingion
Investments Limited guarantees all oulstanding liabilities to
which each subsidiary company lisled below is subject as at
Seplember 14th 2023:

weslton Cenire, 10 Grosvenor Siroot, London,
WIK 4QY, United Kingdom

withington Investments [Apalio] Lmited 100%
[Company number 08637983)
Avery Row managemsnt Limited 100%
[Company number 11399508)
Listergate Student Holdings timited 100%
[Company number 11289745}
Howard Investments Limited 100%
{Compony numizer 03729125)
WILH (Investments) Limited 100%
{Company numizer 04224010
wittingion Investments (Bestport) Umited 100%
{Company number 057244605
wittingtnn Investments (BSP VIl Limited 100%
{Company number 05583806)
witlington Investments (BSF) Limited 100%
[Company number 10122727)
witlington Investments {Developments) Limited 100%
([Company number 07721700)
wittington Investments [Dunedin 11} Limited 100%
ICompany number 08307734)
wittington Investments {Dunedin) Lmited 100%
ICompany number G5875249)
wittington nvestments [Graphite] Limited 100%
[Company number 08643607}
wittington Investments {Harbourvest] Limited 100%
{Company number 0663227 1)
wittington Investrments [OCP) Limited 100%
{Company number 04432285]
wittington Investrments PEF {Furo) Limited 100%
{Company numtxer 0833401 5)
Wittington Investrments PEF {GBP) Limited 100%
{Company number 08111797)
wittinglon Investrments PEF (USD) Limited 1002
[{Comparny number 05094395)
wittington Investments (Private Equity) Limitect 100%
{Company number 09973685)
wittington Investment {Sand Aire) Limited 100%
[Company number 04415374}
wittington Investments (VOI1) Limited 100%
[Comparny number 06576342}
wiltington Investments (WHEB) Limited 100%
(Campany number 06574301}
witlington Investments [WPX) Limited VOO,

{Company numizer 06343087)
Argentina

Murisca! Anfonio José de Sucre 632 - 2nd Finor,
Buenos Aires 1428, Argentina

AB Maur Hspanoamerica S.A.
Surgras S.A (inliguidalion)
Compahia Argenting De Levaduras 5.ALC.

&6 Wittingten investments  Fincncial Staterrents 2023

% eftechve Falding
Sabsichary uncertakings ol 5625
Ausiralia
Building A Level 2. 11 Talavera Road,
North Ryde, NSW 213, Avustralio
AB tMaur Overseas Holdings Limiled
AB Mour Pakistan Py Limited
AB nauri ROW Holdings Pty Limited
AB mMauri South America Py Limited
AB raur South West Asio Pty Limited
AB Maun Technelogy & Development Pty
Limited
AB Mauri Technology Py Limited
AB World Foods Ply Ltd
Anschem Pty Umited
AusPac Ingredients Ply Lid
CCL Animal Heolth Py Lid
Dagan Trading Py, Ltd
Food Investments Ply. Uimited
George Weslon Foods [Victona) Py Lid
George Weston Foods Limited
Indonesian Yeast Company Ply Limited
racn Fermentation Brozl Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentaticon Chile Py Limiled
Mauri Fermentation China Pty Limited
rMauri Fermentation India Pty Limited
Maur Fermentation Indoneasia Pty Limited
raur Fermentation Malaysia Ply Limited
Mawr Fermentation Phifppings Phy Limited
Maun Fermentation Vielnam Pty Limited
Maur Yeast Australia Pty Limited
NA&C Enferprises Ply Lid
Sercl Ingredients Pty Limited

The Jordans and Ryvila Company Ausiralica Pty
Ltd

Yumi's Guality Foods Pty Lid

35-37 South Corporafe Avenue, Rowville,
VIC 3178, Australic

AB Food & Beveroges Australia Ply. Limited
170 South Gippsiand Highway, Dandenong.
VIC 3175, Australic

ABF Wynyard Park Limited Partnership

Austria
Waollzolle 11/2. OG, 1010 Vienna, Austia
Primark Austria Lid & Co KG

krottenbochstrasse, 82-88/51g 1/Top 5. 1190
WVienna, Austic
Nutrilzrbs GmbH
Bangladesh

Level 13 Shanta Wesfom Tower,

Bir Uttom Mir Shawka! Road, 186 Tejgaon /A,
Dhaka 1208, Bongladesh

Twinings Ovaltine Bangladesh Limited
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Sonsidiary undas akings
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if o &

Subsidicry undetakngs

Belgium

Industiepark 2d, 9820 Mercibeke, Belgium

AB Maurl Belgium NY

Chaussee de la Hulpe 177/20, 1170 Bruxefles,
Beigium

Primark SA

Brazil

Avenida Tieté, (-233 Barmanca do Rio Tiets,

City of Pederneiras. State of Sao Paulo,

CEP 17.280-000. Brazl

AB Brosil Inclstric e Comércio de Alimentos Lida
Alamedo Madeira 328, 20th Floor, Room 2005,
Alphavilie — Baruer, Sao Paulo 06454-010, Brozil
AB Erdimas Brasil Comerciat Lida

Avenida Dra. Ruth Cardosc, n® 7,221, 11° Floor,
Room 1.101 {parfe]. Condominio Edificio
Bimnarn 21, Pinheiros, CEP 05425-902, City of
Sao Paulo, State of $&o Paulo, Brozil

AB Vista Brasl Comércio De Alimentacdo
Animal Lida

Canada
Blake, Cassels & Graydon [LP, 199 Bay Sircod,
Suite 4000, Toronto, Ontaric MSL 1AD, Canada
AB Mauri (Canada) Limited

Chile

Miraflores Street No. 222, 28 Floor, Sankiago,
Chile

Calsa Chile Inversiones Limitada

China

No. 1 Tengeheng Street, A Cheng Distict,
Harbin, Hellongjiang Province, China

AB {Harbin) Food Ingredients Co., Lid. [in
licuuiciation)

Norfh Huang He Road. Rudong

New Economic Development lone,

Nantong City, Jiongsu Province, China

AB Agn Animal Nufnfion [Nanteng) Co.. Lid

AB Agn Animal Nutrition [Rudong) Co., Lid.

No 28, South Shunjin Road, Yintai District,
Tongchuan, Shaanxi Province, China

AR Agr Animaik Mutition [Shaanx) Co., Lid.
Room 7-1068, No. 68 Shijiu Hubei Road), Chunxi
Streel, Goochun Distict,. Nanjing City, Jiangsis
Province. China

AR Agri Pumeixin Tech (Jiangsu) Co. Lid,
Chuangxin Road, Tonggu tndusiry Zone, Sondy
Town, Tenggw County, langxt Frovince, Ching
AB Agr Pumeixin Tech (Jiangx) Co. Lid.

Room 2802, Raffles City Changining.

No. 1189 Changring Road. Changning Drisfrict,
Shanghai, 200051, China

AB Enzymes Trading {Shanghar) Co.. Lid

Room 2803, Ralfles Cily Changning.

Mo 1189 Changning Road, Changning Disinct,
Shanghoi, 200051, China

ABNA Manogement (Shanghai Co., Lid.
ABNA Trading (Shanghai] Cao., Ltd

Room 2906 Raffles City Changning.

No. 1189 Changring Road, Changning District,
Shanghaof 200051 China

Associated Bntish Foods Holdings (China] Co.. Lid
Unit 006, Room 401, Floor 4, Building 1, No. 15
Guanghua Rood. Chooyang Distict. Begng,
China

AB Maur (Beling] Feod Sales and
mMarketing Company Lirmited

Builcling 1. 35 Chi Feng Road . Yongou Disinct,
Shanghai 200092, China

AB Maur Foods (Shanghai) Company Limiled 51%
868 Yongou Rood, Puicng Town,

Minhang Distic!, Shanghai 201112, Ching

ABNA (Shanghai} Feed Co., Lid.

14 juhai Road, Jinghal Development Zone,

Tiangn, Ching

ABNA (Tianjin) Feed Co, Ltd

Shu Shan Moderr industrici Zone of Shou

Counly, Huginon City, Anbuw Pravince, China

ABNA Feed {Anhui) Co., Ltd,

145 Xincheng Road, Tengoo Economic
Development Zone, Anshan,

Liconing 114225, China

ABMNA Feed {Liaonng) Co.. Lid.

17 Xicngyang Stroct, Tu Township, Chayou
Qiangi. inner Mongolic. China

Botian Sugar Industry (Chayou Qiangi} Co., Lid.
No. | Bohan Road, Economic Development
Zone, ZThangber Caunty, ZThangjickou City,
Hebe Province, Ching

Bohan Sugar Industry (Zhangbel} Co.. Ltd.

Room 1110, No.368, Changfiong Road,
Nangong Concenifrated District, Econormic
Development Zone, Harbin, China

Baotian Sugar Industry Co., Lid.

! industric! Morth Strect, Zhaongjiokou, Zhaongbet
Countiy, Hebei Province, China

Hebel Maur Food Co., Lid,

8 Lancun Road, Fconomic and Technical
Developmenl! Zone, Minhang, Shanghai
200245, China

Shanghai AB Food & Beverages Co., Lid

Mo, ¢8-1, Shucnglong Road, Fushan Disinct,
Yantai Cify, Shandong Province, China

Yontai Mouti Yeost Co, Lkd,. 52%
Colombia

Cra 35# 34A-64. Palmira, Valle, Colomibia
Fleischrnann Foods S.A.

Czech Republic

Nadrazni 523, 34 01 Stioro, Czech Republic
Bodit Tachov s.r.o.

Faladivm, No Poilé 107%/3a, Progue 1, 11000,
Czech Repubiic

Primark Prodsejry s.r.o.

Denmark

Skjermve] 42, Trastrop, 6820 Videbosk, Denmark
AR Neo A5

Middelfartveg 77, Banng, 5466 Asporup,
Denmark

Cowconnec! ApS
Ecuador
Mediardo Angel Silva 13 y Panamd, Manzona
12, El Recreo, Eloy Affaro, Durdn, Guayas,
Ecuador

ABCALSA S.A
Eswatini

Ubormbo Sugar Umited, Old Main Road,
Big Bend, Eswolini

Bar Circle Ronch Limiled 347%
oo Swadland Lirited 347
Moyeni Ranch Limited 34%

Ubembo Sugar limited C 34%
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Subs o ary undertaluras

Vaflacive Laolding
ifnat 54,25

Finland

Tykkimdentic 150 (PO Box 26), Rajamdki,
FH05200. Ainland

AB Enzymes Oy

Tykkimdontico 150 (PO Box 57). Rojamdiki,
FRO5201. Finfand

Enzymes Lecsing Finland Oy

Koskelonfie 19 B, Espoa, F-02920, Finkand
Alimetrics Research Oy

AB Vista Finland Oy

France

40742, avenuc Georges Pompidols, 69003,
& Lyon, Fronce

AB Mauri France

25 Rue Anatole France, 92300 Levaliois-Perrel,
France

Twirings & Co 5AS
11 Rue de Milan, 75009, Paris, France
ABFI France SAS

Cenire Commercial Regiarial Crétei Solei,
Niveau 3, 101 Averue du Général de Gaulle,
94000, Créfell, France

Primark Fronce SAS

845 Chemin du Valon du maire, 13240,
Septemes tes Vallons, Fronce

SPI Pharma SAS

IAE Via Europn, 3 rue d'Athenos, 34350 vendros,
Fronce

Fytexia Group

Eylexia

Gemany

Foldbeorgstrasse 78, 64293, Daormstadt, Germany
AB Enzymes GimbH

Schauenburgerstrasse 116, 24118, Kiel Gemnany
ICFN AG

Wandsbeker Zolistrasse 59, 22041,

Hamburg, Germany

ABF Deutschtond Holdings GrmibH

Ohly GmiH

Ohly Grundbesitz GmioH

Rheinische Presshefe- und Spritwerke GrbH
Kennedyplalz 2, 45127, Essen, Germany

Primark Mode Lid. & Co. KG

Primark Property GmbH

Housinger  Strasse 48, 40764, Langenfeld,
Germany

Vitol Solutions GrmbH

Wostendsirasse 28, 40325, Frankturt arm Maimn,
Germany

wander GmioH

Marne-Kahle-Allee 2, D-53113. Bonn, Germany
weastmill Foods Europe GrmibH

Greece

28, Dimiiriou Soufsou Sir. Athens, GR 115 21,
Grocce

PSH Teal Single Member 5.A.

Guernsey

Dorcy Cour, Admiral Park. i, Peter Pori.
GY! 2HT. Guernsey

Io\ismcm Guernsey Limited

&8 Wittington Investments  Financial Starements 2023

Subschary,

Hong Kong

5/F, Manulife Piace, 348 Kwun Tong Road,
Kawioon, Hong Kong

Associated Brilish Foods Asia Paciflic
Holdings Limited

Hungary

Karolyi utco 12, 3. em., Budapest. 1053, Hungary
Primairk U__zlelek Korlatolt Feleldssegu” Tarsasag
{Primark Uzlelek Kft)

India T
#2718 & #219, Bommasandra — figani Link Racd,
Anekal Taluk, Bangalore, 560105, India

AB Maun Indicx Privale Limited

Firsi Floor, Regent Sunny Side, 80 Fi Rood, 8ih
Block. Koramangala Bengalury, Kamataka,
560030, Indic

5Pl Specialties Phamma Prvale Limifed

G3/41, New Budge Budge Trunk Road, Old
Dakghor. Kolkato, West Bengal, 700747, Indic
Twinings Private Limited o
indonesia
Wismmer GKBILL39, Suile 3901, No.28 M. Jend,
Sudlirrman, Jakarla , indenesia

PT AB Food & Beverages Indonesia fin lquidation]

treland
47 Mary Street, Dublin 1, reland
Abdale Finance Limited

Primark Holdings Unlimited Company
Primark Pension Trusfees Limited

I Stokes Place. 5. Stephen's Green, Dublin 2,
freland

Alled tMills reland Limited

Unif 5, Hebron House, Macdonagh Junclion,
Kitkenny, R25T9TY, reland

Intellyne Technology Limiled

Arthur Ryan House, 22-24 Pamell Street,
Dubin 1 reland

Primnark Limited

Prirnark Austia Limitecd

Primark Mode Llimited

13 Closson House, Dundrum Busingss Park
Dundrum, Dublin 14, DH4X9FR retand

Nuiritional Advanced Formulas (Ireland) Limited o

Italy

Vicle Monte Nero, 84, 20135, Milan, ttoly

AB Ack taly Sl

Vic Milano 42, 27045, Casteggio, {Paviy, ifaly
AB mMaur ltaly S.p.A.

ABF Italy Holdings S.r.l.

Largo Froncesca Richin 2704, 20122, Milan, faly
Prirmark faly Sl

Vicr Rizeotto 46, 41126, Modona (MO), ttaly
Acelaa fintModena Sl

Vicr Sandro Perfini 440, 401314, Caversso (MO},
ftaty

Acetum 5.0.A. Socield Benefit

Via Garibaldi 84 Magenia, 20013, Mian, laly
ALP Immoblicre S.rl.

Vi Gran Sasso, 33 Corbetta, 20011, Mian, ifaly
B Nafural S.rl.
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Malawi Nigeria
lovo House, Churchill Road, Limbe, Mdlawi 23 Oba Akinjobi Street GRA, kejo, Lagos, Nigeria
Dwangwa Sugar Corporation Limited 43%  Twinings Ovaltine Nigeria Limited
llove Sugar [Malcwi] plc 43% Pakistan
Malawi Sugar Limited 21EM Feroeapur Road, 2 KM Hoayara Drain, Lahore,
Maa"y_éi-d__" o e o e e " Pakistan
Unit 3001, Level 30, Tower A, Verlical Business Suile, AB Maur Pokistan (Private) Limited A%
Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.8, 59200 Jaian Pery
Kennchi, Kuala Lumpurn, Malaysia Av, Republica de Argenting No. 1227, i La
AB Mauri Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 29% Chalaca, Calioo, Peru
Malta o Calsa Perd S.AC. N
171 Old Bakery Street. Volletia, VLT 1455, Maita Philippines
Relax Limited 39% 86 E Roedriguez Jr. Ave., Ugong Norte, QC. 1604,
Mauritivs T Pasig Cily, Melra Maniia, Phifipoines
10th Ficor, Standard Chartered Tower, AB Food & Beverages Phippines. Inc. 56%
19 Cybercity, Ebene, Maurihus 1261-1202 Fn'me Land Building, markesf Sreat,
lNovo Group Financing Services Machigal Business Park, Ayala Alabang,
. o Muntinlupa, 1770, Philippines
lllove Group Holdings Limited AB Maur Phiipoi e
llovo Group Markeling Services Limited - T e e -
Kiombero Holdings Umited Preamystowe 2, 67-100 Nowa S6, Lubuskie, Poiand
Sucoma Holdings Limited , .
- AB Foods Polska Spolka z ograniczona
Mexico ‘ o odpowiedzianoscia {AB Foods Polska Sp. 7 0.0.)
gg\i?g?eéo :‘?eforrfo 0 ISaFmS) &, fSUf,ff:e!ODhc[mO y Towaorowa 28,00-839 Warsow, Polond
. Colonia Lomas de Santa Fe. Delegacién - .
Cugijimaloa de Morelos, Mexico City. 05348, Mexico ggrggibigﬂig%ﬁg?{;%?f;gjgg? 0. £0.0)
ABCALSASA. de CY. Ul Resbowicka 29/3 1, 62-020, Swarzedsz — Jasin,
Avenida Javier Barros Siero 495, pisn 7 oficing 07-102. Poland
g}ozf,l gOjr\’ldféc‘r)dFCe(5 Alvaro Obregon, Ciudad de México. R. Twining and Company Spéfkaz oganiczona
‘ odpowiedzicinoscia (R. Twining and Company Sp. £
ACH Foods Mexico, S.deR.L. de C.V, 0. 0.
Mozombigue Ul Gidwna 3A, Bruszczewa, 64-030. Smigiel, Poicnd
KM75 . ENT, Maciand, Der{irO de  Manhico, AB Neo Polska spolka 7 organiczona
Provincia de Maputo, Morambice odpowiediainoscia (AB Neo Polska $0. 2.0.0)
Marogra Agucar, SA. {previously AB Agri Polska Sp. z.o.0.)
Netherlands potugal
Miweg 77, 3316 BE, Dordrechi, Nethorands Avenida Salvador Allende, n.° 99, Lshoa Qeiras,
AB Mauri Netherlands B.V. Julido da Bomra, Pago de Arcos e Caxias, 2770-157,
AB Maun Netherlands European Holdings B.v. Paco de Arcos, Portugal
Foods Intermnational Holding B.V. AB Maurt Porfugal 5.A. 54%

Van Qldenbarmevelipionts 36 3012 AH. Eofterdam,
Netheronds

Primaork Fashion BV,

Primark Nethedands B.V.

Primark Stil B,V

Weena 505, 3013AL Rotlerdom, Methorlonds
AB Vista Europe BV,

7122 1S Aglten,
Netherands

Germgins Seed Technology B.V.

Qucle Kerkstroat 55 4878 AK, EHen-leur, Netherlonds
maun Technology B.V.

Loarderhoogtweg 25, 1101 EB Amstordam,
Netherlands

Westmill Foods Europe BV,

New Iealand

Builcting 3. Level 2, Control Business Park, 066 Great
South Rood, Elerstic, Auckiand 1051, New Zecland
Allied Foods [NZ} Ltd

AusPac Ingredients NI Limited

George Weston Foods (NZ) Limited

57 forge Road, Siverdole 0932 New Zeclond

Dad's Pies Limited

Dinxperosesiroatweg 122,

Ruci Castilho 50, 1250-071. Lisbon, Portugal
Lojas Prmark Porfugat - Exploracaon, Gestac e
Adminisiracao de Espacos Comerciais S.A.
Romania

Disfrict 1, 145 Calea Florcasca. One Tower, 121h
Floor, Bucharest, Romania

Pr_ir_jj(_]_rjc_ Mggq_z_w’ne S.E.L [previousty P5S.R. Indigo]
Rwanda

Nyarugenge Disiict, Nyarugenge Seclor,

Kigah City, Rwanda

llovo Sugar (Kigal) Lmited

Singapore

80 Rotwnson Road, #02-00. 068898 Singopors
AB Maur Investments [Asia) Ple Lid

112 Rohinson Roaed #0501, 068902 Singapore
AB Visto Asic Ple. Limiled

Slovakia

Staromestska 3, 817 03 Bralisiova - Stare Mesio,
Slavakic

Primnark Slovakia s..o.

Slovenia

Bleiweisova cesta 30, ublana, 1000. Slovenia
Primark Trgovine. trgovsko padjetje. d.o.o.
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Subnichary uriderOkings il 56 7% Sut)sld\(\r‘.‘ uncderlakings il not 58 2%
South Africa fanzania
1 Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umhlanga Rocks, flovo Tanzanic Limited
Kweareuiu Natal, 4320, South Alricer Kilombero Sugar Company Limited - - _42%
CGS Invesiments (Ply} Limited Thailand
East Afrcan Supply [Piy] Limited 11th Floor, 2535 Sukhumwt Road, Kwaeng
Glendale Sugar [Phy) Lid Bcn_gchok, Khel Prakhanong, Bargkok, 10260,
. . Thailand

llovo Distributors {Piy) Lmited B Food & B Thatand! Lid
llova Sugar (South Afnca) Proprietary Limited i F :O o e\ﬁrg‘ges ( 'cnon ) ’
llovo Sugar Afrca Proprietary Limited 8 9‘ ngs {Thailand) Lid. .
liprop (Ply) Lirmited I Ernpire Tower, 24t0 Floor, Uit 2412-24 13,

RIOw My L South Sathomn Road, Yannawa, Saihom
Lacsa {Ply) Limited 3% Bangkok, 10120, Thaiond
Noodsberg Sugar Company [Pty) Lid A8 World Foods Asia Ltd
Raynolds Brothers (Phy) L1d 229/110 Moo 1, Teparak Road, T. Bungsaafhong
S.A. Sugar Dstributors [Py} bmited A, Bangsaothong, Samufprakarn, 10540, Thailond
Spain Josol Asio Pacific Limited (in liquidation)
Calle Cardenal Marcelo Spincla, 42, 28076, Turkey
Madrid, Spain Aksokal Mahalles, Kavakpinan, Kume Evier
AB Azucarera Ibena. 5.L. Sociedad Unipersonal MNo. 5 Bandrmo- Balkesr. 10245, Turkey
AB Vista lberia, S0 Mauri Maya Sanayi ALS.
Calle Levadura, 514710, Villarubia, Cordoba, United Arab Emirates
Spain Office 6047, Jofza LOB 15 Jebel Ali Freezone,
AB Maur Food, S A Dubai, PO BOX 17620, Uniled Arab Emirales
AB Mauri Spain, S.L.U. AB Maur Middle EostF?E o _
ABF Iberio Holding S.L. United Slales
C/ Escultor Coomonte n®. 2, Enfreplania, CT Carporatfion Systern, 818 Wes! Seventh Streef,
Benovente, Zamorg. Spam Suife 930, Los Angcles CA 90017, United States
AQroten 5.4, 30%  AB Maur Food Inc.

Calle Comunidad de Murcia. Parcelo LIE-1-03,
Flataforma Logishca de Frogo. 22520, Huesca,
Spain

Alternative Swine Nutrtion, S.L.

Calle Escoles Pies 49, Planta Baja, 08017
Barcelona, Spain

DR Healthcare Espana. S.L.U.

Avienda Virgen de Montseral, 44 Castelioh,
08719, Barcelona, Spain

Germain: Seed Technology. 5 A,

Plaza Pablo Buiz Picasso 5/, Tome Picasso,
Plonta 37, Madnid, Spain

licve Sugar Espana, S5.L.

Gran Vig, 32 50 28013, Madnd, Spain

Primark Tiendas. 5.L.U.

B 7 Cole Via Servicio f, 2 CP, 19190 Torja,
Guadalgjarg. Soan

Primark Logisfica, 5.L. Sociedad Unipersonal

Sii lanka
124 Templers Road, Maunt Lavinic, S Lonka
AB Maur Lanka (Private) Lmited

Sweden
Retzius vag 8. 171 &5, Soina, Sweden
Larodan AB

Switzerdand

Fobrikshrasse 10, CH 3176, Nouenegg. Swilzerlond
Wander AG
Taiwan

3F-1, No. 141, Sec 4. Nanking £ Rd, Taipei Cily
104, Taiwan {Prownce of Chinal

AB Food and Beverages Taiwan, Inc.
Tanzania

Msotwa Mill Office, Kidafou, Kilombero Disinct,
Tanzania

lowo Distilers {Tanzania) Limited

70 Wittington Investments  Fnancicl Statenrents 2023

The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation
Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington DF
19801, United Stales

AB Agri US, Inc.

AB Engymes. Inc.

AB Vista, Inc.

AB World Foods US, Inc.

ABF North Amernica Corp.

ABF North america Holdings, Inc.
Abitec Corporation

ACH Capital Ventures, Inc.

ACH Food Companies, Inc.
ACH Jupiter LLC

BakeGood. LLC

Germains Seed Technology Inc.
PGP imtemationdd, Inc.

Prirnark US Corp.

Prosecco Source, LLC
SPEPharma, Inc.

SP| Polyols, 11.C

Favinings MNorth Amenca. Inc.

C T Corporation Systern, 155 Federal Sireet Suile
700, Boston, MA 02110, United Statfes

Primark GCM LLC

C T Comaorgtion System, 330 NBand Bid.,
Glendale, Californio 91203, Unitod States
PennyPacker. LLC

158 River Road, Unit B, Chifon, N1 07014,

United States

Balsamic Express LLC

158 River Road, Unit A, Ciifton, NJ 07014,

Unifed States

rodena Fine Foods, Inc.

251 Lithie Folls Drve, Wilhington, DE 19808, United
Stafes

PylexiaComp,
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Subssictiary undartakngs il el 54 70 Subssicr Gy ungleitakings
Uruguay ABF PM Limited
Cno. Carlos Anfonio Lopez 7547, [Company number D0486887]
Monlevideo, Uruguay AB.F. Properties Limited
‘Lg\iq@)(q Urugggvs{gﬁ.ﬁ. ICompany number 00483361)
Venezuela ABF UK Finance Limited
Oficinas Once 3 (N® 11-3] y Once 4 (N 11-4), [Company nurmber 07267422)
Torre Mayupan, Centro Comercicl San Lus, ABF US Holdings Limited
Av Principal Urbanizacion San Lus, cruce con [Company number 05659249)
Cafie Comercio. Caracas, Bolvarnan Republic ABF 7MW Finance Limited
of. Venezue!al [Company numizer 13485724}
Almentos FAeischmann, C.A., ABN [Overseas) Limited
Compaiia de Alimentos Lalincamencana [Company number 00145374)
d.e venemela [CALSA) S.A Afrium 100 Properties timited
x'g:;q';;o N i M ki Stroot {Compary number 04502437}
it 2, guyen Thi Minh Khai Street, : : P,
ward 6, Distict 3, Ho Chol Minh City, Vietnam El?pl}%i‘jﬁ;’;?gZESL?L;';TEd
AB Agri Vietnam COm_pcmy L|m|TQd‘ Adriurn 100 Stores Limited
La Nga Commune, Dinh Quan District, Dong {Company rurmber 05007953
Nai Province, Vietnam . o
o , o British Sugaor [Orverseas) Limited
AB Mauri Vietnam Lirmited L e s _......u?f'f/ﬂ. (Compony numper 02400085J
Iz\ichmb lc Estates. Flot No. 118a Lubomb BSC {China) Limiled
okambala Estates, Fiot No. a lubombo
- ber 03799608
Road, Off Great North Road, Zambia (Company numesr oA )
e G. Costa (Holdings) Limifed
llove Sugar (Zambia) Limited (Company number 03679738)
Nango chrm's PLC . 427 Mountsfield Park Finance Limiled
Tukunka Agricultural Limited 42% {Corrpany number 07882348)
Zambia Sugar plc 42% Twining Crosfield & Co Limited

ABF - audit exempt
in accordance with section 47%A of the Companies Act
2006 {the 'Act’), and subject to compliance with the
requirements of that section including the provision of a
statutory guarantee from Associated British Foods plc, the
following subsicdiaries are exempt from the reguirements of
the Act relating to the audit of individual accounts in
respect of the financial year ended 16 September 2023:

Subadgn, anderfokings

[{Company numier 00144%00)
Worldwing investmenis Limited
[{Company number 02778854)

A B. Exploration Limited
[Company numiber 00487 323)
AB Mauri China Limited
ICompany number 12109070)
AB dcur Burope Limited
ICompany number 02883738)
AB Sugar China Holdings Limited
[Company number 09448344
AR Sugar Chuna Limifed
ICompany number 0946%143)
ABF [No. 1} Limited

ICompany numiber 04668120}
ABF [No.2} Limited
{Company number 03367797}
ABF {No 3] Limited
{Company number 00155305)
ARF BRL Fnance Lid
{Company numiber 11001902)
ABF Fincnce Limited
{Company number D4659735)
ABF Food Tech Investments Limited
(Company number 00172141)
ABF Funding

[{Company number 0538081 3)
ABF HK Fincnce Limited
{Company number 07761084)
ABF Japan Limiled
[Company numiber 00492778}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

32. Group entilies continved

Joint ventures

Alist of the Group's joint ventures as at 14 September 2023 is given below. All joint ventures are included in the Group's

financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Jcin® ventures

" olaing

United Kingdom

Weston Cenfre, 10 Grosvenor Streef, London,

WIK 40QY, Unifed Kingdom
Frontier Agnculture Limited S0%
Boothrmons (Agriculture) Limited 50%
Forward Agronormy Limited 50%
G F P {agriculture} Limited 20%
GH Grain Limited 50%
GH Grain (No. 2) Limited 50%
Grain Harvesters Limited 50%
Inlracrop Limited 50%
Nomix Limited S0%
North wold Agronomy Limited 50%
Phoenix Agronomy Limited 0%
SOYL imited 50%
The Agronomy Partnership Lmited 50%,

Berth 38, Test Rood, Eastern Docks, Southampton,

Haompshire, $QO14 3GG, Unifed Kingdom
Southompton Grain Terminal Limited 50%

Riverside, Wissington Road, Naviand, Colchesler,

Essex, COG 4LL Unted Kingdom

Anglic Grain Holdings Limited S0%

Angfia Grain Services Limited 50%

MNaorthants Apc. Rushion Rood. Ketfenng, NN 14 1AL

England United Kingdom

MNavara Oaf Milling Limited 0%

Unit 8 Burnsicle Business Park, Bumside Road, marke!

Brayton, TFY 3UX, United Kingdom
B.C.wW (Agriculiure) Limited 50%

withom St Hughs, tincaln, LNG 9T, United Kingdom

Nomix Envire Limited S0%

EFagle Labs incubalor, 28 Cheslerion Road,

Cambridge, CB4 3AZ United Kingdom

Yagro Lid 50%

Kingseat, Newmachar, Aberdoenshire, AB21 QUE

Euroagkem Limifed S50%

Lothian Crop Specialists Limited S0%

United Kingdom — Non ABF

Prologis House, Blythe Gate, Blylthe Valley Park,

Solihutl, B0 8AH

Tango Real Estote LLP 80%

Second Floor, 11 Waleroo Street, Birmingham B2 5TB

Nurlon Developrnents [Quinlus) Limited 50%

Aystralia

Building A, Level 2, 11 Tolavera Rood, North Ryde

NSW 2113, Australic

Fortrum & Masons Pty Limited . 33%

Chile

Ave, Bolmoceda 3500, Vadivia, Chile

Levaduras Colico $A. S0%

China

1828 Tigjueshan Road, Huangdao Distict, Qingdao,

Shandong Province, Ching

Qingdao Xinghua Cereal Cil and Foodstuff Co., Ltd 25%

1 East Ren Min Road. Regiment 66, Cocodala,

Ainfiang. China

AB hcurn Yihai Kemy (Cocodala) Food Co., Lid,

{previously Xinjicng mMauri Food., Lid) 50%

Room 607, 6th Floor, 1379, Bocheng Road, Pudong

New District, Shanghai, China

AB saurn Yihei Kery Investrent Company Limited 50%
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Joint vernures

S holdicg

Roorm 608, &1h Floar, 1379, Bocheng Road, Pudong
New District, Shonghai, China

AR Maun Yihai Kemy Food Marketing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ld

Ta Ho Comprehensive Indusidal Park, Fuyvu Counly
Foonomic Devetoprmen! Areq, Qigihar, Heilonglicng
Province, China

AB Mauri Yihai Kemry [Fu Yu) Yeast Technology Co.,
Ltcl

¢ Tonggang Road, Shage Vilage, Nanpu Tawn,
Quangang Areq, Quonzhou, Fuiian Provinee, Ching
AB Maun Yiha Kemy (Quanzhou) Yeast Technology
Co. Lid.

Intersechion of Jiaolong Avenue and Zhoushan
Road, Gang Distict, Zhoukou, Henan Province,
China

AB Mauri Yihan Kemy (Zhoukou] Yeast Technology
Co. Lid.

Xinshicx industrnial Zone, Machong Town, Dongguan,
Guongdong Province, Ching

AB Mauwi Yihal Kerry (Dongguan) Food Co., Uid
Finland

Tvkkimdaentie 15b (PO Box 57}, Rajamdiki.

FIN-05201, Finland

Roal Oy

50%

S0%

50%

0%

50%

France

59, Chemin du Maoulin, 695701, Carron, Dardlilly,
France
Synchronis

Germany
Brede 4, 59368, werne, Germany
UNIFERM GmibH & Co. KG

INA Nahrmittel GmibH
UNIFERM Verwaltungs GmiH
Brecle 8. 59388, Werne, Germnany
UNLOG GribH
Ireland
Rathcore Golf & Country Club, Rathcore, Co. Meath,
AJ3KPPS, rrelond
Independent Milk Laboratornics Lid

0%
50%

0%

0%

Japan

36F Atcgo Green Hils Mo Tower, 2-5-1 Atago.
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-6236, Japan

Twinings JapanColtd

50%

Foland

ul Wyhieg, nr 5, lok 9, miesfsc, KOD &1-3135,
Poenan, Poland
Uniferr Poiska Sp 2.0.¢
South Akica

I Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umhlonga Bocks,
Kwazulu Nalai 4320, South Afica

Glendale Distiling Company

Spain

C/ Roimundo Ferndndez, Vilaverde 28, Madrid,
Spain

Compaiia de Melozas, S.A, fin liquidation]
United States

The Corporalion Trust Comparny, Corparation Trust
Center, 1209 Orange Streel, Wilmingtort DE 19801,
Unitect Stafes

Stratas Foods LLC
Siratas Receivables ILLC




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

Associates

A list of the Group's associates as at 14 Septembzer 2023 is given below. All associates are included in the Group's

financial siatements using the equity method of accounting.

Associotes o molding Associates % holdingg
United Kingdom PTIndo Fermex 49%
Paciol House, Duncan Close, Maoutton Pork Indushac! P.I. Jaya Fermex 49%
Estate, Northampton, NN3 6WL, United Kingdom PT Sama Indah 469,
Bakers Basco Lirmited 20% lsrael T
Patcmoster House. 65 3. Pauls Churchyard, 26, Harokmim st. Holon Azirel Center Buiding B.sroe!
London., EC4M 8AB, United Kingdom Sucarim (C1ST) Lid 4
C. Czamikow Limited 43% Irally — -
Czarnikow Group Limited 43% . .
C. Czaomikow Sugar Futures Limited 43% go BC?EOQITO‘" 2;2? 22, mitan. ficly 37
C. Czamixow Sugar Limited 3% carnikow ligla S 43%
Sugarwoild Limited 43% enya
UnﬁGK;ﬁ_dm— Non ABF I'& M Banik House, Second Ngong Avenuc,
° f c 9 °d, 28 ehuch Rood. St P.O. Box 10517, Nakobi 00100, Kenya
crker Cavendish, urch Road, Stanmaore. ) . o o

Micidlesex, HAZ 4XR, Czorr.\\_kow East africa Limited 43%
Varneck Residential LLP 1% M“‘;";’“s ot Tonm Kenmody Sheot. Port Lou
Unit ) Woadiey Park Estate, 59-69 Reading Road, Na 3 Presdent John Kennedy Sfreel. Pori Louts,

d Mauritius
woodley, Reading, RGS 3AN Sukpak Lrmited 0%
Cavidson Holdings Limiled 28% Mexico
Beverley Pork Golf Runge, Beverey Way, New Maiden, Joime Baimes #8 Loc. 3-A, Los Morales Polanc, Mexico
sumey. KIZ4PH. n City, 11510, Mexico
The adveniure Experience Limited A% C. Czarnikow Sugar (Mexico), S A de C.v. 43%
7 Savoy Court, London, WC2R 0EX New Zealand
tondo n fheatie Company Holdngs Limited. 1% Clo KPMG, 18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue, Manfime
Australia ) ) Square, Auckland, New Zeaiand
283 Flagstaff Rogd, Brinkley SA 5253, Australic New Food Coalings (New Zedland) Limited 5%
Big River Pork Pty Lid 20% I_’Fi-ﬁb_ﬁm_égmmmm T S S T S
mMurray Bridge Bacon Phy Lid 20%
20 v 2 gd Wisth .“Py ik Syciney NSW 2164 AU Uril A, 103 Exceflence Avenue, Cammeiray

Qv ROGA. T_‘ e; Gr - yoney - ASITCHCT 5 Indlustricl Park 1. Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna,
New F_OOd Coatings Pty Lid 0% New Food Coatings (Philippines) Inc. S0%
quraun . . . 5F Don Jacinto Building, Dela Rosa cor. Salcedo
Suife No. 1939 Diplornatic Comimercial Office. Jower B, Streets, Legaspi Vilage, 1229 Makali Oity, Phiiopines
Buiding No. 1565 Road 1722, Diplomaiic 7 Bhilooi | 43%
Area/Manama 317, Bohrain £ PNIPPITes. [Rc. °
Crarmikow Supply Chain Sales for Food & Beverage Singapare o
Ingredients Bahrain 3.P.C, 437 gAPhlﬂrp Sfrcne;%;g;l—m Royal Group Buiding,
e T straanare ~
Brazil . \ C. Czamikow Sugar Pie, Limited 43%
Av Dios Vinhedos, 71, floor 11, room 1101, Uberancaia, - - T
Minas Gerais, Brozl South Atrica
20 Energic S:A. 297, I Gledhow mMilt Road, Gledhow, Kwadukuza, 4450
Avenida Presidente Juscelino Kubilschek, n.* 2.041, 11° Gledhew Sugar Company [Pty) Limited 0%
andar- Vila Olimpia, CEP 04.543-011, Sao Paulo, Brasi Tanzania
Czamikow Brosil Lido 43% 7th Foor Amani Picce, Ohio Street, PO Box 38568, Dar-
Av Pres Jusceling Kubilschel, 2041, floor 11, 560 es-Salaam, Tanzania
Paulo, Broz! Czamikow Tanzania Limited 42%,
Cz Energy Comercidlizado RaDe Etanol S.A -~ 21%  ssolwa M Office, Kidaiou, Tanzonic
China Kilombero Sugar Distibutors Limited 0%
Room 17A01, 232 Zhong Shan 6th Road, Guangehou thailgnd
City. Gugngdong Pravince. 510180, Ching 209 Moo 15, Teparak Road, Tambel Bangsaolhong,
C. Czamikow Sugar [Guangzhou) Compainy Lid. A% King Amphur Bangsoothena, Samutprakam, Thaiiend
Columbia Newly Weds Foods (Thailand) Lid S50%
Cf 16 Sur #430-4%, Fl Pobladeo, Medelin, B Foblado, 1203, 12th Floor, Metropolis Building.
mMeclefin, Anfioquia, Colombia 725 5qkhumvif Rl Norih Kionalon. Woltana. Banakok,
Crzamikew Colombia $.AS. 43 Czomikow (Thallond) Limited 43%
\ndia United Stafes
Plot No N4s, Houso No 4-9-10, Amt Nagar, Hyderabad 333 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 2860, Miami. FL 33131, USA
TG, 500076, Indic C. Czamikow Sugarinc. 43%
Huoban Energy 9 Private Lirmiled 34% Vietnam
House No. 1-8-373/A, Chiran Fort Lane. Begumpef, 5th Floar, IMC Tower, 62 Tan Guang Khai, Tan Dink
Hyderabod, 500003, India ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
C. Czamikow Sugar (Indiaj Private Limited 43% Cramkow (Vietnam) Limited 43%
Indonesia
Komplex Puri Muticra Blok A21-22, JL. Griya Utama,
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Company balance sheet
at 16 September 2023

BT 7 ST )
JResated]
Mote £m im
Non-current assets
Investment property 1 - 3
Invesiments in subsicliaries 2 1.042 1,042
Ivestrmeants in associates 3 2 3
Deferred tax assets 4 2
Trade and other receivables ! 3 1,045
o o 2,09
Curert assets - -
Trade and other receivables | 5 5 2
Other investrnents 4 3 28
Income tax - 9
Cashand cash equivalents ? 57
) - 45 26
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7 2n {18}
Income tax ) o (0] -
Net currenf assets 7 T 17 i
Non-curentliobllities
Empioyee benefils abiliies 8 )
Net assets - 2102 2,039
Equity
Called up share capital 9 - -
Share premium accouni 382 38%
Refoined eornings o 170 1657
Total equity attributable to equily shareholders 2,102 2039
I, Fa argagas dftre o Ston ol aler_empony recs .ok cu o unenl yEm Monags e

et 5o En0 T At e mEsd 12 misatks ane shea d nnve bean - assfen ns nn-Zaren! csiet

Seer Nole 5 lor dzloe

The Company's profit for the 52 week period ended 14 September 2023 was £190m [52 week period ended 7
September 2022; £284m).

The financial statements on pages 74 to 79 were approved by the Board of directors on 15 December 2023 and were
signed on its behalf by:

Aoa
[
e~ |

Sir Guy Weston
Chairman
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

Share Sk Retrred T Total
g bol preTi eamings aquy
£ L1 Zm L
Baolance of 18 September 202) - 382 1.474 1856
Total comprehensive income T T
Profit for IThe pericd - 284 284
Remecasurements of defined benefit schemes - - 4 4
Defered tax associated with defined benefit schemes - - (1 m
'OTher comprehensive income - items that will not be reclassified to profit or - - 3 3
0sS
Total comprehensive income lor the period S T o ' ;Y
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - - {104} {104)
BO‘OHC@ GT 17 Sep]‘ember 2022 . T o o *- o ""'“'%E" T 1 ,65? o _“-Qb-jé ’
Total comprehensive income I
Profii for the period . 7 - - 190 190
Remeasuremants of defined benefit schemes e - - 1 1
Deferred ox associoled with defined benefit schemes - - - -
IOTher comprehensive income - items that will not be reclassified to profit or - - 1 1
0ss
Toldl comprehersive income for Ihe peried I 2 I,
Transactions with owners e T
Dividends paid to equity shareholders e - - {128} (128)
Balance at 16 September 2023 - 382 1.720 2,102
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Company accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in sterling,
rounded to the nearest million {except where otherwise
indicated). They are prepared under the historical cost
basis, except that Other Investments are stated at their
fair value, and in accordance with FRS 101 and the
Companies Act 2006,

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions available in
relation to financial instruments, capital management,
presentation of third balance sheet for retrospective
restatements. presentation of a cash flow statement,
standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and
certain related party transactions. Where reguired,
equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated
financial staterments,

As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act
2006, aseparate income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the Company hos not been
included in these financial statements. The principal
accounting policies adopted are described below. They
have all been applied consistently to all years presented.

Gaing concern

The conclusion to adopt the going concern basis
preparing these financial statements is outlined in the
Directors' report on page 8 and in the consolidated
accounts on page 18.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company recognises tinancial assets and fiabilities
when il becomes a party e the contractual provision of
the relevant financial instrument,

Trade and other receivables

The Company records trade and other receivables initiclly
al far value and thereafter at amerised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal vatue less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management’s expectation of losses without regard fo
whether or not a specific impairment frigger has
occurred.

Trade payables

The Company records trade payebles inihially at fair value
and thereafter at omortised cost. This generally results in
recognition at nominal value.

Other investments

Equity investrments where the Company does not have
significant influence, contrel or joint control are measured ot
fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL). and are camied inthe
staternent of financial position at fair value with net changes in
Tar value recognised in profit and loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are held at cost less provision for
impairment. Imparment is determined by reference to
the fair value of property estimated eitner by
independent valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is
provided where the directors consider that the residual
value of major components of the property is less than
current book value.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates
investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at
cost less any provision for imparment.

Impgairment

The carrying amount of the Company’s investments in
subsidiaries and other assets are reviewed al each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Animpairment
charge is recognised in the income stafement whenever
the camrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use. In
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessmenis of the fime value
of money and the risks specific 1o the asset.

Animpairment charge is reversed if there has been o
change in the estimates used fo determine the
recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the new
camying amount does not exceed the camying amount
that would have been determined. net of depreciation ar
amortisation, if no impairment charge had been
recognised.
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Pensions and other post-employment benefifs
The Company operates one defined contribution and
one unfunded post-employment plan. For the unfunded
plan, the amaount charged in the income statemant is the
cost of benefits accruing to employees over the year, plus
any benefitimprovements granted to members by the
Company during the year. It also ncludes inferast
expense calculaled by applying the lability discount rate
to the pension liakility. The present value of liabilities is
disclosed as a liability in the balance sheet. Any related
deferred tax [to the extent recoverabie) is disclosed
separately in the balance sheet. Remegsuremeants are
recognised immediately in olher comprehensive income.
Contrbutions payable by the Company in respect of
defined contribution plans are charged to operating
profit as incurred.

Income tax
Income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Income taxis recagrised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to
items taken directly 1o equity. Current fax is the tax
expected fo be payable on taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted during the
perind, fogether with any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deterred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
methoed, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacled
at the balance sheet date, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the
assel con be utllised.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balances, call deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less.



Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

1. Investment Property

Al 18 September 2021 3
Addifions -
Al 17 Seplember 2022 3
Disposals o (3)

At 16 Seplember 2023 -

2. Investments in subsidiaries

ol

Lisioy Urilisle gl L

At 18 Seplember 2021 345 677 1.042
Additions _ _ _
At 17 September 2022 345 697 1.042
Additions o ) - - -
At14 September 2023 345 897 1,042

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are shown at coslt less amounts written off. Investments include 403,341,215
ardinary shares of 5 5/2:0 (2022 - 403.341.215) each in Associated British Foods plc. equivalent to 52.5% of the issued
share capital of that company, which is listed on The London Stock Exchange. At 16 September 2023 the market value
of the holding was £8.394m (2022 - £5,.342m). Associated British Foods plc is incorporated in Great Britain and registered
in England. Through its subsidiary, Howard Investments Limited, the Company holds a further 28,173,893 {2022 -
28,173,893 shares in Associated Brilish Foods plc, representing 3.7% of the issued share capital of that company. A st of
trading subsicliary undertakings is given in nole 32 of the Company's consolidated financial statemenis. The halding
company structure is complicated and does not necessarily retlect the management Grouping in which the companies
are listed.

3. Investments in associates

A1 18 September 2021 2
Additicns ]
Al 17 September 20272 3
]
2

Impairment
At 14 September 2023

A list of associote undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's consolidated financial siatements.

4, Deferred tax assets

Effect of changes in tax rate on income statement {
Al 17 September 2022
Effect of changes in fax rate on income staterment -

A6 Sepfeﬁiber 2023 D 2

;
Al 18 September 2021 3
1
2

Finance Bill 2022 which was substantively enacted on 24 may 2022 increased the main rate of corporation taxin the UK
1o 25% with effect from 1 April 2023, Deferred tax liability on the balance sheet has been measured at 25% which is ihe
rate expected to apply when the tax liability is setfled.

Ay

2022 [Rembaloa) !
£m L

Non-current
Arnoynts owed by subsidiary underlokings ! 1,043 218
Ctherdebtors o 2
- ~ ] - - 1045 918
Current o o
Armounts owed by subsidiary underokings
Other debtors o
1155 9a g o oF e 2300 “ghon ol ler ampany ere b es niee o marl ;e o aageinz it b e aentfec e n sreearts owed by sobs @ oy uneeriak naz ahoch ore na
Agpel fen nEnn 1 At he nee 12 maths ane shoo's besoe oo o s foo os eenorumonl st acseszonse wall AT T T oo al e e b

The directors considler that the carrying amount of debtors approximates to thelr fair value,
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

&. Other Investments

Totar
Listecl Unhsted Other
I estriants nsgstmeris Inwestmenls
£m i im
Al 18 September 2021 29 1 30
Fair value loss 1] 1) 12)
Al 17 September 2022 28 - 28
Fair value gain 3 3
At1éSeptember2023 ' o - It
The Group classifies these financial nstruments using a Tar value hierarchy cutlined on page 52. The fable below
analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is categorised for
Invesirments held at fair value through profit and loss:
level | Level 2 level 3 Total Lol Leswesl 2 Lve 3 Tala
£m Em £m £rm £ LA £m im
investments designated FYTPL 31 - - 31 28 - 28
7. Trade and cther payables
2023 2022
£m Zm
Amounts faling due within one vear
Accruals and defered income - 1
Armounts due to subsidiary undertakings 27 17
27 18
The directors consider that the camying amount of creditors approximates 1o their fair value.
8. Employee henefits liabilifies
et o+ vom s e+ <+ oo e 2 ¢4+ s P, =
At 12 September 2021 10
Cumrent service cost 1
Actuarialgan e S R B o4
At 17 September 2022 7
Curentservice cost T -
Acluaidigain O U]
Al 16 September 2023 4

The Company operates one unfunded post-employment plan which is accounted for in the same way as the Group's
defined benefit retirement schemes detailed in note 14 of the consolidated financial stafements. Applicoble actuarial
assumplions are stated on page 39. The Company's unfunded Eability forms part of the Group's £26m (2022: £29m)
unfunded UK liabilities disclosed on page 41,

9. Share capital and dividends

Share capital

Oﬁr‘-ow shares  NMoming Yalue

ol A each £
AUthorsed - At 14 September 2023 and 17 September 2022 900,000 450,000
Issued and fully paid - At 16 Septemibber 2023 and 17 September 2022 842,022 431,011

Dividends
Details of dividends paid are provided in note 8 1o the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

10. Related parties

The Company has a controling shareholder relationship with the frustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and with
certain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. The Cormpany has a related party relationship with its
subsidicries, associates and joint ventures and directors. In the course af normal operations, related party fransacticns
entered into by the Company have been contracted on an arm’'s length basis.

nmaterial transactions and year end balances with related parties (excluding wholly owned subsidiaries) were as follows:

2023 ol
£000 £
Dividends poid by Witlingtan Investments Limited and received in a beneficial capacity by:
li} Trustees of The Garfield Weston Foundation 4,745 3854
i) Directors of Wittington Investments Lmited who are not Trustees of The Foundaiion 1,246 1012

See note 30 {o the consclidated financial statemenis far Turiher details.

11. Other information

Emoluments of directors

Hote 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group provides details of Directors remuneralion.

Employees
The Company had an average of 32 employees in 2023 (2022 - 32}. Remuneration was £3.2m (2022: £4.2m).

Auditors’ fees
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group provides details of the remuneration of the Company’s
quditors on a Group basis.

12. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £86.50. total value of £74.4m, will be
paid on 23 January 2024 to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2023,
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